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December 17, 2015
To the Board of Commissioners, County Manager, and Citizens of Duplin County:

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year,
a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report,
based upon a comprehensive framewaork of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of
internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Carr, Riggs and Ingram, LLC, a firm of Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on
Duplin County’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015. The independent auditor’s report is located at
the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it,

Profile of the Government

Duplin County, founded in 1750, is located in the southeastern part of North Carolina, amid the extensive Coastal Plain
region, which covers nearly half the state. The County, which encompasses approximately 819 square miles, has
approximately five square miles of water, Itis bounded on the north by Wayne County, on the northeast by Lenoir
County, on the east by Jones County, on the southeast by Onslow County, on the south by Pender County and on the
west by Sampson County. The Town of Kenansville, which is the County Seat, is located geographically in the center of
the County. Other municipalities located in the County include Beulaville, Calypso, Faison, Greenevers, Magnolia, Rose
Hill, Teachey, Wallace and Warsaw. The County has a diversified economy based upon industry, agriculture, education,
and governmental institutions supported by a mix of wholesale and retail businesses as well as numerous service
providers.

The County has a land area of approximately 521,886 acres of which approximately 248,026 acres or 47.5% are classified
as farm land. With elevations about 137 feet above mean sea level, the land surface is smooth with slight steeps along
the flood plain of permanent streams. The largest waterway, the Northeast Cape Fear River, runs north to south in the
eastern portion of the County as it flows in an eastward direction to the Atlantic Ocean.



Duplin County experiences a mild climate with an average temperature of 63 degrees and an average annual rainfall of
approximately 53 inches, with most precipitation occurring during the summer months. The average frost-free seasan is
from mid-April to mid-November, slightly more than 200 days. The County has a wide range of soil types that contribute
to a highly productive agricultural industry. According to the 2012 Census of Agriculture, Duplin County was ranked 17™
in the state and 26" in the nation for tobacco production and ranked 4™ in the state for corn for grain production. The
County also is a huge producer of livestock, poultry and their by-products — ranking 1% in the state and 11™ in the nation
for market value of livestock, poultry and by-products and also 1% in the state and nation for hogs and pigs sold
according to the same 2012 Census of Agriculture. Duplin County is home to the world’s largest turkey processing plant
at 675,000 sguare feet owned by Butterball LLC. Because agriculture is such an integral part of Duplin County’s
economy, an Agriculture Protection Plan was developed in 2010 to help improve and protect current and future
agricutture owners’ fand and enhance programs.

The County is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners, referred 1o as the “Board”. One member is elected
from each of five different voting districts in the County. All five members serve four-year ierms. The partisan elections
for three of the Board members are held in November of Presidential election years and two of the Board members are
held two years into the Presidential term. The Board elects a Chairman and Vice-Chairman from among its members
every first Monday in December.

The County provides its citizens a wide range of services that include education, human services inctuding health and
social services, public safety such as Paramedic level Emergency Medical Services, culturai and recreational activities,
environmenta! protection, general administration services, general transportation services, county-wide water services,
and solid waste coliection, disposal and recycling. The County also offers an airport providing general aviation services
such as fueling and hangar renial, This report includes all the County’s activities in maintaining these services, except
schools, which are administered by the Duplin County Board of Education. The County also offers financial support to
certain boards, agencies and commissions to assist their efforts in serving citizens. Among these are James Sprunt
Community Cellege and Duplin County Tourism Development Authority. The County has evaluated its refationship with
each of these entities according to criteria established by GASB. Because County allocations do not constitute a major
portion of its revenues and because the County has no authority to designate their management, James Sprunt
Community College is not included in this report as a component unit. However, because the County does control the
Duplin County Tourism Development Authority’s budget and revenue authority, it is included in this report as a
discretely presented companent unit,

The proposed County budget is required to be presented for the upcoming fiscal year no later than June 1 and must be
adopted by July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for Duplin County’s
financiai planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund (e.g. General, Special Revenue, Enterprise}, department
{e.g. Finance, Sheriff, Transportation) and line types within the department (e.g. salaries, supplies, telephone, utilities).
Department heads may transfer resources within a department with approval by the County Manager up to 510,000,
Transfers over $10,000 and/or budget amendments involving revenue need special approval from the Board of
Commissioners,

Local Economy

Duplin County is a rural county situated in the eastern coastal plain region of North Carolina and is located on the
northeastern border of North Carolina’s Southeast Regional Economic Development Partnership that includes 13
counties and many corporate partners in Eastern North Carolina. Kenansviile, the county seat, is intersected by three
highways: NC 24, NC 11 and NC 50, The County includes major highways such as Interstate 40, US 117 and NC 24. The
County also offers a rail system that runs along US 117 which offers businesses both rail and major interstate access.
Interstate 40 continues to have a positive ecenomic impact on the County as can be seen direcily by the business activity
along the exits and indirectly by the business the interstate brings into the County.
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Duplin County has an estimated population of 60,084 and lahor force of almost 25,000 per the North Carolina
Employment Security Commission. The unadjusted unemployment rate at June 2015 was 6.3%. The County’s economy
has historically been based on agriculture, agriculture related processing and manufacturing. In the past, tobacco and
row crops were the staples of agricultural production. In more recent years, poultry and livestock production has
displaced row crops as the primary source of production. The County has diversified its economic base by attracting a
local technology company and a plastics moiding company.

The primary agricuttural products produced in the County are poultyy, tobacco, grain, produce and livestock. The County
is a national leader in poultry and swine production with one of the nation’s largest hog producers and the world’s
largest turkey processing plant located in the County.

The County considers the production of alternative energy fuel crops as a future agribusiness growth opportunity, and
research into such crops is being conducted in the County. Research is being conducted locally on alternative crops for
the production of ethanol and biodiesel fuels that would not compete with Midwestern corn supplies which are critical
for local livestock production. Other fuel crops, such as industrial sweet potatoes and canoia are being evaluated at the
North Carolina State University Williamsdale Research farm located in the County.

Due to the County’s geographic proximity to the military installations of Marine Carps Base Camp Lejeune {45 mites),
Marine Corps Air Station New River (40 miles), Fort Bragg U.S. Army Base (65 miles), Marine Corps Air Station Cherry
Point (85 miies) and Seymour Johnson Air Force Base {40 miles), the County is strategically positioned to support
projected military growth in the area. Initiatives of growth to attract military population or business include civic and
community efforts to attract military families. The Town of Warsaw maintains a Veterans Museum and hosts the
longest running Veteran's Day parade in the United States.

Duplin County is aiso home to a growing wine industry which contributes to the local economy through wine production
and tourism. Duplin Winery, which is iocated in Rose Hill, is the Caunty’s largest tourist attraction. It has a tank capacity
of over 1.4 miilion gallons, is the largest winery in the South and produces the best-selling wine in North Carolina. Over
100,000 visitors visit the winery and production facility each year. With the growth of the industry, many farmers have
repiaced tobacco with grapes as a cash crop. In addition to jobs in the vineyard, wineries are an increasing source of
employment in the County.

-Long-term financial planning and major initiatives

Duplin County has to be in a continued state of planning to keep up with the ever-changing environment of local
government. This is an ongoing charge to the elected officials as well as County staff. The Board of Commissioners had a
planning retreat in February 2013 to discuss and develop strategies to help plan current and future needs of the County.
The County continues to have low-cost access to the debt markets to finance the acquisition, renovation or construction
of various long-term assets. With the most recent Limited Obligation Bonds’ issuance in 2012, the County received a
bond rating of “AA-" with Standard & Poor’s and “A2"”with Moody's. It is management’s objective to adequately plan to
meet the County’s ongoing demands for essential capital improvement projects and equipment without overburdening
taxpayers with bonds payabie from ad valorem taxes.

buplin County annually reviews and updates the County Capitai Needs Assessment, for “pay as you go” capital as well as
long term capital projects and needs for county government and the education system. The County has been successful
in utilizing the North Carolina Lottery funds for renovations and improvements of several schools throughout the County
which prevents impact to local budgets.

The County continues to add to and improve the water system to reach as many households as possihle. A sewer
system project located at Interstate 40, exit 373 was completed, which will allow potential business growth in this area

of the County as well as serve residents in that area. In 2012, the County collaborated with five granting agencies and
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existing industry, Lear Corporation, formally known as Guiiford Mills, to construct a ten mile gas pipeline to help retain
500 existing jobs, leverage new investment and create 88 new jobs.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skili, effort, and dedication of the entire staff of
the Finance Office. | would like to express my appreciation to all government departments for their assistance in
oroviding the data necessary to prepare this report. Credit also must be given to the County Manager and Board of
Commissioners for their support for maintaining the highest standards of professicnalism in the management of Duplin
County’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Q'/M@_ el

Teresa Lanier
Finance Officer
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Register of Deeds |« > County Commissioners 4 - Sheriff
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(252) 566-4135
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ‘ (252) 566-4136 (fax)
\I‘UWW‘UIiC|]6.fJOI'i]
To the Board of County Commissioners
Duplin County, North Carolina

Report on the Finahc:ial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Duplin County, North Carolina (the "County”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes fo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial
statements of Duplin County Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Govermmental
Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financizl position of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Duplin County, North Carolina, as of
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

- 16 -



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accouniing principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion, Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance, Other Post-employment
Benefit Schedules of Funding Frogress and Employer Contributions, the Local Government Employees’
Retirement Sysiem Schedules of the County’'s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset and County
Contributions, and the Register of Deeds’ Supplemenial Pension Fund Schedule of the County’'s Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Asset and Schedule of County Cenftributions on pages 88-89, 90, €1, and 92
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financiat
statements, and other knowledge we cbtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an cpinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statemenis of Duplin County, Nerih Carolina. The combining and individual fund
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of Stafes,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary scheduies, other scheduies, and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate direcily fo the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Uniied States of America. in our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures
performed as described above, the combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules,
other schedules, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in refation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 2015,
on our consideration of the Duplin County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulaticns, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of the report is to describe the scope of cur testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal confrol over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pari of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Duplin County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Can Rigges £ s

La Grange, North Carolina
December 17, 2015
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Duplin County, we offer readers of Duplin County’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of Duplin County for the year ended June 30, 2015. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the County's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Duplin County exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $81,310,236 (net position).

e The government's total net position decreased by $562,992, primarily due to water loans to finance the
construction of water system improvements.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Duplin County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $23,712,546, after a net increase in fund balance of $2,556,748. Approximately 67.89
percent of this total amount, or $16,098,776, is either nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $7,617,518, or
32.11 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

e Total long-term debt increased by $1,836,412 (6.29%) during the year ended June 30, 2015.

e Standard and Poor's Ratings Services raised the County’s credit rating one level from A+ to AA-
Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Duplin County's basic financial statements.
The County's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two
different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In
addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance
the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of Duplin County.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1

Managements
Discussion and
Analysis

Basic Financial
Statements

Government-wide Notes to the

Fund Financial

Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary Detall

Basic Financial Statements
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The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2} in the basic financial statemenis are the Government-wide Financiai
Statemnernts. They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 9) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the County’'s government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide staternents. There are four paris to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4} the fiduciary fund
statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the County’s non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on
the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by North Carolina General Statutes also can be
found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statemenis are designed io provide the reader with a broad overview of the
County's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide
statements provide short and long-term information about the County’s financial status as a whaole.

The two government-wide statements repert the County's net position and how they have changed. Net position
is the difference between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and the total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into fwo categories: governmental activities and business-type
activities. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as general government,
public safety, human services, cuitural and recreational, economic and physical development, environmental
protection, and education. Property taxes, local option sales taxes and state grant funds finance most of these
activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. These inciude
the water opérations, solid waste operations, transportation services and airport operations. The final category is
the component unit. Duplin County Tourism Development Autherity is legally separate from the County however
the County is financially accountable for the Authority by approving all new members that are elected by the
Authority. The County finance officer is also the ex-officic finance officer of the Tourism Development Authority.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed lock at the County’s most significant activities. Afundis a
grouping of related accounts that is used fo maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or abjectives. Duplin County, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the County's budget ordinance. All of the funds of Duplin County can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements, Most of the County’s basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted inte cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial
resources focus. As a resull, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County's
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.
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Duplin County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is
a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the
County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. it also
authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for in the General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the
budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the
budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the
board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the
difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the
difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the
differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary siatement.

Proprietary Funds — Duplin County has two different kinds of proprietary funds, Enferprise Funds are used fo
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Duplin County uses enterprise funds to account for its water activities, solid waste operations, transportation
services, and airport operations. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type
activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an
accounting device used to accurnulate and allocate costs internally among functions of the County. The County
uses an internal service fund to account for one activity — to administer its self-insured hospital insurance policy.
Because this activity benefits predominantly governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service
fund has been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Duplin County has six fiduciary funds - County Agency Fund, the Motor Vehicle Tax Fund, the
Social Services Fund, and the Register of Deeds Fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to & full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements start on page 47 of this report.

Other Information — In addition fo the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes
certain required supplementary information concerning Duplin County's progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required suppiementary information can
be found in Exhibit's A-1 and A-2 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted eatlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition.
The County's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $81,310,236 as of June 30, 2015. The County's net position decreased by $582,992 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015, The largest portion $48,905,903 (60.15%) reflects the County’s net investment in capital asseis
(eg. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, etc.}). Duplin County uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Dupilin County's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must
be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional
portion of Duplin County's net position $10,618,522 (13.06%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $21,785,811 (26.79%) is unrestricted.
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Figure 2

Duplin County, North Carolina

Condensed Staterment of Net Position
As of June 30,

Governmental Activilies Business-lype Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Current and other
assefs $ 309,220,944 $ 34,208,597 $ 11,361,215 § 10,478,182 & 50,582,159 $ 44,686,778
Capital assets 21,745,838 22,446 273 56,370,705 57,033,810 78,116,343 79,480,083
Total assets 60,266,582 56,854 870 67,731,920 67,511,992 128,698,502 124,166,862
Total deferred outfiows
of resources 1,395,709 - 366,814 246,622 1,762,523 246,622
Liabilities
Current and other
lizbilities 1,622,720 2,969 529 1,463,316 1,182,797 3,086,036 4,182,325
Long-term liabilities 21,771,726 20,627,695 19,566,558 17,585,509 414,338,284 38,213,204
Total liabilities 23,364 446 23,627,224 21,029,874 18,768,306 44,424 320 42,385 530
Total deferred inflows of
resaurces 4,327,448 124726 389,020 - 4,726,469 124,726
Net Position
Net investment in capital
assets 11,733,322 10,817,432 37,172,581 39,830,796 48,505,903 50,748,228
Restricted 10,587,208 9,561,211 21,313 223,933 10,618,522 8,785,144
Unrestricted 12,308,865 12,424 277 8,475,946 8,935,579 21,785,811 21,359 856
Total net position $ 34640396 $ 32,902,920 $ 46,669,840 $ 4808900,308 § 81,310,236 $ 81,893,228

Several aspecis of the County's financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted gevernmental net

position:

e Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by mainfaining a collection percentage of 97.39%.

e Continued low costs of debt due to the County’s high bond rating.

e Management's proactive stance on monitoring spending across County departments to ensure

compliance with the budget.
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Figure 3
Duplin County, North Caroling
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Governmental Activities

Business-type Aclivities

Total

2015

2014

2015 2014

2015 2014

Revenues

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

$ 7221324 % 9,176,538

$ 7238238 $ 8,139,249 §

14,459,562 § 17,315,787

contributions 12 636,041 10,586,282 568,871 586,312 13,204,912 11,172,594
Capital grants and

coniributions 789,856 920,045 808,055 3,402,150 1,698,911 4,322,195
General revenues; )

Property taxes 30,948,358 30,238,201 - - 30,948,358 30,238,201
Cther taxes 8,376,214 8,541,028 131,116 124,675 8,509,330 8,665,703
Other revenue 229,291 218,213 123,983 56,355 353,274 274,568
Total revenues 60,203,084 58 680,307 8,971,263 12,308,741 69,174,347 71,989,048
Expenses

General government 5,901,684 5,884 447 - - 5,801,684 5,884 447
Public safety 17,884,866 17,821,492 - - 17,884,866 17,821,492
Economic and physical

deveiopment 1,157,204 1,363,220 - - 1,157,204 1,363,220
Human services 16,123,169 16,015,053 - - 16,123,169 18,015,053
Cultural and recreational 1,316,387 1,204,921 - - 1,316,387 1,204,921
Environmentat protection 784,371 704,203 - - 784 371 704,203
Non-departmental 283,608 287,491 - - 283,606 287 491
Education 12,370,800 13,334,623 - - 12,370,800 13,334,623
Interest on long-term debt 398,966 431,245 - - 386,966 431,245
Alirport - - 1,178,655 1,796,254 1,178,655 1,796,254
Water - - 3,364,680 3,347,524 3,364,680 3,347,524
Transpariation - - 982,263 1,073,121 082,263 1,073,124
Solid waste - - 2,937,828 2,871,828 2,937 828 2,871,828
Total expenses 56,222 053 57,046 685 8,463,426 9,188,727 64,685,479 66,235,422
Change in net position

before transfers and

special items 3,881,031 2,633,612 507,837 3,120,014 4,488,868 5,753,626
Special items - 598,587 - 236,037 - 598 597
Transfers {115,773) (219,978} 115,773 219,978 - -
Change in net position 3,865,258 3,012,231 623,810 3,576,029 4,488,868 6,588,260
Net position, beginning 32,902,920 29,850,889 48,890,308 45414 279 81,893,228 75,304,968
Restaiement (2,127,782} - (208,836) - {2,336,618) -
Prior period adjustment - (2,735,242) - (2,735,242} -

Net position, ending

$ 34640306 $ 32,902920 %

46,668,840 § 48,990,308 %

81,310,236 § 81,883,228
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The County’s net position decreased by $582,992 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The governmental
activities net position experienced an increase of 5.01%, while the business-type activities experienced a
decrease of 4.97%.

Governmental Activities: Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e |ncrease in property tax revenue due to higher collection rate.
» [Increase in intergovernmental revenue.

Business-type activities: Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

e Increase in debt to finance capital asset improvement projects.
Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Duplin County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Duplin County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, oufflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Duplin County’s
ability to finance current activities or future projects. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Duplin County. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was $7,617,518, while total fund balance was $16,692,007 (Exhibit 3). As a
measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and iotal fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.62 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while fotal fund balance represents 32.04 percent of that same amount.

At June 30, 2015, the governmental funds of Duplin County reported a combined fund balance of $23,712,546.
Figure 4

Governmental Funds — Total Fund Balance
June 30, 2015
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Figure 5
Governmental Funds Revenue
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
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Figure 6
Governmental Funds Expenditures
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the
estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2)
amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants;
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. Total amendments to the
General Fund increased budgeted revenues by $4.46 million. The largest increases were to intergovernmental
revenues and sales and service revenues.

-24 -



The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were more than the budgeted amounts by $500,652, most of
which is atfribuied to property tax and local option sales tax revenues. (Exhibit 5)

Proprietary Funds. Duplin County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
gavernment-wide statements but in more detaill. At the end of the fiscal year, several funds had unrestricted net
position. The Alrport Commission Fund amounted to $204,308, and the Water Fund equaled $6,386,64%. The
nan-major funds of the Solid Waste Fund and the Transportation Development Fund had a combined total of
unrestricted net position of $2,766,829. (Exhibit 6)

The total decrease in net position for the enterprise funds was Airport Commission Fund - $(418,512) and the
Water Fund of $(2,052,593) (Exhibit 7). The non-major funds had a combined increase in net position totaling
$50,192. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressad in the discussion of
Dupiin County's business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

Duplin County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business—type activities as of June 30,
2015, totals $81,179,675 (net of accumulated depreciation} (Exhibit 1). Scme of these assets include buildings,
jand, land improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, water sysiems, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year inciude:

- Increase in construction in progress and waler sysiems in the Water Fund,
- Increase in construction in progress for the airport terminal.
- Purchase of nublic safety and solid waste vehicles and equipment.

Figure 7
Duplin County, North Carolina
Condensed Statement of Capital Assets (net of depreciation)
As of June 30,

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Land $ 2460544 $§ 2460144 % 1,161,587 § 1,161597 § 3,622,141 $ 3,621,741
Construction in progress - - 5,276,638 4.927,689 5,276,638 4,927 685
Buildings 16,327,102 16,938,241 2,355,973 2,378,025 18,683,075 19,317,266
Water plants and

distribution systems - - 38,832,905 39,463,535 38,532,905 39,463,535
Airport terminals and

runways - - 7,595,797 8,175,682 7,595,797 8,175,682
Equipment 1,633,602 1,727,654 351,328 442 699 1,984,930 2,170,353
Vehicles 1,324,380 1,320,234 696,467 483,683 2,020,857 1,803,817

Total capital assets, net § 21745638 § 22446273 § 56,370,705 § 57,033,810 § 78,116,343 § 79,480,083

Additiona! information on the County’'s capital assets can be found in Noie 8 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
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Long-term Debt.

As of June 30, 2015, Duplin County had total long-term debt outstanding of $29,210,440,

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2015 T 2014 2015 T 2014 2015 2014
Limited obligation bonds 3 - $ - $ 15314495 § 15843587 $ 15314495 5 15843587
Notes payable 10,012,318 10,171,014 3,883,629 1,359,427 13,895,945 11,530,441
Certificates of participation - 1,357,827 - 1,357,827

Total long-term debt $ 10012316 $ 11,528,841 § 19198124 $ 17,203,014 § 20210440 $ 28,731,855

Duplin County's total debt has increased by $478,585 (1.64 percent) during the past fiscal year. This increase is
primarily due to financing for water system improvements.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, Duplin County maintains an AA- band rating
from Standard and Poor's Corporation. This bond rating is a clear indication of the sound financial condition of
Duplin County.

The State of North Carolina limits the ameunt of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's houndaries. The legal
debt margin for Duplin County is $318,061,098.

Additional information regarding Duplin County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 17 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the County.

- The unemployment rate for the county is 6.1% which is the same as the state average.

- The assessed value of real and personal property decreased by $37.003,782 or .9%.

- Our population of 61,193 has grown over the past few years mainly due to the growth of the Hispanic
population being permanently located in Duplin as compared to being a seasonal workforce.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities: The County approved an original $54.8 million general fund budget. This represents
a slight decrease over the final budget for FY 2015. The preperty rate for tax year FY 2016 will remain at $0.730
per hundred dollar valuation.

Business — type Activities: The County has not increased its tipping fees in the solid waste fund. The water
funds’ rates remained at prior year amounts. The Transportation fund rate schedule for FY 2015-2016 remained
at a flat rate fee per trip of $8.00.

Economic Forecast

Duplin County's economy has historically been based on agriculture. In the past, tobacco and row crops were the
staples of agricultural production. In more recent years, poultry and livestock production has displaced traditicnal
row crops as the primary “cash crop”. According to the North Carolina Department of Agriculture’s 2012 statistics,
Duplin County ranked number 1 in the state in cash receipts from the sale of crops and livestock with total sales
of just over $1 billion. Duplin County is also recognized as an important agricultural producer naticnally.
According to the most recent (2007) Census of Agriculture, Duplin County is ranked 15™ of 3,079 U.S. counties in
market value of Agricultural products sold.

A network of 6 primary highways intersect with i-40, the state’'s major east-west artery. The county has four-lane

access to the region’s population centers; deep water ports at Wilmington and Morehead City; and the military
installations of Marine Corps Base Camp Lejeune, Fort Bragg, and Seymour Johnson Air Force Base.
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A network of 6 primary highways intersect with 1-40, the state’s major east-west artery. The county has four-lane
access to the region’s population ceniers; deep water ports at Wilmington and Morehead City; and the military
installations of Marine Corps Base Camp Lejeune, Fort Bragg, and Seymour Johnson Air Force Base.

The production of alternative energy fuel crops is a fuiure agribusiness growih opportuniiy for the county.
Important research is being conducted locally on aiternative crops for the production of etharcl and biodiesel fuels
that would not compete with Midwestern corn supplies which are critical for local livestock production.  Fuel crops
such as Giant Miscanthus and Swiichgrass are being evaluated at the North Carclina State University's
Willamsdale Biofuels Field Laboratory iocated in Duplin County.

Manufacturing, including agriculiural related processing, is an imporiant segment of the county's employment.
Approximately 30% of the county's workforce is employed in agricultural related processing and manufacturing.

Of the ten largest employers in the county, six are engaged in agriculiural production, manufacturing or
processing.

Duplin County partnered with James Sprunt Community Coliege to offer workforce development training in
support of the local agricultural economy by establishing a Diesel Meachanics School in the county’s industrial park
near Warsaw. Consiruction of the facility is being funded in part, by a $1 million grant from the Golden Leaf
Foundation.

Duplin County continues to take advantage of low-interest loans and grant opportunities to finance investment in
infrastructure to attract and support economic growth. Currently, Duplin County has $4.8 million of water
expansion contracts awarded and under consiruction. The county, in conjunction with the town of Magnolia, is
investing $2.2 million to extend sewer fo the [-43 / NC 11-803 interchange at Exit 373.

Reguests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Duplin County Finance Office, PO Box 850, Kenansville, N.C. 28349.
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Duplin County, North Caralina
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015
Exhibit 1

Primary Government Companent Unit

Duplin County

Tourism
Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
Assels
Current asseis.
Cash and cash equivalents $20,2109814 % 8217,736 $28,428850C $ 399,380
Receivabies, net 13,707,838 1,469,289 15,177,137 22,795
Internal balances 710 (710) - -
Due from agency funds 1,801 - 1,801 -
Inventories 270,487 42 632 313,11% -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,199,535 308,485 3,588,020 -
Total current assets 37,391,385 10,127,442 47,518,827 422,175
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 1,070,055 1,070,055 -
Net pension asset 1,829,559 163,718 1,893,277
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 2,460,544 6,438,235 8,898,779 -
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 19,285,084 40,932,470 69,217,564 -
Total capital assets 21,745,638 56,370,705 78,116,343 -
Total noncurrent assets 23,575,187 57,604,478 81,179,675 -
Total assets 60,966,582 67,731,920 128,698,502 422 175
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,365,709 366,814 1,762,523 -
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,457,476 328,151 1,786,627 1,421
Customer deposiis - 398,485 398 485 -
Unearned revenue - 5,364 5,364 -
MNotes payable - current 165,244 210,318 375,560 -
Limited obligation bonds - current - 520,000 520,000 -
Total current liabilities 1,622,720 1,463,316 3,086,036 1,421
Long-term iiabilities:
Compensated absences 1,176,851 135,614 1,312,865 3,744
Other post-employment benefit 10,210,264 962,836 11,173,100 -
LEO special separation allowance 537,439 - 537,439 -
Notes payable 9,847,072 3,673,313 13,520,385 -
Limited obligation bonds - 14,794,495 14,784 495 -
Total long-term labilities 21,771,726 18,566,558 41,338,284 3,744
Total liabilities 23,394 446 21,029,874 44,424 320 5,165
Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,327,449 398,020 4,726 469 -
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 11,733,322 37,172,581 48,905 903 -
Restricted 10,597,209 21,313 10,618,522 22,785
Unrestricted 12,308,865 9,475,946 21,785,811 394,215
Total net position $34,640,396 $46,669,840 $81,310,236 $ 417,010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Govemment Component Unit
Operating  Capital Grants Tourism
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type Development
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activifies Activities Total Authority
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 5901684 $ 338946 $ 9377 % - $(5,553,361) $ - $ (5,553,361
Public safety 17,884,866 3,205,147 1,659,768 - (13,019,951) - {13,019,251)
Economic and physical development 1,157,204 2,130,015 231,227 87,546 1,291,584 - 1,291,584
Human services 16,123,168 1,405,313 10,607,282 - {4,110,574) - (4,110,574}
Cultural and recreational 1,316,387 141,903 128,387 - {1,046,097) - {1,046 097}
Environmental protection 784,371 - - - (784,371) - {784 371}
Non-departmental 283,606 - - - (283,606) - (263 ,606)
Education 12,370,800 - - 702,310  {11,668,420) - {11,668,490)
Interest on long-term debi 399,966 - - - (399,966) - {399,966}
Total governmental activities 56,222,053 7,221,324 12,636,041 789,856 (35,574,832) - {35574,832)
Business-type activities:
Aimport 1,178,655 470,181 - 110,145 - {598,329) (598,329)
Water 3,364,680 3,291,059 - 798,910 - 725,289 725,289
Transportation 982,263 551,984 519,483 - - 89204 89,204
Solid waste 2,937,828 2,925,014 49 388 - - 36,574 36,574
Totat business-type activities 8,463 426 7,238,238 568,871 909,055 - 252,738 252,738
Total primary govemment $ 64685479 $14,459562 §$ 13204912 $ 1,698,911 (35574,832) 252,738 (35,322,094)
Component unit:
Tourism development authority $ 190,425 $ 2,443 % - $ - $  (187,982)

See accompanying notes to financial statemenits.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Prmary Government Component Unit
Diplin County
Tourism
Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for generai purposes $30,948,358 $ - $ 30,948358 § -
Local option sales taxes 8,283 242 - 8,283,242 -
Other taxes and licenses 94,972 131,116 226,088 257,162
Investment earnings, unrestricted 80,380 90,619 170,992 &7
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 120,672 27,880 148,562 -
Gain on disposal of capital assets 28,239 5474 33,713 -
Total general revenues excluding fransfers & special items 39,555 863 255,099 39,777,249 257,229
Transfers (115,773) 115,773 - -
Total generai revenues, special items, and transfers 39,440,090 370,872 39,777,249 257 229
Change in net position 3,865,258 623,610 4,455 155 59,247
Net position, beginning of year 32,902,920 48,990,308 81,893,228 347763
Restatement (2,127,782) (208,836) (2,336,618)
Prior period adjusiment - (2,735,242) (2,735,242} -
Net position, end of year $34,640396 § 46,669,340 §$ 81,310236 $ 417,010

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Balance Shest

Governimental Funds

June 30, 2015

Exhibit 3
Major Non-Major
Other
Debt Service Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Total

Asseis
Cash and cash equivalenis

$13,976,113 § 628,867 § 2,733,130 $ 17,338,110

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - 3,198 535 3,199,535
Receivables, net ' 12,054,182 - 1,652,155 13,708,337
Bue from other funds 3,460 - 38,051 41,511
Inventories 270,487 270,487

Total assetls

$26,304,242 $ £28,867 § 7,822,871 $ 34555980

Liabilities
Accounts payabie and accrued liabilities $ 745320 § - $ 307828 % 1,053,248
Due to other funds 1,805 - 38,345 40,150
Total liabilities 747,125 - 346,273 1,093,398
Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,865,110 - 864,926 9,750,036
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - inventories 270,487 - - 270,487
Restricted:
Stabilization by staie statute 3,881,817 - 669 578 4,551,393
Register of deeds - - 17,002 17,002
Federally seized asseis 121,040 - - 121,040
Grants and projects 141,683 - - 141,683
Health 483,125 - - 493,125
Sheriff 86,217 - - 86,217
Daycare 167 - - 167
Economic development 591,019 - - 591,019
Schools - - 3,424,887 3,424,887
E-811 - - 275,681 275,681
Tax revaluation - - 894,995 884,995
Committed:
Capital improvements 928,805 - 247 210 1,176,015
Debt service - 628,887 - 628,867
Economic development - - 780,910 780,810
Vartous programs - - 85,158 85,159
Assigned:
Subsequent year's expenditures 2,560,129 - - 2,580,129
Unassigned 7,617,518 - (3,748) 7,613,770

Total fund balances

16,692,007 628,867 6,391,672 23,742,546

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of rescurce,

and fund balances

326,304,242 § 628,867 $ 7622871

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Balance Sheet

Governimental Funds

June 30, 2015

Exhibit 3
Total
Governmenial
Funds
Amounis reported for governmental aclivities in the Staternent of Net
Position (Exhibit 1) are different because:
Totai fund balance - governmental funds $ 23712546
Net pension asset 1,829,559
Infernal service fund activities to benefit governmental activities 2,802,597
Capital assets used in goveinmental aclivities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fund statemenis. 21,745,638
Liabilities for defermed inflows of resources reparted in the fund statements,
but not the government-wide statemenis. 9,657,132
Contributions to pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outfiows
of resources on the Statement of Net Position 1,257,506
Fension related deferral {4,096,342)

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, other postemployment benefits,
and compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the fund statements.

(22,268,240)

Net position of governmental activities

$ 34,640,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 4
Major Non-Major
GCther
Debt Service Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Total
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $30,069,681 § $ 878677 $30,948,358
Local option sales taxes 6,628,722 1,654,520 8,283,242
Other {axes and licenses 54,971 - - 94,971
Unrestricted intergovernmental 6,237,452 - - 6,237,452
Restricted intergovernmental 4,734,400 - 1,365,587 6,099,887
Restricted grants 48,000 - - 48.000
Permits and fees 485,252 - - 485,252
Restricied revenue 65,733 - - 65,733
Sales and services 7,124,707 - - 7,124,707
Investment eamings 53,511 110 26,318 79,939
Contributions 49,432 - 8,812 58,244
Miscellaneous 59,252 - 61,420 120,672
Total revenues 55,651,113 110 3,895,334 59,648,557
Expenditures
Current:
General government 5,694,047 121,783 5,815,830
Public safety 16,153,614 - 1,336,858 17,420,472
Economic and physical development 735,351 300,823 1,036,274
Human services 15,910,100 - - 15,810,100
Cultural and recreational 1,048 119 - - 1,049,118
Environmental protection 773,739 - - 773,738
Non-departmental 262,439 - - 262,439
Intergovernmental:
Education 11,522,774 848,026 12,370,800
Debt service:
Principai retirement - 1,448,697 - 1,448,697
Interest and fees - 472,703 - 472,703
Total expenditures 52,101,183 1,821,400 2,607,599 56,630,173
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 3,549,930 (1,821,290) 1,387,744 3,016,384
Other financing sources {uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital asseis 28,238 - - 28,239
Transfers from other funds - 2,101,362 927,338 3,028,700
Transfers to other funds (2,269,597) - (1,224,875) (3,494,472)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,241,358) 2,101,362 {297,537) (437,533)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 4
Major Non-Major
Other
Debt Service Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Total
Net change in fund balances 1,308,572 180,072 1,090,207 2,578,851

Fund balances, beginning of year 15,405,538 448,795 5,301,465 21,155,798

Increase in inventory {22,103) - - {22,103)
Fund balances, end of year $16,692,007 $ 628,857 § 6,391,672 823,712,546
Amounts reported for governmental activilies in the statement of activities are
different because:
Net changes in fund balances - governmental funds $ 2,578,851
Change in fund balance due to change in reserve for inventory (22,103)
internal service fund activities to benefit governmental activities 77,460
Governmental funds report capiial outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period. (700,625)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reporied as revenues in the funds. 601,013
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not inciuded in
the Statement of Activities 1,257,506
The issuance of long-ierm debt provides current financial rescurces to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmenta funds. Neither
transaction has any effect en net position. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 1,521,434
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. (1,448,278)
Total changes in net position of governmental activities $ 3,865,258

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 5
Variance With
Final Posifive
Original Budget  Final Budget Actual (Negative}
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 28767114 § 29300383 $ 30,069,681 $ 670,288
Local option sales taxes 5,818,765 6,233,785 6,628,722 394 957
Other taxes and licenses 85,500 85,500 94,871 9,471
Unrestricted intergovernmental 6,048,001 6,618,481 6,237,452 (382,039)
Restricted intergovernmental 3,737,079 4,807,416 4,734,400 {73,016}
Restricted granis 49,965 48,000 48,000 -
Permits and fees 507,500 478,375 485,252 6,877
Restricted revenus 64,000 64,000 65,733 1,733
Sales and services 5,460,401 7,269,072 7,124,707 (144,365)
Investment earnings 1,975 53,875 53,344 (831)
Miscellaneous 50,680 89,523 108,684 19,161
Total revenues 50,690,950 55,148,510 55,650,946 502,435
Expenditures
Current:
General government 4,749,048 6,388,628 5,694,047 704,581
Public safety 15,359,258 17,131,484 16,153,614 977,870
Economic and physical devetopment 683,272 1,384 616 735,351 659,265
Human services 16,359,760 17,348,408 15,810,100 1,439,308
Cultural and recreational 1,166,318 1,269,081 1,049,119 219,972
Environmental protection 782,188 964,486 773,739 190,747
Non-departmental 631,282 458,011 262 439 195,572
Intergovernmenial:
Education 11,624,835 11,716,733 11,522,774 193,959
Total expendifures 51,355,959 56,682,457 52,101,183 4,581,274
Revenues over {under) expenditures (664,96%) (1,533,947) 3,549,783 5,083,710
Other financing sources {uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 1,000 28,239 27,238
Transfers o other funds (1,739,245) (2,302,245) (2,240 194) 62,051
Total other financing uses (1,739,245) {2,301,245) (2,211,955) 89,290
Appropriated fund balance 2,404 214 3,835,192 - (3,835,192)
Net change in fund balance % - - 1,337,808 § 1,337,808
Fund balance, beginning of year 14 447 497
Increase in inventory (22,103)
Fund balance, end of year 15,763,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenuss, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 5

Variance With
Final Posiiive
Originai Budget  Final Budget Actual (Negative)
A fegally budgeted Capital Reserve Fund is consoiidated into
the General Fund for reporting purposes:

Investment earnings $ 167

Transfers from General Fund -

Transfers io other funds (29,403)
Fund balance, beginning of year 958,041
Fund balance, end of year (Exhibit 4) $ 16,692.007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2015

Maijor Nonmajor Exhibit 6
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obligation Proprietary Internal
Fund Bond Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 281309 $§ 5 6,102,343 § 1,834,079 % 8,217,736 $ 2,872,805
Receivables, net 34,103 47,880 627,907 807,289 1,517,189 1,500
Inventories 16,694 - 25,938 - 42 632 -
Due from other funds - - - 88 88 1,950
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - 397,685 800 398,485 -
Total current assets 332,106 47,895 7,153,873 2,642,256 10,176,130 2,876,255
Noncurrent asseis:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 1,070,055 1,070,055 -
Due from water districts - GO bonds 15,314,495
Net pension asset 13,105 - 43,304 107.309 163,718 -
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 592,988 - 5,528,899 216,348 6,438,235 -
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 7,660,669 - 38,989,666 3,282,135 45,832,470 -
Total capital assels 8,353,657 - 44 518,565 3,498,483 56,370,705 -
Total noncurrent assets 8,366,762 15,314,495 44 561,869 4,675,847 57,604,478 -
Total assets 8,698,868 15,362,390 51,715,742 7,318,103 67,780,608 2,876,255
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 10,495 - 270,378 85,841 366,814 -

.38 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Duplin County, North Carclina
Statement of Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

Major Nonmajor Exhibit 6
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commissicn Obligation Proprietary internal
Fund Bond Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,445 47,890 252,012 74,694 377,041 72,958
Customer deposits - - 397,685 800 398,485 -
Unearned revenue - - - 5,364 5,364 -
Due to other funds - - - 798 798 700
Notes payable - current - - 210,316 - 210,316 -
Bue to the County-GO Bonds - current - - 520,000 - 520,000 -
Limited obligation bonds - current - 520,000 - - 520,000 -
Total current liabilities 2,445 567,890 1,380,013 81,656 2,032,004 73,658
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 9,483 - 39,753 86,678 135,914 -
Other post-employment benefit 76,758 - 254,668 631,410 952,536 -
Notes payable - - 3,673,313 - 3,673,313 -
Bue to the County-GO Bonds - - 14,794,495 - 14,794,495 -
Limited obligations bonds - 14,794,495 - - 14,794,495 -
Total long-term liabilities 86,241 14,794,495 18,762,229 718,088 34,361,053 -
Total liabilities 88,686 15,362,385 20,142,247 799,744 36,393,057 73,658
Deferred Inflows of Resources 31,840 - 105,542 261,538 399,020
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 8,353,657 - 25,320,441 3,498,483 37,172,581 -
Restricted 21,313 - - - 21,313 -
Unrestricted 213,767 5 6,417,895 2,844,279 9,475,846 2,802,597
Total net position $ 8,588,737 % 5 $31,738,336 § 6,342762 § 46669840 § 2,802,597

-39 -

See accompanying notes io financial statements.



Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Esxhibit 7
Major Nonmaijor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obiligation Proprietary Internal
Fund Bond Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Operating revenues
Water sales $ - $ - $ 3,233,887 § - 3,233,887 $ -
Administration fees - - 1,630 - 1,630 -
Sales and rentals 470,181 - - - 470,181 -
Miscellaneous - - 55,542 - 55,542 -
Charges for services - - - 3,476,898 3,476,998 4,701,269
Total operating revenues 470,181 - 3,291,059 3,476,998 7,238,238 4,701,269
Operating expenses
Operating expenses 1,178,855 - 3,364,680 3,920,091 8,463,426 4,974,250
Operating income (loss) (708,474) - (73,621) {(443,093) {1,225,188) (272,981)
Non-cperating revenues {expenses)
Investment earnings - 572,614 89,483 1,126 663,233 441
Federal grants - - - 42,439 42,439 -
State grants - - - 501,316 501,316 -
Disposal tax revenues - - - 131,116 131,116 -
Interest expense - (572,614) - - {572,614) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - - - 5,474 5474 -
Miscellaneous 661 - 26,199 26,146 53,006 -
Total non-operating revenue {expense) 661 - 115,692 707,617 823,970 441
income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions (707,813) - 42,071 264,524 (401,218) (272,540)

-40 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Duplin County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 7
Major Nonmajor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obligation Proprietary Internal
Fund Bond Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Transfers in (out) $ 187614 % - 5 (71.841) $ - 3 115773 § 350,000
Capital contributions 110,145 - 798,910 - 909,055 -
Change in net position {410,054) - 769,140 264,524 623,610 77,460
Net position, beginning of year 9,015,508 5 33,759,675 6,215,120 48,990,308 2,725,137
Resiatement (16,717} - (55,237) (136,882) (208,836) -
Prior period adjustment - - (2,735,242) - (2,735,242) -
Net position, end of year $ 8,588,737 $ 5 $ 31,738,336 $ 6,342,762 § 46,669,840 $ 2,802,597

See accompanying notes {o financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 8
Major Nonmajor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Cbligation Bond Proprietary Internal
Fund Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 481,750 % - $ 3144657 $ 3571551 $ 7,197,958 § 4,698,691
Cash paid for goods and services {403,227) - (1,515,375) {2,105,207) (4,023,809) {4,569,387)
Cash paid to employees for services (184,165) - (623,631) {1,494,954) (2,302,750) -
Customer deposits received, net - - 23,705 200 24,505 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (105,642) - 1,028,356 (27,810) 895,904 (270,696)
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Transfers in (out) 187,614 - (71,841) - 115,773 350,000
Miscellaneous 661 - 26,199 701,017 727,877 -
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 188,275 - {45,642) 701,017 843,650 350,000
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital contributions 110,145 - 798,910 - 909,055 -
Proceeds from saie of capital assets - - - 5474 5,474 -
Advances from (to) other funds, net - - - - - -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (133,655) - (786,242) (415,819) {1.335,816) -
Proceeds from notes payable - - - - - -
Principal paid on bond maturities and notes payable - (510,000} (602,890) - {1,112,890) -
Interest paid on bond maturities and notes payable - (572,614) (644,004) - {1,216,618) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing
activities (23,510) (1,082,614)  (1,234,226) (410,445) (2,750,795) -

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carclina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 8
Major Nonmaijor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obligation Bond Proprietary Internal
Fund Fund Water Fund Funds Total Service Fund
Cash flows from investing activities
Inierest on investmenis $ - $ 572614 $ 89,493 3% 1,126 & 663,233 % 441
Principal received on water district bonds - 510,000 - - 510,000 -
Net cash provided {used) by investing activilies - 1,082,614 89,493 1,126 1,173,233 441
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 58,123 - {161,019) 263,888 161,992 79,745
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 222,186 5 6,263,362 2,641,046 9,126,598 2,793,060
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 281309 $§ 5 § 6,102,343 $ 2904934 $ 9,288581 § 2,872,805

(continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 8
Maijor Nonmajor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obligation Bond Proprietary internal
Fund Water Fund Funds Tatal Service Fund

{continued)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) fo net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Pension expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:;
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources for
pensions
{Increase) decrease in inventory
increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

$ (708,474) §$

588,265
1,081

11,569

(9,458)
4,808
(2,422)

(73,621) $ (443,093) $ (1,225,188) $ (272,981)

1,094,200 316,458 1,998,923 -
3,574 8,856 13,511 -
(146,402) 92,092 (42,741) (2,578)
(31,254) (77,450) (118,162) -
(2.503) - 2,305 -
125,009 4,332 126,919 4,863

- 2,461 2,461 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 8
Maijor Nonmajor
Water Debt
Service 2012
Airport Limited Other
Commission Obligation Bond Proprietary Internal
Fund Fund Water Fund Funds Taotal Service Fund
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits $ - $ - $ 23,705 % 600 $ 24,305 % -
Increase (decrease) in OPER obligation 9,361 - 35,345 68,225 112,931 -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (372) - 1,303 (291) 640 -
Total adjustments 602,832 - 1,102,977 415,283 2,121,082 2,285
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (105642) § - $ 102035 $ (27,810) § 895904 § (270,696)

See accompanying notes o financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2015
Exhibit 9
Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 148,191
Miscellaneous receivables 30,213
Total assets $ 178,404
Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 176,503
Due to other funds 1,901
Total liabilities $ 178,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statemenis

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The accounting poticies of Duplin County, North Carolina and its component units conform to generally accepted

accounting principles as applicable o governments. The following is a summary of the more significant
accounting policies.

Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a six-mefmber board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties established
in North Carolina under North Carolina General Siatute 153A-10. As required by generaily accepted accotinting
principles, these financial statements present the County and its component units, legally-separate entities for
which the County is financially accountable. The Duplin County Water Districts (the “Districts”), which have a June
30" year-end, are presented as if they were a separate proprietary fund of the County (blended presentation).
The Districts do not issue separate financial statements. Duplin County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control
Financing Authority (the Authority) exists to issue and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for
economic development purposes. The Authority has no financial transactions or account balances; therefore, it is
not presented in the basic financial statements. The Duplin County Tourism Development Authority has elected
hot to issue separate financial statements, but to include all relevant information required by generally accepted
accounting principles as supplementary information in the County's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Reporting | Separate
Component Unit Method Criteria Tor Inclusion Financial Statements
Duplin County Water Blended Under State law [NCGS 162A-89], None issued
District the Ceunty’s board of commissioners

also serve as the governing board
for the District.

Duplin County Ihdustrial Discrete The Authority is governed by a six- None issued
Facility and Pollution member board of commissioners
Contral that is appointed by the County
Financing Authority commissioners. The County can

remove any commissioner of the
Authority with or without cause.
Duplin County Tourism Discrete The Authority exists to promote None issued
Development Authority fourism  within  the county. The
County commissioners appointed the
original governing board of the
Authority.  All new members to the
board are now nominated and
selecied by the Authority board, but
subject to the approval of the County
Commissionears,

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These statemenis include the financial
activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are financed through faxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

The statement of activities presenis a comparison hetween direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's govemmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular functicn. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipienis of
goods or services offered by the programs and {b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a patlicular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including
its fiduciary funds and blended compohent units. Separate statements for each fund category — govemmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as nor-major funds,

Proprietary fund operating revenuss, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange fransaciions are those in which sach party receives and gives up
essentially equal values, Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, resuli from non-
exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
The County reporis the following major governmental funds:
General Fund: This is the County's primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Capital Reserve Fund
is a legally budgeted fund under North Carolina General Statutes; however, for statement presentation in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 54 it is consolidated in the General Fund,
The County reports the following major enterprise funds:
Airport Commission Fund: This fund is used tc account for the operations of the County airport.
Water Debt Service 2072 Limijted Obligation Bond Fund: This fund is used to account for the County's
purchase of the water district's refunding bonds and the fimited obligation bond debt that was issued to
finance the purchase of the water district refunding bonds.

Water Fund: This fund is used to account for the operations of the County water districts.

-48 -



Duplin County, Neorth Carolina

Notes o Financial Statemenis

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds: Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
Agency funds are used io account for assets the County holds on behalf of oihers. The County maintaing the
following agency funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of
Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the County Agency Fund which accounts for monies
deposited for various cooperative extension programs, sheriff execution monies collected from individuals and
businesses, the jait inmate trust funds, and the County attorney’s trust fund; the Motor Vehicle 3% Interest Fund,
which accounts for the three percent interest on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County
is required to remit to the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles; the Motor Vehicie Tax Fund, which
accounts for registered motor vehicle property taxes that are hilled by the State and collected by the State and the
County for various municipalities within the County but that are not revenues to the County; the Register of Deeds
Fund which accounis for the $5 of each fee collected by the register of deeds for registering a deed of frust or
mortgage; and the Board of Ecducaticn Fines and Forfeitures Fund which accounts for various legal fines and
forfeitures required to be remitted fo the Board of Education.

Internal Service Fund: This fund is used io acccunt for the County's participation in the seif-insured hospital
insurance plan.

Non-major Funds: The Emergency Telephone System Fund, Auiomation Enhancement and Preservation Fund,
Revaluation Fund, Community Development Revolving L.oan Fund, School Planning Allocation Fund, Fire District
Fund, CDBG 12-C-2484 Fund, COBG 12-C-2414 Fund, CDBG 11-C-2282 Fund, and County Trust Fund, are
reported as non-major special revenue funds. The Industrial Expansion Capital Project Fund, Capital Project
School Fund, and Capital Project JSCC Fund are reported as a non-major capital project funds. The
Transportation Development Plan Fund, and Solid Waste Fund are reported as non-major enterprise funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the vear using
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiducfary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving} equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues ihclude 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating fiems. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ohgoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of
tap fees intended to recover the cost of gonnecting new customers fo the water and sewer system. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Stafements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensaled absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capiial asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are repotted as other financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are coliected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not susceptibie ta
accrual. At June 30" taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013,
State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles
in North Carclina. Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible fer billing and
collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts.
Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which
they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2014 and for limited
registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of
resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmentat revenues and sales and
services are not susceptibie to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and
all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain procgrams by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. it is the County’s
policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants,
and then by genheral revenues.

Budgetary Dala

The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is
adopted for the general, special revenue (exciuding the Capital Reserve and Grant projects), and the enterprise
funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year end. Project ordinances are adopted for the Capital
Projects, Capital Reserve, Grant projects, and Enterprise Capital Project funds. The Enterprise Capital Project
funds are consolidated with the enterprise operating funds for reporting purposes.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is consistent with the accounting
system used to record transacticns. Expenditures may not legalty exceed appropriations at the functional level for
all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. Amendments by the board are
required for any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by
rmore than $10,000. The County manager may move up to $10,000 between line items appropriations and must
provide a list of such changes to the Board at the next meetihg. The governing board must approve all
amendments. During the year, several amendmenis to the original budget were necessary. The budget
ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget to
cover that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

A budget calendar is included in the North Carolina General Statutes, which prescribes the last day on which
certain steps of the budget procedure are to be performed. The following schedule lists the tasks to be performed
and the date by which each is required to be compieted.

April 30 Each department head will transmit to the budget officer the departmental budgel requests and
revenue esfimates for the budget year.

June t The budget and the budget message shall be submitted to the governing board. The public
hearing on the budget should be scheduled at this time.

July 1 The budget ordinance shall be adopted by the governing board.

As required by State law [G.5. 158-26(d)], the County maintains encumbrance accounts, which are considerad to
be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances ouistanding at vear-end represent the estimated amounts of the
expenditures ultimately {o result if unperfermed contracts in progress at year-end are completed. Encumbrances
oufstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County and the Duplin County Tourism Development Authority are made in board-designated
official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County may designate as an official
depository any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County
and Tourism Development Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW
accolnts, money market accounts, and cetrtificates of deposit.

State taw [G.5. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County and the Tourism Development Authority fo invest in obligations
of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as fo principal and interest by the United States:
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public
authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper
and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

The County’s investments are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is
the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized
cost. Non-participating interest earnings and investment coniracts are reported at cost,

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

The County pools monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and invesiment and maximize investment
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash
equivalents. Duplin County Tourism Development Authority considers demand deposits and investments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less and which are not limited as to use to be cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted Assels

Customer deposits held by the Ceounty before any services are supplied are restricted to the service for which the
deposit was collected. In the Solid Waste Fund, funds have been restricted fo provide for future environmental
contingencies. Money in the Tax Revaluation Fund is also classified as restricted assets because its use is
restricted per North Carolina General Statute 153A-150. Money in the Schoeol Planning Allocation Fund is
classified as restricled assets because ifs use is restricted to education by the North Carolina Public School
Building Capital Fund. Restricted cash and cash equivalents consists of the following at June 30, 2015:

Governmental Activities:

Revaluation Fund - G.S. 1563A-150 3 894,985

School Planning Allocation Fund - Public School

Building Capital Fund 2,304,540
Total governmental activities 3,199,535

Busingss-type Activities:
Customer Deposits:

Water Fund 387 685
Solid Waste Fund 800
Total restricted fo customer deposits 388,485
Solid Waste Fund - environmental contingencies 1,070,055
Total business-type activities $ 1,468,540

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

in accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County ievies ad valorem taxes on properiy
other than motor vehicles on July 1%, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1% (lien
date); however, penalties and interast do not accrue until the following January 6", These taxes are based on the
assessed values as of January 1, 2014,

Alfowance for Doubtful Accounis

All receivables that historically experience uncallectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. The amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

Inventory and Prepaid fems

The inventories of the County are valued at average cost, which approximates market. The County's General
Fund inventory consists of expendable suppiies that are recorded as expenditures when purchased. The
inventory of the County's enterprise funds consists of materials and supplies held for consumption or resale. The
cost of the inventory carried in the County's enterprise funds is recorded as ah expense as it is consumed or sold.
Occagionally, certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable o future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Capital Asseis

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets
are recorded af their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The County's minimum capitaiization amount for
capital assets is $5,000¢. Certain items acquired before July 1, 1970, are recorded at an estimated historical cost.
The total of such estirmates is not considered large enough that errors woulld be material when the capital assets
are considered as a whole. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add fo the value of the asset
of materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Useful Life
Water pianis and distribution systems 50 years
Airport terminals and runways 20 to 50 years
Building and improvements 10 to 50 years
Equipment 10 vears
Vehicies 5 years

Beferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outfiows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Quiflows of Resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future periced and sc will not be recognized as an expense or
expenditure until then. The County has a couple of items that meet this criterion — a deferred loss on refunding of
debt, pension related deferrals, and contributions made to the pension plan in the current fiscal year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position can also report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial staterment element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The
County has several items that meeti the criterion for this category — taxes receivable, accounis receivable, and
prepaid taxes, and other nension related deferrals..

Long-term Obligations

In the govermment-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net positicn.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the County and the Tourism Development Autherity provides for the accumulation of up to
thirty days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when eamed. For the County's government-
wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related
payments are recerded as the leave is earned.

The sick leave policies of the County and Tourism Development Authority provide for an unlimited accumulation
of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement
may be used in the defermination of length of service for retirement benefit purpeses. Since neither entity has
any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, ho accrual for sick leave has been made.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net investment in
capital assets; resiricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represenis constraints on resources that are
either externaily imposed by creditors, grantors, contribuiors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
{(a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,

Inventories - portion of fund balance is not an available resource because it represents the vear-end
balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes revenue sources that are restricted fo specific purposes
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization of State Statute — portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute
[GS 159-8(a)l.

Restricted for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to pay for
the computer equipment and imaging technology for the Register of Deeds office.

Restricted for Federaily Seized Assets — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source to
pay for public safety expenditures,

Restricted for Grants/Projects — portion of fund balance that is restricied by revenue source to pay for
grant related expenditures or remaining portion of projects in process.

Restricted for Health — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for health services to
citizens.

Restricted for Economic Development — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for
economic and physical development activities.

Restricted for Sheriff — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for sheriff
expenditures.

Restricted for Daycare — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for daycare services.

Restricted for Schools — portion of fund balance that can only be used for School Capital per G.8. 159-18-
22.

Restricted for E-911 — portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for emergency
services.

Restricted for Tax Revaluation — portion of fund balance that can only be used for tax revaluation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGRNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Commitied Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purpose imposed by Duplin
County’s govermning body.

Committed for Capital Improvements — portion of fund balance thai can only be used for capital
improvements.

Committed for Debt Service — portion of fund balance that can only be used for debt service.

Commitied for Economic Development — poriion of fund balance in the Community Development
Revelving Loan Fund that can only be used for economic development activities.

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that Duplin County's gaoverning body has budgeted.

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year's budget
that is not already classified in restricted or committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Portion of fund balance ihat has not been restricted, commitied, or assigned to
specific purposes or other funds.

Puplin County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources.
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local
non-county funds, and county funds. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent
from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and lastly,
unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best
interest of the County,

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTARBILITY

Dieficit Fund Balance in an Individual Fund

As of June 30, 2015, the Fire District Fund had a deficit fund balance of $1,036. This is a result of the County

remitting all prepaid tax collections to the fire districis prior to the tax collections being recognized as revenue.
This will be remedied during the year ending June 30, 20186.
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NOTE 3 — RECONCILIATION OF COVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide sfafement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - {otal governmental funds
and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. The net
adjustment of $10,927 850 consists of several elements as follows:

Descripfion Amount
Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 23,712,546
Internal service fund activities fo benefit governmental activities 2,802,597
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resourcas and are therefore not reported in the fund statements.
Historical cost of capital assets 39,912,323
Accumulated depreciation (18,166,685)
Capital assets, net 21,745 638
Net pension asset 1,829,559
Deferred inflows of resources reported in the fund statements bui not
the government-wide statements.
Unavailable taxes receivable, net 1,523,321
Unavailable accounts receivable, net 8,133,811
Total 9,657,132
Coniributions io pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred
outflows of resources on the Statement of Activities 1,257,508
Pension related deferrals (4,098,342}
Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current
period, do naot require current resources to pay and are therefore not
reported in the fund staiements.
Compensated absences (1,176,951)
Other post-employment benefits (10,210,264)
Law enforcement officers’ special separation
allowance (637,439)
Notes payable (10,012,318)
Accrued interest payable (331,270)
Total (22,268,240)
Total adjustment 10,927 850
Net position of governmental activities $ 34,640,398
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NOTE 3 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

Explanation of certain differences befween the governmental fund statement of revenues, expendifures,
and changes in fund balance and the government-wide si{atement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — fotal governmental funds and changes in net position of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of aclivities. The {oial adjustment of
$1,286,407 is comprised of the following:

Description Amount
Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 3 2,578 851
Internal service fund activities to benefit governmental activities 77,460
Cost of disposed capital asset not recorded in fund statements (77,388)

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but
capitalized as assets in the government-wide statements 820,974

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful
lives, that is recorded in the Statement of Activities but not in the fund
statements (1,444,213)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds in the
fund statements but only the Statement of Net Position in the
government-wide statements. 1,448,897

Decrease in inveniory on hand (22.103)

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not
included in the Statement of Activities 1,257,508

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the
use of current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the
fund staiements

Compensated absences {21,168)
Other post-employment benetits {1,208,737)
Law enforcement officers’ special separation allowance (79,372}
County portion of colleclive pension expense (138,001)
Interest expense 4910
Amortization of premiums received on ceriificates of participation 67,827

Revenues reported in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund statements

Unavailable ad valorem tax revenue (536,986}
Unavailable revenue related to public safety 492 454
Unavailable revenue related to economic and physical development 152 156
Unavailable revenue related to human services 508,7¢2
Unavailable revenue related to cultural and recreational {15,403)
Total adjustments , 1,286,407
Change in net positich of governmental activities 3 3,865,258
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS

All of the County and Tourism Development Authority’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one
of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage
level are collateralized with securities held by the County's or the Tourism Development Authority’'s agents in
these units' names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a coliateral pcol, all uninsured deposits are collateralized
with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer
is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County and Tourism Development Authority, these deposits are considered
to be held by their agents in the entities' names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved
averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits.
Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adeguacy of their pooled collateral
covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not canfirm this information with the County, the Tourism
Development Authority, or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of coliateral
pledged for the County or Tourism Development Authority under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
under collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of
North Caroiina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits
under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The
County and Tourism Development Authority rely on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The
County and Tourism Development Authority analyze the financial scundness of any other financial institution used
by the County or Tourism Development Authority. The County and Tourism Development Authority comply with
the provisions of G.&. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly
secured. Neither the County nor Tourisin Development Authority has a policy regarding custodial credit risk for
deposits.

At June 30, 2015 the carrying amount of the County's deposits was $3,637,529 and the bank balance was
$4,705,105. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $4,455,105 was
covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2015 the County had $30,165 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2015 the carrying amount of the Tourism Development Authority’s deposits was $1,000 and the bank
balance was $22,016. The entire bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance at June 30, 2015,

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS

The County's investments in the North Carclina Capital Management Trust are exempt from risk categorization
because the County does not own any identifiable securities in these mutual funds. At June 30, 2015, the
County’s investment balances consisted of $29,577,222 held in the North Carolina Capital Management Cash
Portfolio, which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The County has neo policy regarding
credit risk.

At June 30, 2015, the Tourism Development Authority's investments consisted of $398,379 in the North Carolina

Capital Management Trust's Cash Portfolio, which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The
Authority has no policy on credit risk.

-58 -



Duplin County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 6 ~ PROPERTY TAX — USE VALUE ASSESSMENT ON CERTAIN LANDS

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at
the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation,
the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal years, along
with the accrued interest from the originat due date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following are
property taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been
recorded In the financial statements.

Year Levied Tax interest Total
2014 5 3,564,937 § 204985 § 3,769,922
2011-2013 10,371,329 2,456,558 12,827 887
Totals 3 13,936,266 $ 2,661,543 $%16,597,809

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at the government-wide leve! at June 30, 2015, were as follows;

Due from
Other
Governmental Activities: Accounts Taxes Governments Other Total
General $ 10,836,012 52,289,835 § 2,186,541 § - $ 15,412,388
Other funds 317,860 44 308 451,907 839,581 1,653,656
Totals 11,253,872 2,334,143 2,638,448 839,581 17,066,044
Allowance for doubtful accounts {2,547 538) (810,668) - - (3,358,206)
Receivables, net 3 8,706,334 $1,523475 $ 2638448 § 839,581 $ 13,707,838
Due from
Other
Business-fype Activities: Accounts Taxes Governmentis Other Total
Airport $ 34,103 § - % -5 - $§ 34103
County Water Fund 521,997 - 105,910 - 627,907
Solid Waste Fund 741,801 - 32,948 - 774,747
Transportation 32,542 - - - 32,542
Totals 1,330,443 - 138,858 - 1469292
Allowance for doubtful accounts - - - - -
Receivables, net % 1,330,443 § - $ 138,856 § - $ 1,469,299

The Tourism Development Authority’s receivables are accounts receivable. Management expects all accounts
receivabie to be collected; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded.
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NOTE 7 — RECEIVABLES (continued)

Due from other governments at June 30, 2015 consists of the following:

Governmental  Business-type
Description Activities Activities
Sales tax refunds $ 205129 % -
Local option sales taxes 2,015,388 -
Video programming distribution 6,085 -
White goods disposal taxes - 4,293
Scrap tire disposal taxes - 20,385
Solid waste disposal taxes - 8,268
Grants 411,836 105,810
Totals $ 2,638,448 § 138,856
NOTE 8§ - CAPITAL ASSETS
Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:
Beginning
Governmental Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 2460144 § 400 % - $ 2,460,544
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 25,757,380 42,762 {81,708) 25,718,434
Equipment 5,754,991 317,987 (158,477) 6,814,501
Vehicles 4,552,352 563,850 (297,358) 4,618,844
Total capital assets being
depreciated 37,064,723 924,599 (537,543) 37,451,779
lLess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 8,819,137 572,185 - 9,391,332
Equipment 5,027,337 356,296 {102,734) 5,280,899
Vehicles 3,232,118 515,722 {253,386) 3,494 454
Total accumuiated depreciation 17,078,592 1,444 213 (356,120) 18,166,685
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 19,988,131 19,285,094
Governmental activities capital
assets, net 22 A48 275 $ 21745638
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NOTE 8 — CAPITAL ASSETS (continuad)
Frimary Government Bepreciation Expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government b 96,618
Public safety 820,901
Economic and physical development 116,547
Human services 140,735
Cultural and recreational 263,354
Environmental protection 6,058

Total depreciation expense $ 1,444213

Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning
Waier Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land § 388,798 § - $ - $ 388,798
Construction in progress 4 924 807 215,294 - 5,140,101
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 5,313,605 215,294 - 5,528,899
Capital assets being depreciated: _
Plants and distribution systems 53,832,008 546,011 - 54,378,017
Equipment 132,649 - - 132,649
Vehicles 151,870 24 938 - 176,808
Total capital assets being
depreciated 54,116 525 570,549 - 54,687,474
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plants and distribution systems 14,368,472 1,076,640 - 15,445 112
Eguipment 119,664 4,859 - 124,523
Vehicles 115,473 12,700 - 128,173
Total accumulated depreciaticn 14,603 609 1,094,199 - 15,697,808
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 39,512,916 38,989,666
Water activities capital assels, net % 44 826 521 $ 445185865
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Beginning
Transportation Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment $ 102,498 $ - $ - $ 102,498
Vehicles 618,395 167,779 (138,078) 548,096
Total capital assets being
depreciated 720,893 167,779 (138,078) 750,594
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment 70,261 10,250 - 80,511
Vehicles 347 571 107,033 (138,078) 316,526
Total accumulated depreciation 417 832 117,283 (138,078) 397 037
Transportation activities capiia
assets, net 3 303,061 $ 353,557
Beginning
Alrport Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3 556,451 § - 3 - $ 556,451
Construction in progress 2,882 133,655 - 136,537
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 559,333 133,655 - 692,988
Capital assets being depreciated:
Terminal and runways 14,680,319 - - 14,680,319
Equipment 461,447 - - 461,447
Vehicles 29,787 - - 29,787
Total capital assets being
depreciated 15,171,553 - - 15,171,553
Less accumulated depreciation for
Terminal and runways 6,504 737 576,785 - 7,084 522
Equipment 388,085 8,480 - 396,575
Vehicles 29,787 - - 29,787
Total accumuiated depreciation 6,922 619 588,265 - 7,510,884
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 8,248 934 7,660,669
Airport activities capital asseis, net $ 3.808,267 $ 8,353,657
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Beginning
Solid Waste Aciivities Balances [ncreases Cecreases  Ending Balances
Capital asseis not being depreciated:
Land 3 216,348 § - 3 - $ 216,348
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,515,323 39,100 - 3,554,423
Equipment 1,121,184 - (10,000} 1,111,184
Vehicles 1,235,266 209,041 - 1,444,307
Total capital assets being
depreciated 5871,773 248,141 (10,000) 6,109,914
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,136,268 62,152 . 1,198,450
Equipment 797,059 67,782 {10,000) 854,841
Vehicles 1,058,804 68,241 - 1,128,045
Total accumulated depreciation 2,992 161 199,175 {10,000) 3,181,336
Total capiial assets being
depreciated, net 2,878,612 2,928,578
solid Waste activities capital assets,
net 5 3,005,960 $ 3,144,926

NOTE 9 — CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The Ceounty has active construction projects at June 30, 2015. These projects include water system
improvements and other capital improvemenis.

At vear-end, the County's commitments with contractors are as foliows:

Contract Remaining
Project Amount Commitment
Airport Terminzal Buiiding:
United Buiiders Group $ 1,488,557 § 81,052
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NOTE 1¢ - PAYABLES

Payables at the government-wide level at June 3G, 2015, were as follows:

Salaries and
Employee Accrued
Governmental Activities Vendors Benefits Interest Total
General 3 818278 % - $ 331,270 % 1,149,548
Other governmental funds 307,928 - - 307,928
Total governmental activities $ 1,126,206 % - 3 331,270 % 1,457 476
Salaries and
Employee Accrued
Business-type Activities Vendors Benefits interest Total
Adrport % 2445 § - $ - $ 2,445
County Water Fund 25212 - - 252,012
Solid Waste Fund 74,453 - - 74,453
Transportation 241 - - 241
Total business-type activities g 328,151 % - $ - $ 329,151

KOTE 11 — PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS
Local Governmental Employee’s Retirement System

Pian Description: Duplin County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
{LGERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Caralina.
LEGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of
participating iocal governmental entities. Asticle 3 of G.8. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the
LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members ~ nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by
ihe state Senate, one appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State
Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Government Employees' Retirement System is
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's
CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carclina 27668-
1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454 or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided: LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefiis are determined as
1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service. A member's
average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive years of
compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of
creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.
Plan members are eligible to refire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or
at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Surviver benefits are available to eligible
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who
have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardiess of age (15 years of creditable service for
firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or have completed five vears of service
and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elact to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for
life or a return of the member’'s contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit
increases. Increases are continent upon actuarial gains of the plan.
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LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with ful retirement benefits at age 55 with five years of
creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditabie service. LEO plan members are eligible
to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer. Survivor
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEG members who die while in active service or within 180 days
of their last day of service and who alsc have either completed 20 years of creditable services regardless of age,
or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of
creditable service as a LEQ and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO
if kiled in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries my elect io receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life
or a return of the member’s contributions.

Contributions: Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only by
the North Carolina General Assembly. County employees are required to contribute 6% of their compensation.
Employer contributions are acluarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The
County's confractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was7.41% of compensation for
law enforcement officers and 7.07% for general employees, actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions, is expecied to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $1,370,781 for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Refunds of Confributions. County employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS,
may file an application for a refund of their coniributions. By state law, refunds to members with st least five years
of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service termination before the
refund may be paid. The accepiance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right to employer contributions
or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Oulflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the County reported an asset of $1,899,279 for its proporticnate share of the net pension asset.
The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2014. The total pension liability used fo calculate the net
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2013. The total pension liability was
then rolled forward fo the measurement date of June 30, 2014 utilizing update procedures incorporating the
actuarial assumgptions. The Couniy's proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the
County’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll
covered by the pension plan of ail participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014 the
County’s proportion was .3121%, which was an increase of .010% from its proporiion measured as of June 30,
2013.
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NOTE 11 — PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS {continued}

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the County recognized pension expense of $156,743. At June 30, 2015, the
County reported deferred cutflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related o pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred

Cutflows of  Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - 5 207,529
Net differences between projected and actual eamings
on pension plan investments - 4,421,476
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proporiionate share of contributions 150,295 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 1,370,791 -

Total $ 1,521,086 % 4,629,005

$1,370,791 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Other amounis reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 (1,115,713)
2017 (1,118,713)
2018 (1,119,713)
2018 (1,119,670)

Total 3 (4,478,709)

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2013 actuarial vaiuation was determined
using the following actuariat assumptions, applied to all perfods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 425 to 8.55 percent, including inflation and productivity
factor

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
inciuding inflation

The plan currently uses morialily tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement
officer) and heaith status {i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables
and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also
contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an actuatial
experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in
the measurement.
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The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical
performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S.
Treasury vield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for muiéiple tenors and
over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity
risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Qther asset categories and strategies’ refurn projections
reflect the forgoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
refurn for each major asset class as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Ciass Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed Income 36.0% 2.5%
Globat Eguity 40.5% 6.1%
Real Estate 8.0% 5.7%
Alternatives 6.5% 10.5%
Credit 4.5% 6.8%
Inflation Protection 4.5% 3.7%

Total 100.0%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consuiting actuary for the 2013 assat
liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systams, including LGERS. The long-term
nominal rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by muitiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation
assumption of 3.18%. All rates of return anc inflation are annualized.

A new asset allocation policy was finalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 to be effective July 1,
2014. The new asset allocation policy utilizes different asset classes, changes in the structure of certain asset
classes, and adopts new benchmarks. Using the asset class categories in the preceding table, the new long-term
expected arithmetic real rates of retumn are: Fixed Income 2.2%, Global Eaquity 5.8%, Real Estate 5.2%,
Alternatives 9.8%, Credit 6.8%, and Inflation Protection 3.4%.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current contribution rate and that coniributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,
actuarizlly determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
he available to make all projected future henefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Couniy’s proportionate share of the net pension asset fo changes in the discount rate: The
following presents the County’'s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of
7.25 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point icwer (6.25 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate:
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NOTE 11 — PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued)

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) {7.25%) (8.25%)
County's proportionate share of the net pension Hability
(asset) $ 5446970 § 1,899,277y $  (8,926,549)

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detafled information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of Norih
Carolina.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description: Duplin County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides refirement benefits ic the County's qualified sworn law
enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is egual ic 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate
of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for sach year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement aflowances that may be authorized by the General
Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembily. For reporting purposes, the Separation Allowance is presented as a pension
trust fund; however, it does not meet the criteria for trust funds outlined in GASB Statement 68.

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allewance. At December 31, 2014,
the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of;

Relirees receiving benefits 5
Active plan members 77
Total 82

A separate report was nof tssued for the plan.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accouniing. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis.
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Method Used fo Value fnvestments. No funds are sef aside to pay benefits and adminisiration costs. These
expenditures are paid as they come due.

Contributions

The County is reguired by Arficle 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to
fund the benefit paymenis on a pay as you go basis through apprepriations made in the General Fund operating
budget. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly. There were no contributions made by employees.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2014 actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.00%
investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses) and {b) projected salary increase ranging from 4.25% to
7.85% per year. Both {a) and (b} included an inflation component of 3.00%. The assumptions did not include’
post-retirement benefit increases.
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NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The County's annual pension cost and net pension obligation
to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Employer annual required coniribution $ 138,972
Interest on net pension obligation 22,903
Adjustment to annual required confribution {38,655}
Annual pension cost 123,180
Employer contributions made (43,808}
Increase in net pension obligation 79,372
Net pension obtligation, beginning of year 458,067
Net pension obligation, end of year $ 537,439

Funded Stafus and Funding Progress

3 Year Trend Information

Annual
Pension Cost  Percentage of Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ended (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2015 $ 123,180 35.56% § 537,439
June 30, 2014 93,189 58.74% 458,067
June 30, 2013 107,136 52.68% 419,617

As of December 31, 2014, the most recent valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liabiity
for benefits was $984,690, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
fiability (UAAL) of $984,690.

The covered payroll {annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan} was $3,111,387, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 31.65%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as reguired supplementary information following the netes to the
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time reiative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement ofiicers employed by the County. Article 5 of G,S. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Supplemental Retirement income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund
financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the
State Centroller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27698-1410, or by calling ($19) 981-5454.

Funding Policy, Article 12E of G.5. Chapter 143 reguires the County o confribute each month an amount egual to
five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions {o the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2015 were $283,691, which includes $153,738 from the County and $46,331 from the law enforcement officers.
fn addition, $83,671 was contributed to the plan by employees who were not iaw enforcement officers and were
ineligible for the County’s five percent contribution.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenus
Code Section 457. The plan, which is available to all County empioyees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death, or unforeseeable emergency.

Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Duplin County also contribuies to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund
(RODSPF), a noncontributory, defined berefit plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State
Treasurer. The RODSPF provides supplemnental pensicn benefits to any eligible county register of deeds that is
retired under the Local Government Employees' Retirement System {(LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored
plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend henefit provisions to the North
Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consisis
of 13 members — nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state
House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and the State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio
members. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27698-
1410, or by calling (819) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided: An individual's benefits for the year are calculated as a share of accumulated contributions
available for benefits for that year, subject to ceriain statutory limits. An individual's eligibility is based on at least
10 years of service as a register of deeds with the individual's share increasing with years of service. Because of
the statutory limits noted above, not all contributions available for benefits are distributed.

Contributicns: Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 1.5% of the receipts
collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 181 of the North Carolina General Staiutes.
The statutory contribution currently has no relationship to the actuary’s required contribution. The actuariaily
determined contribution this year and for the foreseeable future is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute.
Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 161-50 and may be amended only by the North
Carclina General Assembly. Caontributions to the pension plan from the County were $4,877 for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related fo Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the County reported an asset of $86,071 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset.
The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2014. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2013, The total pension liability was
then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2014 utilizing update procedures incorporating the
actuarial assumptions. The County's proportion of the nef pension asset was based on the County’s share of
contributions to the pension plan, relative to contributions to the pensien plan of all participating RODSPF
emplayers. At June 30, 2014, the County's proportion was .41%, which is a decrease of .01% from s proportion
measured as of June 30, 2013.
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the County recognized pension expense of $(4,231). At June 30, 2015, the
County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred
Qutflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
- Differences between expected and actual experience $ 863 % -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan invesiments - 508
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contribuiions and proportionate share of contributions - 4,053
Couniy contributions subsequent to measurement date 4 877 -
Total 3 5740 § 4,558

$4.877 reported as deferred oufflows of resources related {o pensions resulting from County contributions
subseguent fo the measurement date will be recognrized as an increase of net pension asset in the year ended
June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2016 (1,577)
2017 (1,577)
2018 (417)
2019 (127)

Total $ (3,698)

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuariat assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement;

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 425 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity
factor

Invesiment rate of return 575 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement
officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables
and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also
contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2013 valuation were based cn the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009.

Future ad hoc COLA amounis are not considered io be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in
the measurement.
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NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN CBLIGATIONS (continued)

The projected fong-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consuitant whitepapers, and historicat
performance of invesiment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S.
Treasury yield curve and market expectations of farward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and
over mulfiple year horizons. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of returmn by
weighting the expected future real rates of retum by the target asset aliocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF is 100% in the fixed income asset class.
The best estimate of arithmetic real rate of retumn for the fixed income asset as of June 30, 2014 is 2.5%.

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2013 asset
liability and investment policy study for the Narth Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term
nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of
return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.19%.
All rates of return and inflation are annuatized.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the fotal pension fability was 5.75%. The projection of cash
fiows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected o be
available to make all projecied future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Couniy’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate: The
following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of
5.75 percent, as well as what the County's proportionate share of the net pension asset would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower {4.75 percent) or 1-percentage-peint higher (6.75
percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.75%) {5.75%) (6.75%)
County's proportionate share of the net pension iability
{asset) $ (84,404) % (93,996) % {102,240}

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Defailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is

available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financiali Report (CAFR) for the State of North
Carolina.

HOTE 12 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

Healthcare Benefifs

Plan Description. Under County policy, Duplin County provides post-employment healthcare benefits through a
single-employer defined benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (HCB Plan) to retirees of the County who participate in
the Nerth Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System {System) and participated in the health
insurance plan for twelve months and have at least twenty-five years {or ten years if hired before August 18,
2008} of non-continuous ful-time employment with Duplin County immediately preceding retirement, twalve
months of which may be represented by accumulated sick leave as calculated by the System. Also, the County
retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the County's group rates. The Board of Commissioners
may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the plan.
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Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2013, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:

Retirees and dependents receiving bengfits 67
Active plan members - general 431
Active plan members - law enforcement officers 67
Total 565

Funding Policy. The Board of Commissicners established and may amend the contribution requirements of plan
members. The County members pay an average of $558 per month for coverage. The County has chosen to fund
the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current annual required contribution (ARC) rate is 8.87% of annual covered payrali. For the current year, the
County contributed $343,428 or 1.88% of annual covered payroll. The County is self-insured for healthcare
coverage with stop loss claims over $75,000 through private insurers. The County’s abligation to contribute to
HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the Board of Commissioners.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-empleyment expenditures are made from the General Fund,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Ohbiigation. The County’'s annual OPEB cost (expense) is caiculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASE Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is
projected to cover narmal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over
a peried not to exceed thirty vears.

The following table shows the components of the County’s annual OPEB cost for the current year, the amount

actually contributed to the plan, and changas in the County’s net OPERB obligation for the post-employment
healthcare benefits:

Employer annual required contribution $ 1,609,782
Interest on net OPEB obligation 394,067
Adjustment to annual reguired contribution {338,744)
Annual OPEB cost 1,665,095
Empioyer contributions made (343,428}
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,321,667
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 9,851,432
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 3 11,173,099

3 Year Trend Information

Percentage of

Annual OPEE  Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended Cost Cost Contribuied Obligation
June 30, 2015 $ 1,665,095 20.63% $§ 11,173,088
June 30, 2014 1,578,280 21.10% 9,851,432
June 30, 2013 1,667,795 12.00% 8,606,577
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NOTE 12 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued fiability
(UAAL) was $17,047,724. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$17,727,593 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 86.20%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made aboui the fuilre. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary infortmation following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-
year frend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial acerued liabiity for benefits,

Actuarial Methods and Assumplions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan {the plan as undersiood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed fo reduce the effecis of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions include a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the
expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level
of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend varied between 7.75% and 5.00% annually.
Both rates included a 3.00% inflation assumption. The aciuarial value of assets, of any, was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 5 year period.
The UAAL is being amoriized as a level percentage of projected pay on an open basis. The remaining
amortization period at December 31, 2013, was 30 years.

NOTE 13 — OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of
the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-
administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who
die in aclive service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System
at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal
to the employee's 12 highest month’s salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the
benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the
Death Benefit Plan. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions
to the Death Benefit Pian cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other
benefit amount. The County considers these contributions to be immaterial.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the County was not required to make contributions to the Death Benefit
Plan. Due to a surplus in the death benefit, & decision was made by the State o temporarily stop employer
contributions io the LGERS Death Benefit Plan beginning July 1, 2012. A temporary relief period based on the
number of years the employer has contributed as of December 31, 2010 was established as follows:

Number of Years Fiscal Year
Contributing Years of Relief  Contributions Resume
10 — 20 years 2 2015
20 or more years 3 2016
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NOTE 13 - OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

The period of reprieve is determined separately for law enforcement officers. Duplin County will have a three year
reprieve because it has been contributing for more than 20 years, Contributions will resume in the fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2015,

NOTE 14 - DEFERRED QUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred
Outlows of  Deferred [nflows
Governmental Activities Rescurces of Resolrces
Pensions - difference between expected and
actual experience
LGERS $ - $ 189,640
Register of Deeds 863
Pensions - difference between projecied and
actual investment earnings
LGERS 4,040,345
Register of Deeds 536
Pensions - change in proportion and difference
between empicyer contributions and proportionate
share of contributicns
LGERS 137,340
Register of Deeds . 4,053
Pensions - County coniributions subsequent to the
measurement date
LGERS 1,252,629
Register of Deeds 4,877
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General} 91,712
Prepaid taxes not yei earned (Special Revenue) 1,193
Totals $ 1,395709 §$ 4,327 449
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MOTE 14 ~ DEFERRED QUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (continued)

Deferred
Qutlows of  Deferred Inflows
Business-fype Activities Resources of Resources
Deferred loss on refunding of debt $ 235697 % -
Pensions - difference between expected and
actual experience
LGERS (Water) ' 4,732
LGERS (Transportation) 3,507
LGERS (Airport) 1,432
LGERS {Solid Wasie) 8218
Pensions - difference between projected and
actual investment earnings
LGERS (Water) 100,810
LGERS (Transportation) 74,723
L GERS (Alirport) 30,508
LGERS (Solid Waste) 175,090
Pensions - change in proportion and difference
between employer contribufions and proportionate
share of contributions
LGERS (Water) 3,427
LGERS (Transportation) 2,540
LGERS (Airport} 1,037
LGERS (Solid Waste) 5,951
Pensions - County confributions subsequent to the
measurement date
LGERS (Water) 31,254
LGERS (Transportation) 23,166
LGERS (Airport) 8,458
LGERS {Solid Waste) 54,284
Totals $ 366814 % 399,020

NOTE 15 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related {o oris; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; error
and ornissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County obtains property insurance coverage
and general liability coverage for these risks through commercial carriers. The County also obtains health
insurance for County employees through a self-insured plan. Based on past experience, management believes
that the County's coverage's are sufficient.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of
the County's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surely bond. The Director of Finance and tax
collector are each individuaily bonded for $100,000 each. The remaining employees that have access to funds
are honded under a blanket bond for $250,000.

The County carries commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from the previous year and settied claims from these risks have not exceeded the total
commercial insurance coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. The County does not carry ficod insurance
as there doesn’{ appear to be any exposure to County-owned properiies,
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NOTE 16 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2015, the County was a defendant to various lawsuils, In the opinion of the County's management
and the County attorney, the uliimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
County's financial position.

NOTE 17 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
General Obligation Indebtedness

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County’s Water Districts are collateralized by the full faith, credit and
taxing power of the County. Duplin County Water Districts issue general obligation bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and construction of major water system capital improvements. These bonds, which are recorded in
sach individual Water District's Fund, are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the Districts.
Principai and interest payments are appropriated when due.

All of the 2012 Advance Refunding Bonds issued by the water districis (blended component unit) were sold to
Duplin County. Due to the blended presentation of the water districts these bonds have been reclassified as Due
from water districis — GO Bonds and Due to County — GO Bonds in the Statement of Fund Net Position (Exhibit
6). Subsequently, these balances, along with the associated investment eamings and interest expense have
been eliminated in the government-wide financial statements (Exhibits 1 and 2)

The County’s limited obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2015 are comprised of the foliowing individual issues:

Limited obligation bonds serviced by the Water Districts:

Water District B - $1,820,000 2012 Advance Refunding Bends due in

annual principal installments ranging from $70,000 o $100,000 plus

semi-annual inferest payments through Juhe 1, 2034; interest at 3.68

percent, 5 1,700,000

Water District D - $3,760,000 2012 Advance Refunding Bonds due in
annual principal installments ranging from $110,000 to $185,000 plus
semi-annual interest payments through June 1, 2037; interest at 3.98
percent. 3,425,000

Water District E - $3,585,000 2012 Advance Refunding Bonds due in

annual principai installments ranging from $95,000 o $120,000 plus

semi-annual interest payments through June 1, 2037; interest at 4.02

percent. 3,290,000

Water District F - $4,275,000 2012 Advance Refunding Bonds due in
annual principal instaliments ranging from $120,000 to $20%,000 plus
semi-annual interest payments through June 1, 2037; interest at 3.97
percent. 3,885,000

Water District G - $2,840,000 2012 Advance Refunding Bonds due in
annual principal installments ranging from $80,000 to $135,000 plus
semi-annual interest paymenis through June 1, 2037, interest at 3.97

percent. 2,590,000
Total general obligation bands 3 14,800,000
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NOTE 17 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {continued)
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County's general obtigation bonds are as foliows:

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal interest

2018 $ 520,000 3 574,681

2017 535,000 559,081

2018 570,000 537,681

2018 585,000 514,881

2020 585,000 503,181

2021-2025 3,230,600 2,240,188

2026-2030 3,725,600 1,646,261

2031-2035 3,790,000 876,000

2036-2037 1,360,000 101,750

14,900,000 % 7,553,704
Unamortized premiums on general obligation bonds 414 495
Total carrying amount of debt $ 15,314,495

As June 30, 2015, BDuplin County had a legai debt margin of $318,061,099.
Notes Pavable

As authorized by state law [G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County has financed various property acquisitions
and improvements through notes payable with the United States Department of Agriculture and the North

Caralina Department of Envircnment and Natural Resources. The County’s notes payable at June 30, 2015 are
comprised of the following individual notes:

Serviced by the County's General Fund:

$11,000,000 2005 United States Department of Agriculture Loan to

finance the construction of the Duplin County Evenis Center; due in

annual installments of $578,270 including interest through 2045; interest

at 4.125 percent. $ 10,012,316
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NOTE 17 — LONG-TERRM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Serviced by the Water Districts:

Water District F - $150,000 1997 North Carolina Clean Water Revolving
Loan to finance water system improvements; due in annual instailments
of $7,500 plus interest through 2018; interest at 2.88 percent. 5 22,500

Water District F - $490,199 1998 North Carolina Clean Water Revolving
Loan to finance water system improvements; due in annual installments
of $24,510 pius interest through 2020; interest at 2.60 percent, 122,550

Albertson vvater Fund - $365,110 2UU1T North Garoiina Uiean vvaier

Revolving Loan to finance water system improvements; due in annual

instaliments of $18,406 plus interest through 2023; interest at 2.87

percent. 147,244

Water District D - $463,507 2010 ARRA Revolving Loan fo finance
water system improvements; due in annual installments of $23,175
through 2030; no stated interest rate. 347,548

Water District E - $183,531 State Revolving Loan to finance water
systemn improverments; due in annual installments of $9,177 through
2034; no stated interest rate. 174,364

Water District F - $2,349,157 State Revolving Loan to finance water
system improvements; due in annual instaliments of $117,421 through
2034; interest at 2.01 percent. 2,231,007

Water District G - $202,554 State Revolving Loan to finance water
system improvements; due in annual installments of $10,128 through
2034: no stated interest rate. 192,426

Water Districts E and G - $646,000 2014 United States Department of

Agriculture Loan te finance the construction of a sewer system near

interstate 40; due in annual instaliments of $29,852 including interest

beginning in 2017 and ending in 2054; interest at 3.25 percent.

Payrments due in 2015 and 2016 are interest only. 646,000
Tota!l business-type activities notes payable $ 3,883,629
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MOTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued}

For Duplin County, the following summarizes the annual requirements for notes payable, including interest of
$7,907,180 for governmental activities and $987,004 for business-type activities:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 165244 $ 413026 $ 210,316 & 73,515
2017 172,080 406,210 218173 70,157
2018 179,157 389,113 216,461 86,127
2019 186,547 381,723 212,258 62,088
2020 194,243 384,027 212,565 58,256
2021-2025 1,008,217 1,793,133 908,428 240,331
2026-2030 1,344,199 1,647,151 862,442 168,844
2031-2035 1,641,277 1,248,073 620,853 98,811
2036-2040 2,013,789 877,561 86,775 62,485
2041-2045 2,464 842 426,508 101,822 47,438
2046-2050 552,741 22,855 119,479 25,781
2061-2054 - - 110,057 8,071
Totals $ 10,012,316 $7907180 % 3883528 $ 987,004

Advance Refunding

On July 12, 2012, the County issued $16,861,772 in general obligation advance refunding bands to provide
resources fo purchase U8, Government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of
general resources for all future debt service payments of $16,593,300 of general obligation bonds in all of the
County’s water disiricts. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability will be
removed from the business-type activities column of the statement of net position beginning with the fiscal year
that began on July 1, 2012. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by
$268,471. This amount is being netted against the new debt and ameortized over the life of the refunded debt
which is shorter than the iife of the new debt issued. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce fotal debt
service payments over the next 25 years by $3,137,797 and resulted in an economic gain of $1,853,412.

Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Current
Beginning Portion of

Governmental Activities Ralances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances Balance

Certificates of pariicipation § 1,357.827 % - $ (1,357.827) § - [3 -
Notes payable 10,171,014 - (158,688) 10,012,316 165,244

Net pension Hability (LGERS) 2,213,853 - (2,213,853) - -

Other post-employment benefit 9,001,527 1,208,737 - 10,210,264 -

Compensated absences 1,155,784 21,167 - 1,176,951 -

LEQ Special Sgparation Allowance 458,067 79,372 - 537,439 .
Total governmental activities $ 24358072 $1,309276 § (3,730,378) B 21,936,870 $ 1857244
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NGTE 17 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Current
Beginning Partion of
Water Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances Balance
Limited obligation bonds 5 15,843,587 % - § (529,092) § 15314495 § 520,000
Notes payable 4,094,869 - {211,040) 3,883,629 210,316
Net pension liability (LGERS) 55,237 - (55,237) - -
QOther post-employment benefit 218,323 35,345 - 254 668 -
Compensated absences 38,450 1,303 - 39,753 -
Total water activities $ 20,251,266 $ 36648 § (795369) § 19492545 § 730,318
Current
Beginning Portion of
Airport Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances Balance
Notes payable $ - 5 - $ - $ - 5 -
Net pension liabkility (L. GERS) 16,717 - (16,717) - -
Other post-employment benefit 67,397 9,361 - 76,758 -
Compensated absences 9,855 - (372) 9,483 -
Total airport activities 3 93,960 §$ 9,361 % (17,088) % 86,241 % -
Current
Beginning Partion of
Solid Waste Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances Balance
Other post-employment benefit $ 400,858 $§ 41,998 % - % 442,857 § -
Net pension fiability (LGERS) 95,939 - (95,939) - -
Compensated absences 59,845 233 - 60,078 -
Total solid waste activities $ 556,642 $ 42232 % (95,939) $% 502,935 % -
Current
Beginning Portion of
Transportation Activities Balances Increases Decreases  Ending Balances Balance
Other post-employment benefit $ 162,327 § 26,226 ¢ - 3 188,553 § -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 40,943 - (40,943} - -
Compensated absences 27,124 - (524) 26,600 -
Total transpaortation activities $ 230,394 § 26,226 % {41,467) § 215153 § -
Total business-type activities $ 21132271 § 114467 § (849864 § 20,296,874 § 730,316

The LGERS plan had a net pension asset as of June 30, 2015; however, the plan had a net pension liability at the

beginning of the fiscal year.

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liguidated in the general fund and are
accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.
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NOTE 18 — CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Duplin County Industrial Facility and Peliution Control Financing Authority have issued industnal revenue bonds to
provide financial assistance io private businesses for economic development purposes. These bonds are
secured by the properties financed as well as letiers of credit and are pavable solely from payments received from
the private businesses served by the bond issuance. The County, the Authority, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accerdingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2015, there were no industrial
revenue bonds outstanding.

NQOTE 19 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Transfers to/from other funds during the year ended June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Transfer Out Transfer in Amount
General Fund Capital Project Fund - School Fund $ 874728
Automation Enhancement and
General Fund Preservation Fund 19,206
General Fund Debt Service Fund 804,645
General Fund Hospital Insurance Fund 350,000
General Fund Airport Commisson Fund 187,614
General Fund Capital Project Fund 4,000
County Water Fund Debt Service Fund 29,852
Capital Project Fund - School Fund Debt Service Fund 1,224,875
Capital Reserve Fund Capital Project Fund 29,403
Water Disirict G & E 1-40 Sewer
Project Fund Debt Service Fund 41,880
Water District G & E 1-40 Sewer
Project Fund County Water Fund 5,180
Airport Commission Fund Ajrport Commission Project Fund 2,619
$ 3574112

The transfers from the General Fund {o the Capital Project Fund — School Fund, the Automation Enhancement
and Preservation Fund, and the Hospital Insurance Fund were made in accordance with the annual budget
ordinance to provide financial resources sufficient to support the objectives of these special revenue, capital
project, and internal service funds.

The transfers to the Debt Service Fund from the General Fund, the Capita!l Project Fund — School Fund, and the
County Water Fund were made to provide sufficient financial resources to make the annual debt paymenis relaied
to the County's certificates of pariicipation and the USDA Evenis Center note payable.

The transfer from the General Fund to the Airport Commission Fund was made in accordance with the annual
budget ordinance to provide operating resources to the Airport.

The transfer from the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Project Fund was made to release funds previously
commitied by the Board of County Commissioners.

The transfer from the Airport Commission Fund to the Airpori Commission Project Fund was made to finance
ongoing projects.
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NOTE 19 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued)

Amounis due toffrom other funds at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Due To Due From Balance

General Fund Ermergency Telephone System Fund $ 761
General Fund Agency Fund 1,901
General Fund Hospital Insurance Fund 700
General Fund Solid Waste Fund 98
Emergency Telephone System Fund  General Fund 467
Solid Waste Fund General Fund 88
Hospital Insurance Fund General Fund 1,250
Hospital Insurance Fund Solid Waste Fund 700

$ 5,965

The balances due beitween the governmental funds are the result of the timing of cash paymenis made between
the funds. The County pools monies from several funds to better facilitate cash receipts and disbursements.
These balances are the residual amounis owed at June 30, 2015,

The balances due between the general fund and the solid waste fund were due to a coding error between funds.

NOTE 20 — NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities
Capital assets $ 21745638 $ 58,370,705
Notes payable (10,012,316} {3,883,629)
Limited obligation bonds - (15,314,495)
Net investment in capital assets $ 11,733,322 3 37,172,581

NOTE 21 - FUND BALANCE

Duplin County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sotrces.
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local
noen-county funds, and county funds. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are fo be spent
from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and lastly,

unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the authority fo deviate from this policy if it is in the best
interest of the County.
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NOTE 21 — FUND BALANCE {continued)

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General fund
halance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 16,692,007
Less:

Inventories 270,487
Stabilization by state statute 3,881,817
Appropriated fund balance in 2016 budget 2,560,129
Federally seized assets 121,040
Grants/projects 141,683
Health 483,125
Sheriff 86,217
Daycare 167
Economic development 581,019
Capital improvements 928,805
Remaining fund balance $ 7,817,518

Puplin County had adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which instructs management to
conduct business of the County in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than
8% of budgeted expenditures.

The oufstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments reiated to purchase orders and
contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

June 30, 2015
Encumbrances:
General Fund 5 597,573

NOTE 22 — RELATED ORGANIZATION

The County's governing board is responsible for appointing the members of the board of the Industrial Revenue
Bond Authority, but the County's accountability for this organization does not extend beyond making these
appciniments. The Authority exists to issue and service revenue bond debt for private business for econcmic
development purposes. lis primary revenues are the payments to service the issued debt that are received from
the businesses involved, The County is not respansible for the debt issuec by the Authority and the Authority's
debt is not included in determining the County’s legal debt limit.

NOTE 23 — JOINT VERNTURES

The County in conjunction with several other counties participates in a joint venture {o operate Eastpointe Human
Services, a managed care organization, Each participating government appoinis board members to Eastpointe’s
board. The County has an ongoing financial responsibiiity for the joint venture because Eastpoinie's continued
existence depends on the participating governments’ continued funding. The County contributed $224,474 1o the
joint venture during the year ended June 30, 2015. None of the participating governments have any equity
inferest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has peen reflected in the County’s financial statements at June
30, 2015. Complete financial statements for Eastpointe Human Services can be abtained from their office in
Beulaville, North Carolina.
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NOTE 23 — JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The County in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Duplin County Board of Education participates
in & joint venture to operate James Sprunt Community College. Each of the three participants appoints four
members of the thifeen member board of trustees of the community college. The president of the community
coliege’s student government serves as an ex officio non-voting member of the community college’s board of
trustees. The community college is included as a component unit of the State. The County has the basic
responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the communiiy college and also provides some financial
support for the community college’s operations. The County has an ongoing financial respensibility for the
community college because of the statutory responsibilities to provide funding for the community college'’s
facilities. The County contributed $1,621,168 and $267,907 to the community college for operating and capital
purposes, respectively, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The participating governments do net have
any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the County’s financial
statemeants at June 30, 2015 Complete financial statements for the community coliege may be abtained from the
community college’s administrative offices at Highway 11 South, Kenansville, North Carolina.

NOTE 24 - BENEFIT PAYMENTS ISSUED BY THE STATE

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individua! recipients by the State from federal and state moneys.
Duplin County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations that cause benefit
paymeits to be issued by the state. These amounts disclose the additionai aid to County recipients that do not

appear in the general purpose financial stalements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the
County.

FProgram Federal State

Medicaid $ 53,433,096 § 28571405
State Children's Insurance Program 818,971 260,470
Food stamps 15,483,272 -
Women, infants, and children 1,589,307 -
iV-E Adopi Subsidy and Vendor 162,559 42,144
{V-E Admin County Paid to CClI 4,675 2,338
IV-E Foster Care 37,561 9,733
V-E Foster Care In Excess 1,895 493
TANF Payments and FPenalties 342,846 -
CWS Adopt Subsidy and Vendor - 72,602
SC/SA Domicillary Care Payment - 474,262
SFHF Maximization - 14,050
State Foster Home - 32,457

Totals $ 71,884,182 § 29879054

NOTE 25 —~ SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGRIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.
Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any

required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for
the refund of grant moneys.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 26 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, there is a prior period adjustment for the business-type activities in the
amount of $2,735,242. This is a result of recording the beginning balances for the DWSRF debt for the water
districts which were recorded as capital contributions in the prior year.

NOTE 27 ~ CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES/IRESTATEMENT

The County impiemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) statement €8, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27), in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2015. The implementation of the statement required the County to record beginning net pension liabiiity and the
effects on net position of contributions made by the Ceunty during the measurement period (fiscal year ending
June 30, 2014). As a resuli, net position for the governmential and business-type activities decreased by
$2,127,782 and $208,838, respectively.

NOTE 28 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On March 16, 2015, the board approved to fund the Board of Education facility plan of up to $80 million, to be

funded primarily with fwenty year limited obligation bonds, as well 2s {o restrict sales tax funds for the year ended
June 30, 20186 and June 30, 2017 of $1.2 million.
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REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted
accounting principles.

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance:

e Schedule of Funding Progress
e Schedule of Employer Contributions
¢ Notes to the Required Schedules

Other Postemployment Benefits:

e Schedule of Funding Progress
o Schedule of Employer Contributions
¢ Notes to the Required Schedules

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System:

e Schedule of County’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset
e Schedule of County Contributions

Register of Deeds:

e Schedule of County’s Proporticnate Share of Net Pension Asset
e Schedule of County Contributions
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Reguired Supplementary Information

Extibif A-1
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Value of Accrued Unfunded Covered Percent of
Actuarial Valuation Assets Liahility (AALY  AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payro# Covered Payroll
Date (&) (b) {b-a) (alt) (c) (b-alc)
December 31, 2014 § - $ 984690 § 984,690 0.00% $ 3,111,397 31.65%
December 31, 2013 - 951,792 951,792 0.00% 2,901,682 32.80%
December 31, 2012 - 853,112 853,112 0.00% 2,482,976 34.36%
December 31, 2011 - 901,590 901,580 0.00% 2,694,757 33.46%
December 31, 2010 - 844,755 844,755 0.00% 2,498,560 33.81%
December 31, 2008 - 857,488 857,488 0.00% 2,468,019 34.74%
December 31, 2008 - 671,035 671,035 0.00% 2,457,408 27.31%
December 31, 2007 - 545,188 645,188 0.00% 2,270,503 28.42%
Decemper 31, 2006 - 647,268 647,268 0.00% 2,166,292 29.88%
December 31, 2005 - 571,196 571,156 0.00% 1,860,407 28.14%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual
Required Percentage
Fiscal Year Ended Cortribution * Contributed *
June 30, 2015 $ 138,972 31.52%
June 30, 2014 106,395 51.45%
June 30, 2013 111,649 50.55%
June 30, 2012 89,820 64.10%
June 30, 2011 100,107 64.53%
June 30, 2010 77,710 81.19%
June 30, 2009 70,481 89.51%
June 30, 2008 69,933 95.47%
June 30, 2007 61,798 91.86%
June 30, 2006 63,482 58.88%

* Presented for all years for which data is available.
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Duplin County, North Caroling
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Exhibit A-1

Notes to the Required Scheduies

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date December 31, 2014
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level doliar closed
Remaining amortization pericd 16 years

Asset valuaticn method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return * 5.00%
Projected salary increases * 4,25% - 7.85%
* Includes inflation at 3.00%

Cost of living adjustments N/A
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Puplin County, North Carolina
Other Post-employment Benefit
Required Supplementary Information

Exhibit A-2
Scheduie of Funding Progress
Actuarial Actuarial : UAAL as a
Value of Accrued Unfunded Covered Percent of
Actuarial Valuation Assets  Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {a) {b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) (b-a/c)
December 31,2013 $ - 317,047,724 $17,047724 0.00% 317,727,593 86.16%
December 31, 2011 - 15,824,727 15,824,727 C.00% 17,478,497 90.54%
December 31, 2009 - 15,354,246 15,354,246 0.00% 18,355,315 93.88%
December 31, 2007 - 17,818,843 17,818,843 0.00% 18,328,767 109.14%
Schedule of Emplover Contributions
Annual
Reqguired Percentage

Fiscal Year Ended Contribution * Contributed *

June 30, 2015 $ 1,609,782 B.87%

June 30, 2014 1,662,895 21.33%

June 30, 2013 1,628,644 11.80%

June 30, 2012 1,628,644 21.25%

June 30, 2011 2,069,253 8.27%

June 30, 2010 2,089,253 11.41%

* Presented for alt years for which data is available.
Notes to the Reguired Schedules

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additicnal information as of the latest aciuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date December 31, 2013
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Levei percent of pay open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of retum * 4.00%
Medical Trend Assumptions
Pre-medicare trend rate 7.75%-5.00%
Post-medicare trend rate 5.75%-5.00%
Year of uttimate trend rate 2019
* [ncludes inflation at 3.00%
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Local Government Employees' Retirement System
l.ast Two Fiscal Years®

Exhibit A-3
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

2015 2014
County's proporiion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0.322% 0.312%
County's proportionate share of the net pension liahility {zsset) § $ (1,899,277} § 3,762,003
County's covered-employee payroll $ 16,241,121  § 16,399,727
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability {asset) as a
percenfage of its covered-employee payroll “1124% 22 939%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the fotal pension liability 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscai year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Schedule of County Contributions

2015 2014
Contractually required contribution $ 1,370,781  § 1,339,314
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,370,794 1,338,314
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 19,241,121 § 16,398,727
Contributions as a percentage of coverad-employee payroll | 7.124% 8.167%
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
Last Two Fiscal Years®

Exhibit A-4
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0,415% -0.387%
County's proportionaie share of the net pension liability (asset) $ $ (93,996) § (82,685)
County's covered-employee payroll $ 68,983 § 57,721
County's propottionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percertage of its covered-employee payroll -136.260% -143.248%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 193.88% 180.50%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Schedule of County Contributions

2015 2014
Contractually required contribution $ 4,877 % 3,386
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 4,877 3,386
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 5 -
Coundy's covered-employee payroll & 88,983 § 57,721
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroti 7.070% 5.866%
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government that are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in other funds.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-1
Capital
General Fund Reserve Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 13,047,308 § 928,805 $ 13,976,113
Receivables, net 12,054,182 - 12,054 182
Due from other funds 3,460 - 3,460
Inventories 270,487 270,487

Total assels

$ 25375437 & 928,805 § 26,304,242

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 745,320 % - $ 745,320
Due to other funds 1,805 - 1,805
Total liabilities 747,125 - 747,125
Deferred inflows of Resources 8,865,110 - 8,865,110

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - inventories 270,487 - 270,487
Restricted by state statute 3,881,817 - 3,881,817
Restricted for federally seized assets 121,040 - 121,040
Restricied for health 493,125 - 493,125
Restricied for grants/projects 141,683 - 141,883
Restricted for sheriff 86,217 - 86,217
Restricted for daycare 167 - 167
Restricied for economic development 591,019 - 581,018
Commifted for capital improvements - 828,805 928,805
Assigned for subsequent year's expendiiures 2,560,129 - 2,560,129
Unassigned 7,617,518 - 7,617,518
Total fund balances 15,763,202 928,805 16,692,007

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund

balances

§ 25375437 § 928805 § 26,304,242
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Duplin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Combinmg Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exh|bit B-2.
Capital
General Fund *© Reserve Fund Total
Revenues _ -
Ad valorem {axes $ 30069681 &. - - $ 30,089,681
Local option sales taxes 6,628,722 - . 6,628,722
Other taxes and licenses 094,971 . - 94,971
Unrestricted intergovernmenta! 6,237,452 ‘ - 6,237,452
Restricted intergovernmental 4,734,400 - 4,734,400
Restricted grants 48,000 - 48,000
Permits and fees 485,252 - 485,252
Restrictad revenue 65,733 - 65,733
Sales and services 7,124,707 - 7,124,707
Investment earnings 53,344 167 53,511
Contributions 49,432 oo- 49,432
Miscellaneous 59,252 - 59,252
Total revenues 55,650,948 167 55,651,113
Expenditures
General government 5,694,047 - 5,684,047
Public safety 16,153,614 - 16,153,614
Econamic and physical development 735,351 - . 735,351
Human services 15,810,100 - 15,910,1G0
Cultural and recreational 1,049,118 - 1,048,119
Environmental protection 773,739 - 773,739
Education 11,522,774 - 11,522,774
Non-deparimental 262,439 - 262,439
Total expenditures 52,101,183 - 52,101,183
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 3,549,763 167 3,549,930
Other financing sources (uses) o
 Trangfers to other funds {2,240,194) (29,403) (2,269,587)
Froceeds from sale of capital assets 28,239 - 28,239
Total other financing sources {uses) {2,211,855) (29,403) (2,241,358)
Net change in fund balance 1,337,808 {29,236) 1,308,572
Fund balances, beginning of year 14,447 497 958,041 15,405,538
Decrease in inventory (22,103) - (22,103)
Fund balances, end of year $ 15,763,202 $ 928,805 16,692,007

-96 -

$



Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $29,632,051
Penaities and interest 437,630
Total $25,389,393 30,069,681 § 670,288
Local Option Sales Taxes:
Article 39 and 44 2,497 517
Article 40 one-half of one percent 2,355,783
Article 42 one-half of one percent 029,548
Article 46 one-guarter of one percent 845,874
Total 6,233,765 5,628,722 394,857
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Deed stamp excise tax 78,856
Frivilege licenses 457
Other taxes and licenses 15,658
Total 85,500 94 971 9,471
Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Video programing distribution 24,264
Medicaid hold harmiess distribution 423,868
State grants 5,789,320
Total 6,619,491 6,237 452 {382,039)
Restricted Intergovernmentai:
State grants 4,408,757
Federal grants 162,191
Court Tacility fees 120,816
Granis-Other 42,636
Total 4,807,416 4,734,400 {73,016)
Restricted Grants:
Vidant Duplin Foundation grant 20,000
Vidant - Diabetic Management grant 17,000
Healthy Weight Clinic grant 11,600
Total 48,000 48,000 -
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Paermits and Fees:;
Building permit fees 102,866
Building inspection fees 144 110
Fire inspection fees 42,775
Marriage license fees 19,440
Register of deeds fees 176,061
Total 478,375 485,252 6,877
Restricted Revenue:
Social services fraud collections 53,649
ABC profit distribution (10%) 12,084
Total 64,000 65,733 1,733
Sales and Services:
Ambulance and rescue squad fees 2,419,110
Health department fees 1,431,859
Nutrition fees 28,856
Police protection/Schoo! resource officers 983,970
Sheriff and jall fees 438,374
Animal control fees 32,468
Cabin Lake fees 48,960
Library fees 11,769
Event Center revenue 81,174
Rental income 165,308
Social services fees 35,140
Aging department fees 32,344
Other fees and services 1,405,374
Total 7,269,072 7,124,707 (144,365)
Investment Earnings 53,875 53,344 (631)
Miscellaneous:
Varicus contributions 23,252
In-kind contributions 26,180
ABC profit distribution (35%) 42 294
Other revenues 16,958
Totai 89,523 108,684 19,161
Total revenues 55,148,510 55,650,946 502,436
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures
General Government:
Governing Body:
Salaries and employee benefits 87,878
Other operating expenditures 142,809
Total 230,687
County Manager;
Salaries and employee benefits 193,827
Other operating expenditures 2,653
Total 196,480
Persannel:
Sataries and employee benefits 211,388
Other operating expenditures 16,831
Total 228,019
Finance:
Salaries and employee bengfits 454 804
Other operafing expenditures 27,907
Capital outlay 12,015
Total 494 726
information Technology:
Salaries and employee benefits 416,612
Other operating expenditures 44,400
Capital outlay 15,962
Total 476,974
Elections:
Salaries and employee benefits 168,177
Other operating expenditures 58,334
Total 236,511
Tax Administration;
Salaries and employee benafits 787,152
Other operating expenditures 318,744
Capital outiay 16,134
Total 1,122,030
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Duplin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Central Supply :
Purchases 1,115,287
Register of Deeds;
Salaries and employee benefits 276,002
Other operating expenditures 60,734
Total 338,736
Housekeeping:
Salaries and employee benefils 199,738
Other operating expenditures 8,840
Total 208,578
Buitding Maintenance:
Salaries and empioyee benefits 414,023
Other operating expendiiures 114,878
Total 528,898
Garage:
Salaries and employee bengfits 187,010
Other operating expenditures 31,239
Total 228,249
Attorney:
Salaries and employee benefits 231,384
Other operating expenditures 59,487
Total 290,871
Total general government 6,398,628 5,694,047 704,581

Public Safety:

Sherift:
Salaries and employee benetfits 3,066,688
Other aperating expenditures 643,514
Capital outlay 155,721
Total 3,865,923
Court Facllities:
Salaries and employee benefits 67,470
Other operating expenditures 133,214
Capital outlay 3,648
Total 204,332
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {(Negative)
Jury Commission:
Other operating expenditures 2,591
Adult Probation:
Other operating expendifures 4,519
Mental Hesalth Transportation:
Salaries and employee benefits 37,105
Special Separation Allowance:
Salaries and employee benefiis 47,159
Fingerprinting:
Other operating expenditures 3,187
Communications:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,054,262
Other operating expenditures 98,418
Capital outlay 22,338
Total 1,173,018
Special Response Team:
Other operating expenditures 3,508
School Resource Officer:
Salaries and employee benefits 801,215
Other operating expenditures 52,294
Total 853,509
Federally Seized Assets - Cusioms:
Other cperating expenditures 39,793
Capital cutlay 2,100
Totat 41,893
Federally Seized Assets - Justice Depariment:
Other operaling expenditures 12,572
Capital outlay 105,384
Total 117,966
G1S-911 Functions:
Salaries and employee benefits 8,333
Addressing-911 Functions:
Salaries and employee benefits 14,954
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Jail:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,676,608
Other operating expenditures 909,914
Capital outlay 3,910
Total 2,590,430
Emergency Management:
Salaries and employee benefits 137,764
Other operating expenditures 41,095
Capitat outiay 1,246
Total 180,105
State Public Safety Grant - 2014 S500068:
Dther operating expenditures 200
Department of Justice 2013 Alien Grant - DJ BX0O805:
Other operating expenditures 12,848
Depariment of Justice 2014 Alien Grant - APBX054:
Other operating expenditures 2,414
NC Race Car Heart Project:
Other operating expenditures 3,000
Emergency Medical Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 3,961,952
Other operating expenditures 518,113
Capital outiay 338,501
Total 4,818,566
Fire Marshall:
Salaries and employee bengfits 64,251
Operating expenditures 18,830
Contracted services 1,401,882
Total 1,482,963
Faison Substation:
Salaries and employee benefiis 88,892
Operating expenditures 13,491
Tota! 102,383
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Duptin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actuai (Negative)
Building Inspections:
Salaries and employee benefiis 218,028
Other operating expenditures 27,292
Total 245,320
Medical Examiner:
Contracted services 22450
Animal Control:
Salaries and employee benefits 153,762
Other operating expenditures 86,516
Capital outlay 6,611
Total 246,889
Courthouse Security Project:
Operating expenditures 24,745
Capital outlay 8,128
Total 32,873
Concealed Handgun:
Operating expenditures 29,879
State Pubiic Safety Grant 2014 S8 00067:
Operating expenditures _ 496
Total public safety 17,131,484 16,153,614 977,870

Economic and Physical Development:

Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 53,845
Other operating expenditures 2,497
Total 58,342

Central Plant - Duplin Commons:
Other operating expenditures 27,311

Westpark Business Technology Center:
Other operating expenditures 35,204

Ecconomic Development :

Salaries and employee benefits 116,636
Other operating expenditures 106,463
Total 223,099
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Duplin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
N.C. Cooperative Exiension Service:
Salaries and employee benefits 144
Other operaiing expendifures 261,464
Total 261,608
N.C. Cooperative Extension 4-H Prevention Fregram:
Salaries and employee benefils 29,134
Other operating expendifures 5,389
Total 35,523
Industrial Park:
Other operating expenditures 2,860
JCPC- Duplin Parenting:
Other operating expenditures 024
JCPC - 4-H Outreach:
Salaries and employee benefits 38,413
Other operatling expenditures 7,844
Total 47,257
Vidant 4-H EFNET Grant;
Operating expenditures 18,201
Livestock Facility:
Operating expenditures 9,757
Farm Services Agency:
Other operating expenditures 11,265
JCPC Juvenile Court Psychological Service:
Operating expenditures 6,000
Total economic and physical development 1,394,616 735,351 659,265

Human Services:

Health:
Salaries and employee benefits 26,390
Other operating expendifures 85,617
Capita! outlay 7,325
Total 119,332
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
UHS - Healthy Weight Clinic Grant:
Salaries and employee benefits 9,487
Other operating expendifures 13,268
Total 22,756
Envircnmental Heatlth:
Sataries and employee benefiis 341,993
Other operating expenditures 31,976
Capital outlay 35,181
Total 409,150
Food & Lodging
Salaries and employee benefits 7,931
Capital outiay 12,4684
Total 20,395
Communicable Disease:
Salaries and employee benefits 131,298
Other gperating expendifures 29,403
Total 160,699
Immunization Action Plan:
Salaries and employee benefits 105,807
Other operating expenditures 102,073
Total 207,880
WIC - General Administration:
Saiaries and employee benefits 6,766
WIC - Nutrition Education:
Salaries and employee benefits 107,009
WIC - Breastfeeding Promotion:
Salaries and employee benefits 14,413
WIC - Client Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 264,707
Other operating expenditures 49,513
Totat 314,220
Dental Program:
Salaries and employee benefits 36,489
Other operating expenditures 136,239
Total 172,738
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Duplin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Final Budget Actual

Exhibit B-3

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

Bioterrorism:

Salaries and employee benefits 555
QOther operating expendifures 37,183
Total 37,738
Tubercuiosis:
Salaries and employee benefiis 59,059
Other operating expenditures 8,181
Total 68,240

March of Dimes - Centering Pregnancy:
Other operating expendiiures 278

Primary Care:

Salaries and employee benefils 698,450
Other operating expenditures 116,563
Total 815,113

Community Health Promotion:

Salaries and employee benefits 32,372
Other operating expenditures 8,359
Total 41,731
Pregnancy Care Managament;
Salaries and employee benefils 502,503
Other operating expenditures 5,468
Total 107,971

Pregnancy Care Management - Non Medicaid:
Salaries and employee benefits 38,153

Maternal Health:

Salaries and employee benefits 181,887
Other operating expenditures £3,838
Total 255,725
Family Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 228,362
Other operating expenditures 83,740
Total 312,102
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actusl
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhipit B-3
Variance
Pasitive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Child Health:
Salaries and employee benefiis 305,440
Other operating expenditures 18,059
Total 323,489
CC4C:
Salaries and employee benefits 130,602
Other operating expenditures 6,131
Total 136,733
Social Services Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits 5,220,154
Other ocperating expenditures 494 274
Capital outlay 5,729
Total 5,720,157
Social Services Building Expense;
Salaries and employee benefits 34,846
Other operating expenditures 175,914
Total 210,760
Work First/TANF:
Operating expenditures 2,455
Assistance payments 2,326
Total 4,781
Title - IV D
Other operating expenditures 132,775
Special Assistance for Adults:
Assistance payments 474,262
Foster Children:
Assistance payments 234,467
Medicaid Program:
Assistance payments 354,196
Aid to the Blind Program:
Assistance payments 6,057
Adoption Assistance:
Assistance payments 24,378
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Duplin County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negafive)
Crisis Intervention Frogram:
Assistance payments 224 636
Progress Energy Assistance:
Assistance payments 5,576
Low Income Home Energy Assistance 338,027

General Assistance:

Assistance paymenis 25,158
Daycare:
Assistance payments 2,648,651

Seniors' Healih Insurance Information Program:

Salaries and employee benefits 1,710
Other operating expenditures 1,925
Total 3,635

Aging Program:

Salaries and employee benefits 266,601

Other operating expenditures 87,543
Total 354,144

Aging - Fan Program:
Other operating expendiiures 466

Aging - In-Home Aid Services:

Salaries and employee benefiis 116,745
Other operating expenditures 16,748
Total 133,493

Aging - Tille 1H Transportation:
Other operating expendiiures 97,724

Aging - Titie |1I-F Health Promation:

Salaries and employee benefits 2,162
Other operating expenditures 3,623
Total 5,785

UHS Diabetes Management Grant:
Other operating expenditures 18,284
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B8-3

Variance
Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

Aging - Housing & Home Improvements:

Other operaling expenditures 5,438
Senicr Center Operations:
Other operating expenditures 5,191
Family Caregiver:
Salaries and employee benefits 2,611
Other operating expenditures 7,571
Total 10,182
Peer Breastfeeding:
Salaries and employee benefits 17,442
Nutrition - Home Bound Meals
Salaries and employee benefits 34,948
Other operating expenditures 86,816
Total 121,764
Nutrition :
Salaries and employee benefits 75,402
Other operating expenditures 161,473
Total 236,875
JCPC Restitution/Teen Court:
Other operating expenditures 66,974
JCPC - Building Peace in Schools:
Qther operating expenditures 38,542
JCPC - Administration;
Other operating expenditures 1,415
JCPC - Gang Awareness:
Other operating expenditures 9,154
Veteran's Service Officer:
Salaries and employee benefits 115,343
Other operating expenditures 8,093
Total 124,436
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Fositive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
County Wellness Program:
Salaries and emplovee benefits 205412
Other operating expenditures 88,452
Total 283,864
Cape Fear Obesity Clinic Grant:
Salaries and employee benefits 4,330
Other operating expenditures 2,549
Total 6,879
Vital Records:
Salaries and employee benefits 7,449
Other operating expenditures 310
Total 7,759
Delta Dental Grant 3,437
Contributions:
Mental Health - Eastpointe Human Services 224 474
STD Drugs:
Other operating expenditures 2,983
Senior Center General Purpose:
Salaries and employee benefits 19,053
Operating expenditures 4,184
Total 23,237
Total human services 17,345 408 15,910,100 1,438,308

Cultural and Recreaticnal

Museum:
Salaries and employee benefits 23,570
Other operating expenditures 9,625
Total 33,185
Library:
Salaries and employee benefits 335,008
Other operating expenditures 87,340
Capital outlay-books 97,524
Total 515,872
Law library-C apital Qutfay 3,648




Duplin County, North Caroling
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {(Negative)
Gates Staying Connected Grant;
Operating expendifures 12,758
Event Center:
Salaries and empicyee benefits 112,644
Other operating expenditures 162,223
Total 274,867
Parks and Recreation:
Salaries and empioyee benefiis 99,967
Other operating expenditures 36,444
Capital outlay 5,249
Total 141,660
State Department of Commerce Grant Museum:
Salaries and employee benefits 21,719
Other operating expenditures 28,301
Total 51,020
Contribution to Veterans Museum 10,000
N.C. Community Foundation:
Operating expendiiures 2,089
Total cultural and recreational 1,269,091 1,049,118 219,972
Environmental Protection:
Soil Conservation
Salaries and empicyee benefits 309,528
Operating expenditures 38,918
Watershed maintenance 318,372
Total 566,818
Contributions:
Forestry service 106,921
Total environmental protection 864,486 773,739 190,747
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Duplin County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-3
Variance
Fositive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Education
Pubtlic schools - current expenditures 9,485,780
Public schools - capital outlay 147,839
Community colleges - current expenditures 1,621,168
Community colleges - capital outlay 287,907
Total education 11,716,733 11,522,774 193,959
Non-Departmental
Post-employment healthcare benefits 253,089
Other expendifures 9,350
Total non-departmental 458,011 262,439 195,572
Total expenditures 56,682,457 52,101,183 4,581,274
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,533,947) 3,549,763 5,083,710
Gther financing sources (uses)
Transfers to other funds (2,302,245}  (2,240,194) 62,051
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,000 28,239 27,239
Total other financing sources {uses) (2,301,245)  (2,211,855) 89,280
Appropriated fund balance 3,835,182 - (3,835,182)

Net change in fund balarce

- 1,337,808 § 1,337,808

Fund balance, beginning of year 14,447,497
Decrease in inventory {22,103}
Fund balance, end of year $15,763,202
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Capital Reserve Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Buget and Actual
From tnception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibil B-4

Actual

Variance
Project Pasitive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Tofal io Date (Negative)

Revenues

Investment earnings 8 “ $ 173,006 §% 167 $ 173,173 $173,173

Expenditures

Capital reserve 755,632 - - - 755,832

Revenues over (under)
expenditures (755,632) 173,006 167 173,173 928,805

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers from other funds 798,384 798,384 - 798,384 -
Transfers o other funds (42,762) {13,359) (25,403) (42,762) -
Total other financing sources
(uses) 755,632 785,435 {29,403) 755,632 -
Net change in fund balance % - § 958,041 (28,236} $ 928,805 $8928,805
Fund balance, beginning of year 958,041
Fund balance, end of year $ 928,805
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Non-Major Gevernmental Funds
Combining Balance Shest

June 30, 2015

Exhibit C-1
Special
Revenue  Capital Projeci
Funds Funds Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1445281 § 1287849 § 2,733,130
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 3,199,535 - 3,188,535
Receivahles, net 936,582 715,573 1,652,155
Due from other funds 467 37,584 38,051
Total assets $ 5,581,865 $ 2,041,006 §$ 7,622,871
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 307928 % - $ 307,928
Due tc other funds 761 37,584 38,345
Total liabilities 308,688 37,584 346,273
Deferred inflows of Resources 884,926 - 884,926
Fund Balances
Restricted by state stafute 33,711 635,865 669,576
Restricted for schools 2,304,540 1,120,347 3,424,887
Restricted for E-911 275,681 - 275,681
Restricted for register of deeds 17,002 - 17,002
Restricted for tax revaluation 894,295 - 894,995
Committed Tor economic development 780,910 - 780,810
Commitied for capital projects - 247210 247,210
Committed for various programs 85,159 - 85,159
Unassigned (3,748) - (3,748)
Total fund balances 4,388,250 2,003,422 6,391,672
Total iabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund
balances $ 5581865 $ 2,041,006 $ 7,622,871
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expendiiures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit C-2
Special
Revenue Capital Project
Funds Funds Total
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 878677 3§ - $  B7R.67T
Local option sales taxes - 1,654,520 1,654,520
Investment earnings 26,109 209 26,318
Restricted intergovernmental 1,328,003 37,584 1,365,587
Contributions 8,812 - 8,812
Miscellaneous revenues 61,420 - 61,420
Total revenues 2,303,021 1,692,313 3,995,334
Expenditures
General government 121,783 - 121,783
Public safety 1,307,455 28,403 1,336,858
Economic and Physical Development 259 339 41,584 300,923
Education - 848,026 848,026
Total expenditures 1,688,577 © 919,013 2,607,690
Revenues over (under} expenditures 614,444 773,300 1,387,744
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers frem other funds 19,207 908,131 927,338
Transfers to other funds - {1,224 875) (1,224,875)
Total other financing sources {uses) 19,207 (316,744) (297,537)
Net change in fund balances 633,651 456,558 1,090,207
Fund balances, beginning of year 3,754,589 1,546,866 5,301,465
Fund baiances, end of year $ 4388250 $ 2,003,422 $ 6,391,672
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

Fire District Fund — This fund accounts for the ad valorem {ax levies of the seven fire districts in
Duplin County.

Revaluation Fund — This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for the
octennial revaluation of real property.

Community Development Revolving Loan Fund — This fund accounts for developmental loans
to local private businesses.

Emergency Telephone System Fund — This fund was established in accordance with North
Carolina faw to accounts for the accumulation of telephone surcharges to be used for emergency
telephone services.

Grant Project Funds — These funds account for sundry projects funded by federal grants, state

grants, or a combination of both federal and state grants. Separate funds account for revenues
and expenditures associated with each grant's intended purpose.

School Planning Aliocation Fund — This fund accounts for lottery revenues designated for public
school capital expenditures.

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund — This fund accounts for funds to be used for
computer and imaging technology in the reqister of deeds office.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-1
Automation
Emergency Enhancement Community School
Telephone and Development  Planning Fire
System Preservation Revaluation Revolving Allocation District County
Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund Fund  Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 563,883 % 15,229 § - $ 780,910 § - $ - $ 85,159 $1,445,281
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - 894 895 - 2,304,540 - - 3,199,535
Due from other funds 467 - - - - - - 467
Receivables, net 46,573 1,773 - 839,581 - 48,655 - 836,582
Total assefs $ 611,023 § 17,002 % 894,995 51620491 $2,304,540 $48655 % 85,159 $5,581,865
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 303582 § - 3 - $ - $ - $ 4,346 § - $ 307,928
Due to other funds 761 - - - - - - 761
Total liabilities 304,343 - - - - 4,346 - 308,689
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 839,581 - 45 345 - 884 026
Fund Balances
Restricted by state statute 30,998 - - - - 2,712 - 33,711
Restricted for schools - - - - 2,304,540 - - 2,304,540
Restricted for E-911 275,681 - - - - - - 275,681
Restricted for register of deeds - 17,002 - - - - - 17,002
Restricted for tax revaluation and mapping - - 894,995 - - - - 894,995
Committed for economic development - - - 780,910 - - - 780,910
Committed for various programs - - - - - - 85,159 85,159
Unassigned - - - - - (3,748) - {3,748)
Total fund balances 306,680 17,002 894,995 780,910 2,304,540 (1,036) 85,159 4,388,250
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 611,023 $ 17,002 $ 894,995 $1.620,491 $2,304,540 $48655 $ 85153 $5,581,865
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Automation Exhibit D-2
Emergency Enhancement Community School Community
Telephone and Development  Planning Development
Systern Preservation Revaluation Revolving Allocation  Fire District Block Grant
Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund Fund Fund 12-C-2494
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ - $ - $ 117,900 $ - $ - $ 760,777 $ -
Investment earings 83 4 168 16,219 9,620 - -
Restricted intergovernmental 558,871 - - - 702,310 E 0,764
Contributions - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous revenues 461 - - 47,845 - - -
Total revenues 559,415 4 118,068 64,064 711,930 760,777 0,764
Expenditures
General government - 19,566 80,393 - - - -
Public safety 547,585 - - - - 759,870 -
Economic and physical development - - - 200,000 - - 9,764
Total expenditures 547,585 19,566 80,393 200,000 - 759,870 9,764
Revenues over {under) expenditures 11,830 {19,562) 37,675 (135,936) 711,930 907 -
(ther financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds - 19,207 - - - - -
Net change in fund balances 11,830 (355) 37,675 {135,936) 711,930 907 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 294,850 17,357 857,320 916,846 1,592,610 (1,943) -
Fund balances, end of year $ 306,680 § 17,002 § 894,995 $ 780,910 32304540 $§ (1,036) -
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,

Community  Community
Development Development
Block Grant Block Grant County Trust

12-C-2414  41-C-2292 Fund Total
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ - $ - 5 - $ 878,677
Investment eamings - - 15 26,109
Restricted intergovernmental 7,061 42 514 7.483 1,328,003
Confributions - - 8,812 8,812
Miscellaneous revenues - - 13,114 61,420
Total revenues 7,061 42,514 29,424 2,303,021
Expenditures
General government - - 21,824 121,783
Public safety - - - 1,307,455
Economic and physical development 7,061 42514 - 259,339
Total expenditures 7,061 42,514 21,824 1,688,577
Revenues over (under) expenditures - - 7,600 614,444
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers from other funds - - - 19,207
Net change in fund balances - - 7.600 633,651
Fund balances, beginning of year - - 77,659 3,754,599
Fund halances, end of year - - $ 85,152 34,388,250
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and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-2



Duplin County, North Carolina

Emergency Telephone System Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budget  Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:

Emergency telephone fee 570,143 558,871 % (11,272)
Invesiment earnings - 83 83
Miscellanecus - 461 461

Total revenues 570,143 559,415 (10,728)
Expenditures
Public safety:
Emergency telephone services:
Operating expenditures 285,130 244,100 41,030
Capital outlay 303,486 303,485 1
Total expenditures 588,616 547,585 {(41,031)
Revenues over (under) expenditures (18,473) 11,830 30,303
Appropriated fund balance 18,473 - {18,473)
Net change in fund balance ) - 11,830 § 11,830
Fund baiance, beginning of vear 294,850
Fund balance, end of year $ 308,680
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit B-4
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Investment earnings 3 - $ 4 3 4
Expenditures
General government
Operating expenditures 28,629 11,088 17,541
Captial outlay 8,478 8478 -
Total expenditures 37,107 19,566 (17,541)
Revenues over {Under) expenditures (37,107) {19,562) 17,545
Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds 19,750 19,207 (543)
Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures (17,357) (355) 17,002
Appropriated fund balance 17,357 - {17,357)
Net change in fund balance $ - (355) § {355)
Fund balance, beginning of year 17,357
Fund balance, end of year § 17,002
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Buplin County, North Carolina
Revaluation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
ror the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-5
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 117,900 117,900 § -
investment earnings - 168 168
Total revenues 117,800 118,068 168
Expenditures
General Government:
Salaries and employee benefits 72,148 36,047 36,101
Operating expenditures 149,347 27,609 121,738
Capital outlay 52,407 16,737 35,670
Total expenditures 273,802 80,393 183,509
Revenues over (under) expendifures (156,002) 37,675 193,677
Appropriated fund balance 156,002 - {156,002}
Net change in fund balance ¥ - 37675 § 37,675
Fund balance, beginning of year 857,320
Fund balance, end of year 894,095
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Duplin County, North Caroling

Community Development Revolving Loan Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-6
Variance
Positive
Final Budget  Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Invesiment earnings $ - $ 16,219 $ 16,219

Loan payments

- 47,845 47,845

Total revenues

- 64,064 64,064

Expenditures
Economic and physical development:
Community development loans

400,000 200,000 200,000

Revenues over (Under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

(400,000)  (135,936) (264,064)

400,000 - 400,000

Net change in fund batance 5 - (135,236) $(135,936)
Fund balance, beginning of year 916,846
Fund balance, end of year $ 780,810
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Buplin County, North Carolina
School Planning Allocation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-7
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:
Public School Building Capital Fund $ - § 702310 § 702,310
Investment earnings - 9,620 5,620
Total revenues - 711,930 711,930
Expenditures
Education:
Capital outlay:
East Duplin High Schoot - Renovations -
Total expenditures 2,031,184 - 2,031,194
Revenues over {under) expenditures (2,031,194) 711,830 2,743,124
Appropriated fund balance 2,031,194 - {2,031,194)
Net change in fund balance 3 - 711,830 § 711,830
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,582,610
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,304,540
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Fire Disfrict Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-8
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 784985 § TBOTIT 5 (24.178)
Expenditures
Public Safety:
Commission to General Fund 21,375 20,805 570
OCak Wolfe Fire District 57,490 54,655 2,835
Giisson Fire District 115,848 112,444 3,404
Sarecta Fire District 95,469 93,432 2,037
East Duplin Fire District 87,164 84,665 2,529
Alberison Fire District 74,823 71,852 2,871
Stacy Britt Fire District 135,095 129,810 5285
Franklin Fire District 23,080 19,800 3,28C
Northeast Fire District 174,581 172,407 2,174
Total expenditures 784 955 759,870 25,085
Net change in fund balance 5 - 907 % 907
Fund balance, beginning of year (1,943)
Fund balance, end of year $ (1,036)
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Community Development Block Grant (12-C-2494)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-9
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive

Authorization  Prior Years Year Total to Date (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:

State granis % 750,000 & 883 §$ 9764 § 18,600 §(731400)

Expenditures
Economic and physical development:
Community development block grant 750,000 8,836 9,764 18,600 731,400

Net change in fund balance $ - $ - - [ - % -

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ -
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Community Bevelopment Block Grant {12-C-2414)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-10
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive
Authorization  Prior Years Year Totalto Date (Negative)
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:
Staie grants $ 225000 $§ 7635 $ 7,061 § 14696 $(210,304)
Expenditures
Economic and physicat development:
Community development block grant 225,000 7,635 7,061 14,696 210,304
Net change in fund balance $ - % - - $ - $ -
Fund balance, beginning of year -
Fund balance, end of year $ -
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Community Development Block Grant (11-C-2292)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
sudget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit D-11
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive

Authorization  Prior Years Year  Totalio Date (Negative)

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants 3 67,507 $ 25083 § 42514 § 67597 % -

Expenditures
Economic and physical development:
Community development block grant 67,597 25,083 42,514 67,597 -

Net change in fund balance $ - % - - $ - % -

Fund balance, beginning of vear .

Fund balance, end of year $ .
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by Proprietary and Trust
funds.

Industrial Expansion Capital Project Fund — This fund accounts for industrial expansion
projects. The projects will be financed by grants, loans, and transfers from other funds.

Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for the jail project, backup PSAP project, EMS
vehicles project, livestock facility preject, senior cenier project, events center project, and the
Vidant hospital project.

Capital Project Fund — School Fund — This fund accounts for sales tax revenue that is restricted
for school related capital projects.

Capital Project Fund — JSCC ~ This fund accounts for funds restricted for capital projects at
James Sprunt Community College.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Capital Project Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2015

Capital Industrial Exhibit £-1
Capital Project  Project Expansion Capital
Fund - School Fund - Capital Project
Fund JECC Project Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,078,223 $173631 & 35985 § - $ 1,287,849
Due from other funds 37,584 - - 37,584

Receivables, net

677,985

37,584 715,573

Total assets

$ 1,756,212 §211,215

$ 350895 § 37,584 §2,041,006

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ - $ - $ - $ 37584 § 37,584
Fund Balances
Restricted by state statute 635,885 - - - 635,865
Restricted for schools 1,120,347 - - - 1,120,347
Commitied for capital projects - 241,215 35,995 - 247,210
Total fund balances 1,756,212 211,215 35,895 - 2,003,422

Totai llabilities and fund
balances

$ 1,756,212 $211,215

$ 359905 § 37,584 § 2,041,006
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Capital Project Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Industrial Exhibit E-2
Capital Project  Capital Expansion
Fund - School Project Fund Capital Project Capital
Fund -JSCC Fund Project Fund Total
Revenues
Local option sales taxes 3 1,854,520 % - $ - 3 - $ 1,654,520
Restricted intergovermimentat - - - 37,584 37,584
investment earnings 165 38 B - 208
Total revenues 1,654,685 38 6 37,584 1,692,313
Expenditures
Public safety - - - 28,403 29,403
Economic and physica
development - - - 41,584 41,584
Education 848,026 - - - 848,026
Total expenditures 848,026 - - 70,987 919,013
Revenues over (under)
expenditures 806,659 38 B (33,403) 773,300
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 874,728 - - 33,403 508,131
Transfars to other funds (1,224 875} - - - {1,224,875)
Total other financing sources
{uses) (350,147} - - 33,403 {318,744)
Net change in fund balances 456,512 38 G - 456,556
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,298,700 211177 35,989 - 1,646,866
Fund batances, end of year $ 1,756,212 $ 211,215 & 35,885 % - $ 2,003,422
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Capital Project Fund - School Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit E-3
Variance
Positive
Final Budgst Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Local Option Sales Taxes:
Article 40 one-half of one percent $ 719,821 $ B43083 § 123,262
Article 42 one-half of one percent 750,000 811,437 61,437
Total 1,469,821 1,654,520 184,698
Investment earnings - 165 165
Total revenues 1,469,821 1,654,685 184,864
Expenditures
Education:
Capitai reserve 205,000 - 205,000
Capital outlay - Improvements to sites 503,383 313,718 189,665
Capital outlay - Equipment and furniture 396,606 396,593 13
Capital outlay - Vehicles 137,715 137,715 -
Total expenditures 1,242,704 848,026 394 678
Revenues over (under) expendifures 227117 806,655 579,542
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 936,000 874,728 (61,272)
Transfers to other funds (1,227,821) (1,224,875) 2,946
Total other financing sources (uses) {281,821) (350,147) (58,326}
Appropriated fund balance 64,704 - (64,704)
Net change in fund balance $ - 456,512 § 458,512
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,299,700
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,758,212
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Capital Project Fund - JSCC
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit E-4
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Investment eamings 5 - $ 38 % 38
Expenditures
Education:
Capital outlay - - -
Net change in fund batance $ - 8§ 38
Fund balance, beginning of year 211,177
Fund balance, end of year $ 211,215
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Duplin County, North Carolina

industrial Expansion Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit E-5
Actual
Variance
Project Current Total fo Positive
Authorization Prior Years Year Date {Negative)
Revenues
investment earnings $ - $ 853 § 68 § 855 $ 859
Expenditures
Economic and physical development:
Economic Development Reserve 35,136 - - - 35,136
Total expenditures 35,136 - - - 35,136
Revenues over {under) expenditures (35,136) 853 5 859 35,985
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 35,136 35,136 - 35,136 -
Net change in fund balance 5 - $ 35,989 6 § 35995 §350995
Fund balance, beginning of year 35,589
Fund balance, end of year % 35095
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit E-0
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive
Authorization  Prior Years Year Total to Date  (Negative)
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental:
State grants $ 359,883 § - $ 37584 $§ 37584 § (322,399)
Federal grants 85,000 - - - (85,000)
Total 454,983 - 37,584 37,584 {(417,399)
Contributions 56,000 - - - (56,000}
Total revenues 510,883 - 37,584 37,584 {473,399)
Expenditures
Public safety:
Courthouse roof project 42,763 13,359 29,403 42,762 1
Economic and physical development:
Farmland preservation 482,775 - 8,377 9,377 473,398
Stream debris removal 32,207 - 32,207 32,207 -
Total 514,082 - 41,584 41,584 473,388
Total expenditures 557,745 13,359 70,287 84,346 473,395
Revenues over (Under)
expenditures (46,762)  (13,359) {33,403) {46,762) -
Qther financing sources {uses)
Transfers from other funds 46,762 13,359 33,403 46,762 -
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ - - 5 - 5 -

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ =
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ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing board is
that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability
purposes.

Airport Commission Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations and
maintenance of public airport facilities and provide hangar rental and fueling services to the
flying public.

Solid Waste Fund — This fund is used to account for the collection, recycle, and disposal of
solid waste.

Transportation Development Plan Fund — This fund is used to transport citizens for
human service and community service needs.

Water Fund — This fund is used to account for the County’s water operations.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Non-Major Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position
June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-1
Transportation
Davelopment Plan
Solid Waste Fund Fund Total
Assets
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,522,573 % 311,566 % 1,834,076
Receivables, net 774,747 32,542 807,289
Due from other funds 88 - 88
Resiricied cash and cash equivalents 800 - 800
Total current assets 2,298,148 344,108 2,642,256
Norncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,070,055 - 1,070,055
Net pension asset 75,211 32,098 107,309
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 216,348 - 216,348
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 2,828,578 353,557 3,282,135
Total capital assets 3,144 926 353,557 3,498,483
Total noncurrent assets 4,290,192 385,655 4,675,847
Total assets 6,588,340 729,783 7,318,103
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 00,235 25,706 85,941
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 74,453 241 74,694
Due to other funds 798 - 798
Customer deposits 800 - 800
Deferred revenue 5,364 - 5,364
Total current liabilities 81,415 241 81,656
[.ong-term liabilities;
Compensated absences 60,078 26,600 86,678
Other post-employment benefit 442,857 188,553 631,410
Total long-term liabilities 502,935 215,153 718,088
Total liabilities 584,350 215,394 799,744
Deferred Inflows of Resources 183,308 78,230 261,538
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 3,144,926 353,557 2,498,483
Urrestricted 2,735,991 108,288 2,844 279
Total net position 5,880,017 % 461845 % 6,342,762
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Non-Major Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-2
Transportation
Solid Waste Development
Fund FPlan Fund Toial
Operating revenues
Charges for services/sale of goods 3 2925014 % 551884 $ 3,476,998
Operating expenses
Operating expenses 2,937,828 982,263 3,820,091
Operating income (loss) (12,814) (430,279) (443,083)
Non-operating reventes {expenses)
Invesiment earnings 1,084 42 1,126
Federal grants - 42,439 42,439
State grants 49,388 451,928 501,316
Disposal tax revenues 131,116 - 131,116
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 2,264 3,210 5474
Contributions - 25,116 25,116
Miscellaneous 1,012 18 1,030
Total non-operating revenue (expense) 184,864 522,753 707,617
Change in net position 172,050 92,474 264,524
Net position, beginning of year 5,804,806 410,314 6,215,120
Restatement (95,939) {40,943) {136,882)
Net position, end of year 3 5,880,917 § 461,845 § 6,342,762
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Non-Major Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-3
Transportation
Solid Waste  Development
Fund Plan Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 2,959,699 § 611,852 & 3,571,551
Cash paid for goods and services (1,672,988} (432,218) (2,105,207)
Cash paid to employees for services (1,067,618) (427,336) (1,494,954)
Customer deposits received, net 800 - 800
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 219,892 (247.702) {27,810)
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Miscellaneous 181,516 519,501 701,017
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,264 3,210 5,474
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (248,140) {167,779) {415,919)
Net cash provided {used) by capital and related financing
activities (245,876) (164,568) (410,445)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest on investments 1,084 42 1,126
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 156,616 107,272 263,888
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,436,752 204,294 2,641,046
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,593,368 § 311,566 § 2,904,934
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used} by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (12,814) §  (430,279) $ (443,093)
Adjustmentis to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (usad) by operating activities:
Depreciation 199,175 117,283 316,458
Pension expanse 6,207 2,649 8,856
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 32,224 59,868 892,092
(Increase) decrease in deferred outfiows of
resources for pensions {54,284) (23,166) (77,450)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 4,091 241 4,332
Increase {decrease in deferred revenue 2,461 - 2,461
Increase (decrease} in cusiomer deposits 800 - 600
Increase (decrease) in OPEB obligation 41,999 26,228 68,225
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 233 (524) (291)
Total adjusiments 232,708 182,577 415,283
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 219,892 §  (247,702) $ (27,810)
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-4
Variance
Positive
Finai Budget Actual {Negative)
Operating revenues
Water sales $ 2,556,450 §3,066,480 § 508,990
Water taps 145,100 167,407 22,307
Administration fees - 1,630 1,630
Other operating revenues 67,500 55,542 (11,958)
Totzl operating revenues 2,768,080 3,291,059 521,569
Meon-operating revenues
Investment earnings 50,816 89,493 38,677
Miscellananus 20,002 26,199 5,197
Total operating revenues 70,818 115,692 44 874
Total revenues 2,839,908 3,408,751 566,843
Expenditiires
Administration expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 636,751
Other administration expenditures 133,625
Capital outlay 24,938
Total 873,307 795,315 77,992
County operating expenditures:
Repairs 3,057
Cther operating expenditures 73,658
Total 95,205 76,715 18,490
Albertson operatling expenditures:
Repairs 71,618
Other operating expenditures 30,498
Total 118,501 102,116 16,385
B water operating expenditures:
Repairs 50,642
Other operating expendilures 56,562
Total 137,811 107,204 30,607
D water operating expenditures:
Repairs 46,138
Other operating expendiiures 50,238
Total 107,760 96,376 11,384
E water operating expenditures:
Repairs 40,731
Other operating expendiiures 28,076
Total 81,875 68,807 13,068
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Duplin County, North Caroling
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expendifures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit F-4

Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

F water operating expenditures:

Repairs 69,400
Other operating expenditures 80,945
Total 167,662 150,345 17,317

G water operating expenditures:

Repairs 39,062
Other operating expenditures 53,521
Total 121,619 82,583 29,036
Debt Service:
Principal retirements 1,073,040
Interest and fees 806,661
Total 1,698,704 1,879,701 20,003
Total expenditures 3,603,444 3,369,162 234 282
Ravenues over (under) expenditures (763,536) 37,589 801,125
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer from other funds 5,181 5,181 -
Transfer {0 other funds {28,853} (29,852) 1
Total (24,672) {24,671) 1
Revenues and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses (788,208) 12,918 801,126
Appropriated fund balance 788,208 - (788,208)

Revenues, other financing sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures anx
other financing uses $ - $ 12918 § 12,918
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit F-4

Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Reconciliztion from budgetary basis {modified acerual) to full accrual:
Revenues, other financing sources, and approprigted
fund balance over expenditures and other financing uses 5 12818

Reconciling items:

Capiial outlay 24,938
Depreciation (1,084,200)
Decrease in accrued interest payable 1,505
Principal debt retirement 1,073,040
Amortization of premium on refunding honds 19,092
Amortization of deferred loss on refunding (10,925}
Capital contributions 798,810
Transfer from water capital project (47,170)
Decrease in compensated absences (1,303)
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year 31,254
Pension expense (3,574)
Increase in OPEB obligation (35,345)

Total reconciling items 756,222

Change in net position $ 769,140
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Duplin County, North Caroling
Water Debt Service 2012 Limited Obligation Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-5
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Aciual (Negative)
Non-operating revenues
Investments earnings $ 592,883 3 552,981 § (2)
Expenditures
Debt Service:
Principal retirements 510,000
Interest and fees 582,881
Total expenditures 1,102,983 1,102,881 2
Revenues over (under) expendifures {(510,000) {51C,000) -
Other financing sources
Principal received from waier district GO bonds 510,000 510,000 -
Revenues and other financing sources over expenditures % - g - $ .

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual basis:
Revenues and other financing sources over expendiiures L -

Reconciling items

Principal received from water districts (510,000)
Debt principal payment 510,000
Amortization of bond premium paid to water districts (19,082)
Amottization of limited obligation bond premium 19,092
Decrease in accrued interest receivable (1,275)
Decrease in accrued interest payable 1,275

Total recondiling items -

Change in net position $ -
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Schedule of Revenues

Duplin County, North Carolina
Transportation Development Plan Fund
and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit F-6

Variance
Pesitive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)

Operating revenues
Charges for services

$ 522237 § 551,984 3§ 29,747

Non-operating revenues

Investments earnings - 42 42
Federal grants 42,543 42,439 (104}
State grants 483,780 451,928 (31,852)
Contributions 256,117 25,116 (1)
Miscellaneous - 18 18
Total non-operating revenues 551,440 519,543 (31,897)
Total revenues 1,073,677 1,071,527 {2.150)
Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 435,618
Operating expenditures 196,848
Capital outlay 167,779
DOT Rural General Public Grant 85,668
Workfirst fransportation assistance 186,816
Eiderly/Disabled fransportation assistance 66,617
NCDOT 5310 grant expendiiures 50,231
Feasibility study 7,295
Total expenditures 1,080,754 1,027,573 53,181
Revenues over (under) expenditures (7.077) 43,954 51,031
Other financing sources
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 3,210 3,210
Appropriated fund balance 7.077 - (7,077)
Revenues, other financing sources and appropriated fund balance
over expenditures % - 5 47,164 % 47.164
Reconciiiation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:
Revenues, other financing sources and appropriated fund balance
over expenditures 3 47,164
Reconciling items:
Depreciation {117,283)
Decrease in compensated absences 523
Increase in OPER obligation {(26,228)
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year 23,166
Pension expense (2,649}
Capital outlay 167,779
Total reconciling items 45,310
Change in net position $ 92474
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Airport Commission Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-7
Variance
Positive
Final Budgeti Actual {Negative)
Operating revenues
Sales and rentals $ 487,000 § 470,181 $ (16,819)
Non-operating revenues
Rental income 4,432 - (4,432)
Miscellaneous 1,000 661 (339)
Total non-cperating revenues 5,432 661 (4,771)
Total revenues 492,432 470,842 {21,580)
Expenditures
Operating expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefils 186,062
Purchases 298,645
Other operating expsanditures 105,071
Total operaling expenditures 635,916 589,778 46,138
Revenues over {under) expenditures (143,484) (118,936) 24548
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers from other funds 187,614 187,614 -
Transfers to cther funds (74,916) {2,619} 72,297
Total other financing sources (Uses) 112,698 184,985 72,297
Appropriated fund balance 30,786 - (30,786)
Revenues, other financing sources, and appropriated fund balance
under expenditures and other financing uses $ - $ 66,058 $ 66,050
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual to full accrual:
Revenues, other financing sources, and appropriated fund baiance
under expenditures and other financing uses & 66,059
Recenciling items:
Depreciation (588,265)
Decrease in compensated absences 372
increase in OPER obligation {(9,361)
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year 9,458
Pension expense (1,081)
From Airport Commission Capital Project Fund:
Capital contribution 110,145
Transfers o Airport Commission Capital Project Fund 2,619
Total reconciling items {476,113)
Change in net position 5 (410,054)
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Solid Waste Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-8
Variance
Positive
Final Budgei Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues
Disposal fees $ 1,630,000 § 1,509,579 § (20,421)
User fees ‘ 1,015,000 1,211,080 196,080
Landfill fees . 117,700 g3,172 (24,528)
Sale of recyclables 77,000 113,644 36,644
Total operating revenues 2,738,700 2,927 475 187,775
Non-operating reventies
Investments earnings 2,000 1,084 (916)
State grants 10,000 49,388 39,388
Disposal tax revenues 105,500 131,116 25,616
Miscellaneous - 1,012 1,012
Total non-operating revenues 117,500 182,600 65,100
Total revenues 2,857,200 3,110,075 252,875
Expenditures
Collections:
Salaries and employee benefits 672,917
Operating expenditures 572,070
Disposals:
Salaries and employee benefits 180,247
Operating expenditures 847,708
Capital outiay 209,040
Recycling:
Salaries and employee benefits 197,992
Operating expenditures 46,538
Tire collection:
Salaries and employee benefits 3,772
Operating expendifures 83,140
White goods:
Salaries and employee benefits 4,008
Operating expenditures 55,205
Total expenditures 3,355,072 2,992 538 362,434
Revenues under expenditures (497,872) 117,437 615,309
Other financing sources
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 2,264 2,264
Appropriated fund balance 497 872 - (497,872)
Revenues, other financing sources, and approptiated fund
balance under expenditures $ - $ 119,701 119,701
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Duplin County, North Carolina
solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit F-8

Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {(Negative)
Reconciiiation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to fuli accrual:

Revenues, other financing sources, and appropriated fund
balance under expenditures $ 119,701

Recenciling items:

Deferred revenue {2,461)
Depreciation (198,175)
Increase in compensated absences (233)
Increase in OPEB obligation {41,989)
Contributions io the pension plan in the current fiscal year b4 284
Pension expense (6,207)
Capital outlay 248,140
Total reconciling items 52,349
Change in net position $ 172,050
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Buplin County, North Carolina

Airport Commission Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-G
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive
Authorization  Pricr Years Year  Total{o Date (Negative)

Revenues
State grants

$ 1,417,978 $1,277,320 $106,526 $1,383,846 $ (34,132)

Local option sales faxes 26,008 26,038 3,617 29,656 3,647
investment earnings 2,214 2,225 2 2,227 13
Total revenues 1,446,201 1,305,584 110,145 1,415,729 (30,472)
Expenditures
Terminal project 1,850,729 1,564,347 - 1,664,347 88,382
Precision Approach Path Indicator Light
project 136,642 2,882 133,655 136,537 105
Total expenditures 1,787,371 1,567,229 133,655 1,700,884 86,487
Revenues over (Under) expenditures (341,170) {261,645} {23,510) (285,155) 56,015
Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds 341,170 282,858 2,619 285,577 (55,593)
Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures 8 - $ 21,313 ${20,891) § 422 % 422
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Water District G Clean Water (GHSRGWS8063) Project Fund

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAR)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-10
Actual
Vartance
Project Current Positive
Authorization  Prior Years Year TotaltoDate (Negative)
Revenues
State grants $ 3,200,000 $ 3,179,577 § - % 3479577 § (20423)
local option sales faxes 50,168 51,383 - 51,383 1,215
Total revenues 3,250,168 3,230,960 - 3,230,960 (19,208)
Expenditures
Project expenditures 3,250,168 3,031,949 385 3,032,344 217,824
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3 - § 195,011 $ (395) § 1585816 § 198,616
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Water District G 2009 DWSRF Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-11
Actual
. Variance
Project Current Positive
Authorization Prior Years Year Total to Date  (Negative)

Revenues

Federal and state grant $ 802214 § - & - $ - § (802,214)

Local option sales tax 21,051 21,057 - 21,051 -

Total revenues 823,265 21,051 - 21,051 (802,214)

Expenditures

Project expenditures 1,033,819 811,181 105,911 917,082 116,727
Revenues over (under)
expenditures {210,554) {(790,130) {105,911}  (896,041) (685,487)
Other financing sources

iLoan proceeds - Drinking Water

State Revalving Funds 200,554 790,130 - 790,130 589,576

Transfer from Water District G 10,000 - _ = - (10,000)

Total other financing sources 210,554 750,130 - 780,130 579,576

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures  § - $ - $ (105,911} $§ (105911) § (105,811)
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Water District E 2009 DWSRF Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-12
Actual
Variance
Project Current Total fo Positive
Authorization Prior Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues
Federal and state grant 3 726,125 % - $ 631,434 631,434 5 (94,681)
Local option sales taxes 16,101 16,307 = 16,307 206
Total revenues 742,226 16,307 631,434 647,741 (94 485)
Expenditures
Project expenditures g33,757 174,166 631,434 805,600 128,157
Revenues over (under) expenditures (191,531) (157,859) - (157,859) 33,672
Other financing sources
Loan proceeds - Drinking Water State
Revolving Funds 181,531 157,853 “ 157,85% (23,672)
Transfer from Water District E 10,000 - - - {10,000}
Total other financing sources 181,531 157,859 - 157,858 (33,672)
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures § - $ - $ - 5 - 3 -
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Water District G and E 1-40-373 Sewer Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-13
Actual
Variance
Project Current Total to Positive
Authorization  Prior Years Year Date {Negative)
Revenues
USDA grant $ 936,000 $ 885051 $ 50,249 § 036,000 $ -
Rural Center grant 500,000 - “ - {5006,000)
Local opticn sales taxes 25,083 25,041 43 25,084 1
Investment earnings 97 g7 - 97 -
Total revenues 1,461,180 910,189 50,892 961,181 {(499,899)
Expenditures
Project expenditures 1,645,665 108,579 1,755,244
Total 1,645,665 109,578 1,755,244
Debt service
Interest and fees 6,915 - 6,315
Tolal expenditures 2,160,010 1,652,580 109,578 1,762,158 397,851
Revenues over (under) expenditures (698,830) (742,391) {58,587} (800,978) (102,148)
Other financing sources
Loan proceeds from USDA 646,000 646,000 - 646,000 -
Transfer from Water Fund - District E 100,000 100,000 - 100,000 -
Transfer to Debt Service {(41,890) - {41,998} (41,990} -
Transfer to Water Fund (5,180) - {5,180} (5,180) -
Total other financing sources 698,830 746,000 47,170 698,830 -
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ 3,609  §{105,757) $(102,148) $(102,148)
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Duplin County, North Caroling

Water District F 2009 DWSRF Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit F-14
Actual
Variance
Project Current Positive
Authorization  Prior Years Year Totai to Date  (Negative)
Revenues
Local option sales iaxes kS 15,045 $ - % 45345 $ 15945 % -
Expenditures
Project expenditures 2,380,101 1,844,082 546,009 2,380,101 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,374,156)  (1,844,092) (530,064 (2,374,156} -
Other financing sources
Loan proceeds - Drinking Water
State Revolving Funds 2,349,156 1,819,092 530,064 2,349,156 -
Transfer from Water District F 25,000 25,000 “ 25,000 -
Total other financing sources 2,374,158 1,844,092 530,064 2,374,156 -
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of governmental long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit G-1
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
fnvestment earnings $ - $ 110 % 110
Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,448,697
tnterest and fees 472,703
Total expenditures 2,083,434 1,821,400 162,034
Revenues over (under) expenditures {2,083,434) (1,921,290) 162,144
Other financing sources (1ses)
Transfers from other funds 2,083,434 2,101,362 17.828
Net change in fund balance ‘ $ - 180,072 § 180,072
Fund balance, beginning of year 448,795 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 628,867
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity.
Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

County Agency Fund - This fund accounts for the monies held in trust by the
County for various departments.

Social Services Fund — This fund accounts for monies held by the Social Service
Department for the benefit of certain individuals in the county.

Motor Vehicle Tax Fund — This fund accounts for the proceeds of the motor vehicle
taxes collected by the County on behalf of municipalities within the County.

Register of Deeds Trust Fund — This fund accounts for the five dollars of each fee

collected by the register of deeds for registering or filing a deed of frust or morigage
to remit to North Carolina.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

County Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit H-1
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual {(Negative)
Revenues '
Restricted Intergovernmentat:

Unauthorized substance tax % - § 7483 % 7,483
Investment earnings - 15 15
Miscellaneous revenue:

Fees and commissions 11,1186 13,114 1,888

Donations 4 867 8,812 3,945

Total 15,983 21,926 5,943
Tota! revenues 15,983 29,424 13,441
Expenditures
General Government:

Sheriff/Jail 5,894

TB lung disease 25

General aging trust 4

Senior games 264

Senior citizens frips 10,386

Animal control 5,251

Total expenditures 93,5628 21,824 71,704
Revenues over (under} expendiiures (77,545) 7,600 85,145
Appropriated fund balance 77,545 - (77,545)
Net change in fund balance $ - 7,600 % 7,600
Fund balance, beginning of year 77,559
Fund balance, end of year $ 85,158
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2015

Exhibit H-2
Board of
Education
Motor County Social Register of Fines and
Vehicle Tax  Agency Services Deeds Trusi Forfeitures
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - $ 77259 § 62001 $ 8,818 % 13§ 148,191
Miscellaneous receivabies 29,540 673 - - - 30,213
Total assets $ 20540 § 77932 § 62001 § 8,918 % 13§ 178,404
Liahilities
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 28,540 76,031 3§ 62,001 5,918 § 13§ 176,503
Due to other funds - 1,901 - - - 1,801
Total liahilities $ 29540 § 77932 § 62001 & 8918 $ 13§ 178404
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit H-3
Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deduciions  June 30, 2015
Motor Vehicle Tax Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 365234 $ 385,234 § -
Miscellaneous receivables 26,601 28,540 26,601 29,540
Due from other governmental funds - 890 880 -
Total assets $ 26,601 395664 $ 382725 % 28,540
Liabilities -
Miscellaneous liabilities & 26,601 395590 § 392651 % 29,540
Due to other governmental funds - 74 74 -
Total liabilities $ 26,601 395664 $ 392725 % 28,540
County Agency Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,237 802,564 § 823532 § 77,259
Miscellaneous receivables 105 762 194 673
Total assets 3 98,342 803,316 $ 823,726 % 77,932
Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities 3 91,751 774,751 § 790,471 % 76,031
Due to other governmenta! funds 6,591 28,565 33,255 1,801
Total liabilities $ 88,342 803,316 § 823726 § 77,832
Social Services Fund
Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 47,334 82327 $§ 67660 & 62,001
Liabilities
Miscelaneous liabilities 3 47,334 82327 $§ 675660 § 62,001
Register of Deeds Trust Fund:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,095 103673 $ 104,850 § 8,918
Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities 5 10,091 103,573 § 104,746 $ 8,818
Due to other governmental funds 4 100 104 -
Total liabilities $ 10,085 103,673 $ 104,850 % 8,818
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit H-3
Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deductions June 30, 2015
Board of Education Fines and Forfeitures Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 8,780 97,522 § 107,280 % 13
Miscellaneous receivables - 2,343 2,343 -
Due from other governmental funds - 1,011 1,011 -
Total assets $ 9,780 100,876 & 110,643 % 13
Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilites $ 3,780 100,202 § 109,962 § 13
Due to other governmenial funds - 674 674 -
Total liabilities $ 9,780 100,876 § 110843 3 13
Totals - All Agency Funds:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 165,446 1,451,310 31,468,565 % 148,191
Miscellaneous receivables 26,706 32,845 256,138 30,213
Due from other governmental funds - 1,901 1,801 “
Totfal assets $ 192,152 1,485,856 $ 1499604 $ 178,404
Liahilities
. Miscelianeous liabilities $ 185,557 1,456,443 $ 1465497 $ 178,503
Due to other governmental funds 6,595 29,413 34,107 1,901
Total liabilities $ 192,152 1,485,856 $ 1,499,604 § 178,404
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INTERNAL SERVICE
FUND

The internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the County
on a cost reimbursement basis.

Hospital insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the payment of health
insurance premiums from County and employee contributions and pays for the
costs of the plan. All contributions to the fund remain in the fund for the plan to
use in subsequent years.
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Duplin County, North Carclina

Hospital Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit 1-1
Variance
Positive
Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Operating revenues;
Charges for services $ 4624000 $ 4701269 § 77,269
Non-operating revenues:
Investment earnings - 441 4419
Total revenues 4,624,000 4,701,710 77,710
Expenditures
Operating expenditures 5,374,000 4,874,250 399,750
Revenues ovear {under) expenditures (750,000) (272,540) 477,460
Other financing sources
Transfer from other funds 350,000 350,000 -
Appropriated fund balance 400,000 - (400,000)
Net change in fund balance $ - 77460 § 77,460
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,725,137
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,802,597
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COMPONENT UNIT

This section provides supplementary information regarding the County’s discretely
presented component unit that does not issue separate financial statements.

Duplin County Tourism Development Authority — This discretely presented
governmental fund type component unit accounts for tourism development activities within
the County.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Duplin County Tourism Development Authority
Supplemental Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Exhibit J-1
Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 389,380
Accounts receivable 22795
Total current assets 422 175
Total assets 3 422 175
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,421
Total current liabilities 1,421
Long-term liahilities:
Compensated absences 3,744
Total liabilities 5,165
Met Position
Restricted:
Stabilization by siate statute _ 22,785
Unrestricted 394,215
Total net position $ 417,010

Note: This is a discretely presented component unit which does not prepare separate financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Duplin County Tourism Development Authority
supplemental Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit J-2

Net (Expense) Revenua
and Changes in Net

Position
Governmental
Functions/Programs Experses Activities
Governmental Activities:
Economic and physical development 3 190,425 § {190,425)
General Revenues:
Occupancy taxes $ 257182
Sales and services 2,443
Investment earnings 67
Total general revenues 259,672
Change in net position 69 247
Net position, beginning of year 347,763
Net position, ending of year 3 417,010

Note: This is a discretely presented component unit which does not prepare separate financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Duplin County Tourism Development Authority

Suppiemental Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

Exhibit_ J-3
Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 3 399,380
Accounts receivable 22,795
Total assets $ 422175
L.iabiiities
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities $ 1,421
Fund Balances
Restricted:
Stabilization by state statute 22,795
Unassighed 387,959
Total fund balances 420,754
Total fiabilities and fund balances $ 422175
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Pesition
are different hecause:
Total fund balances - General Fund $ 420,754
Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, do
not require curtent rescurces 10 pay and are iherefore hot reported in the
fund statements.
Compensated absences (3,744)
Net position of governmental aciivities $ 417,010

Note: This is a discretely presented component unit which does not prepare separate financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Duplin County Tourism Development Authority
supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit J-4
Revenues
Occupancy taxes $ 257,162
Sales and services 2443
Investment earnings 67
Total revenues 259,672
Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 52,528
Advertising 52,485
Promotion and entertainment 10,688
Travel, fraining, and meals 8,208
Other operating expenditures 68,767
Total expenditures 162,676
Net change in fund balance 66,996
Fund balance, beginning of year 353,758
Fund balance, end of year $ 420,754
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Net changes in fund batance - General Fund $ 66,996
Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of current resources
to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements.
Compensaled absences 2,251
Total chandes in governmental activities 3 69,247

Note: This is a discretely presented component unit which does not prepare separate financial statements.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Duplin County Tourism Development Authority

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Exhibit J-5

Variance

with Final

Positive
Original Budget  Final Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Occupancy faxes
Sales and services

$ 197,853 % 197,853 $ 257,162 $ 59,309
] . 2,443 2.443.0

Investment earnings - - 67 67
Total revenues 197,853 197,853 259,672 61,819
Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 52,528
Advertising 52,485
Promotion and entertainment 10,688
Travel, training, and meals 8,208
Other operating expenditures 68,767
Total expenditures 197,853 216,900 192,676 24,224
Revenues over (Under) expenditures - {19,047) 66,286 86,043
Fund balance appropriated - 19,047 - {15,047)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 66996 § 66,996
Fund balance, beginning of year 353,758
Fund balance, end of year $ 420,754

Note: This is a discretely presenied component unit which does not prepare separate financial statements.
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OTHER SCHEDULES

This section provides additional information on ad valorem taxes and general obligation
debt.

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
Analysis of Current Tax Levy — County-wide Levy
Analysis of Current Tax Levy —~ Secondary Market Disclosures

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
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Dupiin County, North Carclina

General Fund
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2015

Exhibit K-1
Uncoliected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year June 30, 2014 Additions and Credits June 30, 2015
2014-2015 3 - 520,745,210 $(28,972,293) § 776,917
2013-2014 1,121,784 - {697,520) 424,264
2012-2013 545,054 - (272,927} 272127
2011-2012 306,740 - {130,033) 175,707
2010-2011 212 963 - {80,552) 132,411
20089-2010 157,152 - {(49,298) 107,856
2008-2000 136,598 - {31,458) 105,140
2007-2008 127,048 - {16,417) 110,631
2006-2007 118,520 - {13,830) 104,580
2005-2006 82,950 - (8,616) 74,334
2004-2005 92,923 - {92,923) -
Totals 3 2,800,732 § 29,748,210 § (30,365,965) 2,283,977
Prior year property taxes being coliected through garnishments 43,603
Prior year vehicle taxes being collected through garnishments 697
Discoveries due to business persanal property tax audits (38,440)
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts {810,668}
Ad valorem taxes receivable, net $ 1,479,168
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ 30,069,681
Reconciling items:
Retumed checks {13,750)
Interast and penalties collected (437,630)
Adjustments (46,276)
Underpaymenis 127
Fines and forfeitures 72,930
Discounts aliowed 292,359
Property taxes allocated to the Revaluation Fund 117,900
Taxes written off 44 300
Prior years releases 266,324
Total collections and credits $ 30,365,065
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Couniy-wide Levy

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit K-2
County-wide Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Registered  Registered
Property Amount of Motor Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
Property taxed at current year's
rate $ 4,025,412 603 0.73 $29,392.812 $26,510,161 $2,882,651
Penalties 47,690 47 890 -
Total 4,026,412 603 29,440,502 26,557,851 2,882,651
Discoveries:
Current year taxes 25 059,726 189,506 189,506 -
Prior year's taxes - 119,202 119,202 -
Total 25,859,728 308,708 308,708 -
Totai property valuation $ 4,052 372,329
Net ievy 29,748,210 26,866,559 2,882 651
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2015 (776,917) {776,827) {280)
Current year's taxes collected $28,872,293 $ 26,089,832 $2 8822361
Current levy collection percentage 97.39% S7. 1% 99.99%
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Secondary Market Disclosures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Exhibit K-3
Assessed Valuation:
Assessment ratio® 100.00%
Real property $ 3,441,107,406
Personal property 492 857,496
Public service companies™ 118,407 427
Total assessed valuation 4,052,372,328
Tax rate per $100 0.73
Tax levy (including discoveries, releases, and abatements) 28,582,318
Penalties 47,690
Prior year's taxes 119,202
Net levy ‘ $ 29,749,210

In addition to the County-wide rate, the foliowing table lists the levies by the County on behaH of fire
protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015:

Fire Protection District Levy

Qak Woife $ 50,138
Glisson 111,547
Sarecta 93413
East Dupiin 73,815
Albertson 61,7865
Stacy Britt 114,651
Franklin 18,588
Northeast 170,841

Total $ 594 879

* Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.

** Valualion of railroads, telephone companies, and other utilities as determined by
the North Carclina Property Tax Cammission.

** The levy includes interest and penalties
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Assessed value of taxable property
Debt imit per G.S. 159-55

Duplin County, North Carolina
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 2015
Exhibit K-4

$ 4.052,372,329

8.00%

Total 324,189,786
Gross debt:

Limited obligation bonds 14,900,000

Notes payable 10,012,316

Total gross debt 24,912,316

Less: Debt incurred for water activities

lLimited ebligation bonds
Notes payable

(14,900,000
(3,883,620)

Total debt incurred for water activities

(18,783,829)

Total amount of debt applicable to debt limit (net debt)

6,128,687

Legal debt margin

$ 318,061,095
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STATISTICAL SECTION

{(Unaudited)

Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the County’s financial performance has changed over the past ten years.

Table 1 — Net Position by Component

Table 2 — Changes in Net Position

Table 3 —- Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Table 4 — Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
County's most significant revenue source.

Table 5 - Assessed Value and Actual Vaiue of Taxable Property
Table 6 — Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governments
Table 7 — Principal Taxpayers

Table 8 — Property Tax l.evies and Collections

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Table 9 — Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
Table 10 — Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding and Legal Debt Margin
Information

Demographic and Economic Statistics — These schedules offer demographic and
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the
County’s financial activities take place.

Table 11 — Demographic and Economic Statistics
Table 12 — Principal Employers

Operating Information ~ These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help
the reader understand how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the
services the County provides and the activities it performs.

Table 13 — Fuli-time County Government Employees by Function/Program
Table 14 — Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Table 15 — Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 1
June 30, 20086 2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental Activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 9,887425 $ 11,117,491 § 10,921,097 $ 11,791,248 $ 10,708,021
Restricied - - - - -
Unrestricted 17,196,345 18,582,516 21,701,648 19,993,963 15,312,312
Total governmental activities 27,083,770 29,700,007 32,622,745 31,785,211 26,020,333
Business-type Actlvities:
Net investment in capital assets 33,544,842 35,859,819 36,923,637 36,458,722 36,770,577
Restricted - - 263,339 1,301,841 1,347,008
Unrestricted 7,002 057 5,768,638 5,804,102 5,474,348 6,150,645
Total business-type activities 40,546,899 41,628,457 43,091,078 43,234,911 44 268,230
Primary Government:
Net investment in capital assets 43,432,267 46,977,310 47,844,734 48,249,970 47,478,508
Restricted - - 263,339 1,301,841 1,347,008
Unrestricted 24,198,402 24,351,154 27,605,750 25,468,311 21,462,957
Total primary government $ 67,630,669 §$ 71328464 § 75,713,823 § 75,020,122 § 70,288,563

Scurce: Annual audited financial statements of the County.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 1
June 30, 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Governmental Activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 12,393,238 $ 11,798,823 § 9,963,445 § 10,917,432 $ 11,733,322
Restricted 8,197,122 9,542,550 8,512,963 9,561,211 10,597,209
Unrestricted 9,018,185 5,559,432 11,414,280 12,424 277 12,309,865
Total governmental activities 29,608,545 26,900,805 29,890,688 32,802,820 34,640,396
Business-type Activities:
Net investment in capital assets 36,018,493 35,552,070 36,267,466 39,830,796 37,172,581
Restricted 1,265,805 1,069,259 1,556,484 223,933 21,213
Unrestricted 6,476,985 6,911,589 7,590,329 8,935,579 9,475,946
Total business-type activities 43,761,293 43,532,918 45,414,279 48,990,308 46,669,740
Primary Governmenti:
Net investment in capital assets 48,411,731 47,350,893 46,230,911 50,748,228 48,905,903
Restricted 9,462,927 10,611,809 10,069,447 9,785,144 10,618,422
Unrestricted 15,495,180 12,471,021 19,004,609 21,359,856 21,785,811
Total primary government $ 73,369,838 § 70,433,723 §$ 75304967 § 81,893,228 % 81,310,136
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Year Ended June 30,

Duplin County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
Table 2

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Expenses:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Development
Human Services
environmental Protection
Cultural and Recreational
Education
Non-departmental
Interest on long-term debt

4,957,760 $ 5284371 % 6120388 % 6,130,831 $ 7,207,316

10,704,587 11,326,523 13,207,438 14,625,588 14,661,356
4,605,631 3,244,815 2,882,505 2,358,124 2,484,733
17,472,094 17,211,698 17,298,237 17,332,594 16,732,852
610,237 641,673 478,370 513,483 723,221
834,201 1,047,148 1,017,310 872,582 827,686
9,067,213 10,722,305 10,957,705 12,304,442 15,585,786
189,646 209,765 257,326 265,663 310,502
551,124 989,242 954,607 895,065 826,828

Total governmental activities

48,992,493 50,677,540 53,173,887 55,288,372 59,270,280

Business-type Activities:

Airport 1,047,008 914,221 1,078,481 985,170 1,087,058
Water and Sewer 3,764,562 4,072,863 4,083,008 4,082,107 4,255,842
Transportation 898,399 1,022,674 1,026,480 1,037,242 1,056,522
Sclid Waste 2,865,587 4,667,880 3,256,153 3,111,559 3,054,194

Total business-type activities 8,575,556 10,677,638 9,444,133 9,216,078 9,453,616

Total primary government expenses

57,568,049 61,355,178 62,618,020 64,504,450 68,723,896

Program Revenydes:
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Public Safety
Development
Human Services
Environmental Protection
Cultural and Recreational
Education
Non-departmental
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions

1,638,250 1,585,145 2,143,126 1,653,004 1,587,363
2,335,191 2,465,555 2,678,622 2,351,226 3,033,182
23,184 35,249 18,420 37,231 25,041
985,442 839,577 896,186 665,457 817,614
41,490 - 44,820 44,640 -
65,634 94,404 124,027 279,504 287,214
10,453,997 9,985,782 11,246,185 11,576,726 12,394,237
1,643,594 745,179 227,218 371,005 1,990,521

Total governmental activities

17,086,782 $ 15,750,891 § 17,278,604 5 16,978,793 § 20,135,572

Business-type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Alrport 655504 % 498,504 § 533,460 $ 387,988 § 677,984
Water and Sewer 3,622,143 3,286,828 3,813,219 3,829,327 4,259,400
Transportation 520,524 510,498 504,707 508,027 497,901
Solid Waste 2,663,826 2,843,338 3,018,759 2,871,138 2,815,088
Operating Grants & Contributions - - - - -
Capital Grants & Contributions - - - 1,297,484 1,767,017
Tatal business-type activities 7,461,097 7,139,258 7,870,145 8,893,064 10,017,390

Total primary government

24,548,779 22,890,149 25,148,749 25,872,757 30,152,962
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Year Ended June 30,

Duplin County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
Table 2

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Expenses:

Governmental Actijvities:
General Government
Public Safety
Economic & Physical Development
Human Services
Environmental Protection
Cultural and Recreational
Education
Norn-departmental
Interest gn long-term debt

7,367,762 $§ 6,613472 $§ 6215976 § 5884447 $  5901,684
14,687,927 18,267,162 18,488,567 17,821,492 17,884,866

2,613,007 5,088,488 3,107,600 1,363,220 1,157,204
15,960,082 17,806,856 17,199,716 16,015,053 16,123,169
536,068 728,522 792,256 704,203 784,371
688,061 864,163 1,238,294 1,204,921 1,316,387
11,580,259 11,933,988 13,238,503 13,334,623 12,370,800
1,239,610 273,150 281,301 287,491 283,606
784,677 660,077 527,820 431,245 398,966

Tetal governmental activities

55,457,343 62,235,888 61,091,033 57,046,695 56,222,053

Business-type Activities:

Airport 1,102,790 1,214,843 1,138,106 1,796,254 1,178,655
Water and Sewer 4,196,653 4,095,462 4,568,959 3,347,524 3,364,680
Fransportation 1,180,039 1,073,935 993,244 1,073,121 982,263
Solid Waste 3,109,941 3,299,368 3,274,051 2,971,828 2,937,828

Total business-type activities 9,589,423 9,683,608 9,974,360 9,188,727 8,483,426

Total primary government expenses

65,046,766 71,919,496 71,065,383 66,235,422 64,685,475

Program Revenues:
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Public Safety

Economic & Physical Development

Human Services
Environmentat Protection
Cuiltural and Recreational
Education
Non-departmental
Operating Grants & Contributicns
Capital Grants & Contributions

4,247,238 2,669,151 2,431,141 1,636,600 338,946
3,608,791 3,037,248 9,156,791 2,907,354 3,205,147
75,360 241,156 82,813 68,137 2,130,015
3,554,262 3,251,599 3,368,702 4,412,664 1,405,313

69,975 45,705 44,857 2,198 -
73,267 253,422 275,133 149,585 141,903

- - 25,069 . .
11,192,637 9,940,908 10,831,435 10,586,282 12,636,041
2,054,956 4,308,980 2,217,868 920,045 789,856

Total governmental activities

24,876,486 $§ 23,748,169 § 28,433,808 $ 20682865 $§ 20,647,221

Business-type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Airport

507,905 & 626515 $ 536,690 §$ 498,854 § 470,181

Water and Sewer 4,049,271 3,900,461 4,449,082 4,274,645 3,291,059
Transportation 502,920 497,992 570,637 625,597 551,984
Solid Waste 2,836,284 2,963,339 2,753,962 2,740,153 2,925,014
Operating Grants & Contriputions - - 500,262 586,312 568,871
Capital Grants & Contributions 871,813 1,080,859 2,208,916 3,402,150 909,055
Total business-type activities 8,768,193 9,069,166 11,110,449 12,127,711 8,716,164

Total primary government

33,644,679 32,817,335 38,644,258 32,810,576 29,363,385

(continued)
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Year Ended June 30,

2006

2007

Duplin County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
Table 2

2008

2000 2010

(Continued)
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities

(31,905,711)

(34,926,649)

(35,895,283)

(38,309,579}

(39,134,708)

Business-type Activities (1,113,559) (3,538,380} (1,573,988) (322,114) 563,774
Total primary government net
(expense)/revenue (33,019,270) (38,465,029) (37,469,271) (38,631,693) {38,570,834)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities:
Property Taxes 22,807 668 24,028,771 25,630,819 26,771,560 26,925,485
Local Option Sales Taxes 9,040,136 11,340,617 11,142,288 9,273,969 6,282,993
Other Taxes and Licenses 638,797 606,706 623,379 670,514 367,282
tnvestment earnings 1,106,775 1,269,148 1,124,025 531,081 140,621
Miscellanecus 829,265 605,379 581,982 575,500 63,080
Extraordinary items - - - - -
Transfers (251,594) (307,736) {284,472) (350,679) (409,632)

Total governmental activities 34,171,047 37,542,885 38,818,021 37,472,045 33,369,829

Business-type Activities;

Other Taxes and Licenses - - - - -
Investment earnings 281,194 335,857 262,506 115,269 31,053
Capital Centributions 2,514,684 3,825,994 2,418,568 - -
Miscellaneous 207,080 160,351 71,064 91 28,864
Transfers 251,594 307,736 284 472 350,579 409,632

Total business-type activities 3,254,562 4,619,938 3,036,809 465,939 469 549

Total primary government 37,425,609 42,162,823 41,854,630 37,937,984 33,839,378
Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities 2,265,336 2,616,236 2,922.738 {837,534) (5,764,879)

Business-type Activities 2,141,003 1,081,558 1,462,621 143,825 1,033,323

Teotal primary government $ 4406339 3 3697794 $§ 4385359 § (693,709) & (4,731,556)

Source: Annual audited financial statements of the County.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years

{(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 2
Year Ended June 30, 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
(Continued}
Net {Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities (30,580,857) (38,487,719) {32,657,224) {36,363,830) (35,574,832)
Business-type Activities {821,230) (614,442) 1,136,089 2,938,984 252,738
Total primary government net
(expense)/revenue (31,402,087) (39,102,161)  (31,521,135)  (33,424,846)  (35,322,004)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities:
Property Taxes 26,669,740 27,863,938 28,484,431 30,238,201 30,948,358
Local Option Sales Taxes 7,116,858 7,285,383 7,774,018 7,885,364 8,283,242
Other Taxes and Licenses 639,270 341,863 107,583 655,664 94,972
Investment earnings 72,342 50,115 48,818 25,582 80,380
Miscellaneous (49,445) 438,680 126,967 192,631 148,911
Extraordinary items - - - 588,597 -
Transfers (279,697) (200,000) (127,584) {219,978) (115,773)
Total governmental activities 34,169,068 35,779,979 36,414,234 39,376,061 39,440,090
Business-type Activities:

Other Taxes and lLicenses - - - - 131,118
Investment earnings 14,522 8,911 603,100 4,197 90,619
Capital Contributions - - - 236,037 -
Miscellanecus 20,074 177,156 86,164 176,833 33,364
Transfers 279,697 200,000 127,584 219,978 115,773

Total business-type activities 314,293 386,067 816,848 637,045 370,872

Total primary government 34,483,361 36,166,046 37,231,082 40,013,106 39,810,962
Change In Net Position

Governmenial Activities 3,588,211 (2,707,740) 3,757,010 3,012,231 3,865,258

Business-type Activities (508,937) (228,375) 1,952,937 3,576,029 623,610

Total primary government $§ 3081274 § (2,938,115) § 5709947 § 6588260 $ 4,488,868

Source: Annual audited financial statements of the County.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Table 3

June 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General Fund:
Reserved $ 3665729 $ 3,709873 § 3,372,280 $ 2867035 $ 3,202,779
Unreserved 13,196,262 11,856,227 11,607,071 11,148,753 9,147,734
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted - - - - -
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -
Total fund balances 16,861,991 15,566,100 14,979,351 14,016,788 12,350,513

All Other Governmental Funds:
Reserved 1,097,063 842,911 702,352 605,276 846,328
Unreserved 7.810,748 10,092,967 10,812,608 9,866,438 9,113,651
Nonspendable - - - - ;
Restricted - - - - -
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -

Total fund balances 8,907,811 10,935,878 11,514,960 10,471,714 9,959,979

Total Governmental Funds:
Reserved 4,762,792 4,552,784 4,074,632 3,472,311 4,048,107
Unreserved 21,007,010 21,949,194 22,419,679 21,016,191 18,261,385
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted - - - - -
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -
Total fund balances $ 25769,802 $§ 26,501,978 $ 26,494,311 $ 24,488502 $ 22,310,492

Source: Annual audited financial statements of the County.

Note: The County implemented GASB Statement No. 54 during the year ended June 30, 2011,
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 3
June 30, 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Fund:
Reserved $ - 5 - - - $ -
Unreserved - - - - -
Nenspendable 256,409 301,552 248,895 292,590 270,487
Restricted 3,420,640 3,934,838 3,668,612 5,496,662 5,315,068
Committed 1,420,897 1,157,686 1,048,178 958,041 928,805
Assigned 4,340,052 3,088,498 1,870,089 2,404,214 2,560,129
Unassigned 3,485,614 3,720,583 6,267,563 6,254,031 7,617,518
Total fund balances 12,903,612 12,203,158 13,204,337 15,405,538 16,692,007
All Other Governmental Funds:
Reserved - - - - -
Unreserved - - - - .
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted 4,218,038 5,607,256 4,844,351 4,064,549 5,282,141
Committed 3074777 1,553,354 1,135,665 1,680,366 1,742,146
Assigned 1,133,302 870,818 263,849 - -
Unassigned (1,628) (3,111) (2,669) {4,655) (3,748)
Total fund balances 8,424,489 8,028,317 6,245,196 5,750,260 7,020,539
Total Governmental Funds:
Reserved - - - - -
Unreserved - - - - -
Nonspendable 256,409 301,552 248,895 292,580 270,487
Restricted 7,638,678 9,542,095 8,512,963 9,561,211 10,597,209
Committed 4,495,674 2,711,040 2,188,843 2,648,407 2,670,951
Assigned 5,473,354 3,959,316 2,233,938 2,404,214 2,560,129
Unassigned 3,463,986 3,717,472 6,264,894 6,249,376 7,613,770
Total fund halances $ 21,328,101 $ 20,231,475 $ 19,449,533 $ 21,155798 $ 23,712,546

Source: Annual audited financial statements of the County.

Note: The County implemented GASB Statement No. 54 during the year ended June 30, 2011,
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Duplin County, North Cardlina

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 4
Year Ended June 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 22456961 $ 24,114,423 $ 24667,222 $ 25,487,215 §$ 26,095,078
Local Option Sales Taxes 9,040,138 11,340,617 11,142,288 9,273,969 7,733,398
Other Taxes and Licenses 606,527 606,706 623,379 671,008 619,734
Unrestricted intergovernmental 32,270 37,450 34,860 34,720 49,420
Restricted Intergovernmental 11,363,865 9,631,966 10,581,612 10,785,191 11,551,993
Restricted Revenue - - - - -
Permits and Fees 964,977 945,726 836,318 665,357 833,671
Sales and Services 4,757,941 4,916,257 5,536,981 5,724,280 6,070,328
Invesiment Eamings 1,108,774 1,269,148 1,124,025 521,735 139,089
Miscellaneous 779,266 668,367 447 608 302,329 201,486
Total revenues 51,108,717 53,530,660 55,004,291 53,465,804 53,095,097
Expenditures:
General Government 4,910,763 5,293,336 6,037,685 5,832,069 6,813,324
Public Safety 10,739,613 12,128,924 13,007,184 13,606,623 14,113,545
Economic & Physical Development 4,827,240 1,458,128 2,006,142 1,917,473 1,822,711
Hurnan Services 16,495,464 17,152,931 17,171,101 18,542,424 15,835,849
Cultural and Recreational 825,500 823,227 861,214 804,846 746,683
Environmental Protection 530,480 632,736 465,397 490,848 688,093
Capital Projects 321,752 1,702,851 774,436 400,068 350,399
Non-Departmental 189,646 209,765 235,405 255,663 310,503
Education 9,067,213 10,722,305 10,957,705 12,304,442 10,790,002
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,872,555 1,934,163 2,235,328 2,366,847 2,231,976
Interest and Fees 618,954 1,025,471 990,836 863,468 863,080
Total expenditures 50,399,180 53,084,336 54,832,433 55,384,871 54,566,145
Revenues over {under) expenditures 709,537 445,724 171,858 {1,919,067) (1,471,048)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from the sale of assets - - - 42,615 51,577
Proceeds from the issuance of debt - 619,965 - - -
Capital Coniributions - - - - -
Transfers from other funds 3,260,671 4,133,142 4,833,727 3,615,102 4,260,101
Transfers to other funds {3,512, 265) {4,440,879) (5,019,307) (4,065,681) (5,101,968)
Total oiher financing sources {uses) {251,594) 312,228 {185,580) (407,964} (790,290)
Extraordinary Items - - - B -
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 457,943 § 757,952 § {13,722 $ (2,327.031) § (2,261,333)
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
expenditures 5.08% 5,76% 5.97% 5.93% 5.81%

Source: Annual audited financial statements of the County.
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Year Ended June 30,

2011

Duplin County, North Carolina
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

2012

2013

2014

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Table 4

2015

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes

$ 28,391,085 §

28095424 § 28,348,279 $ 30,468,449 § 30,048,358

Local Option Sales Taxes 7,116,858 7,285,383 7,774,018 7,885,364 8,283,242
Other Taxes and Licenses 639,270 145,704 87,104 93,773 94,971
Unrestricted Intergovernmentai 40,320 47,439 73,018 5,803,596 6,237 452
Restricied Intergovernmentai 11,465,028 13,117,770 11,852,896 5,880,692 6,090,987
Restricted Revenue - - 195,724 227,379 113,733
Permits and Fees 637,857 557,317 566,950 484,499 485,252
Sales and Services 7,108,383 7,491,979 7,641,452 7,200,638 7,124,707
Investment Eamings 71,568 50,115 47,849 25,329 79,939
Miscetlaneaus 570,214 1,815,320 1,121,074 382,019 178,916
Total revenues 54,038,561 58,606,451 57,716,366 58,461,736 59,646,557
Expenditures:
General Government 7,191,915 5,877,641 5,426,249 5,685,008 5,815,830
Public Safety 14,126,640 16,454,417 15,743,723 17,184,943 17,400,472
Economic & Physicai Development 1,796,732 2,258,125 950,949 1,237,107 1,036,274
Human Services 15,880,421 15,785,872 15,182,432 15,533,403 15,910,100
Cultural and Recreaticnal 539,411 739,981 1,147,418 1,032,756 1,049,119
Envirenmental Protection 525,607 659,560 663,609 684,793 773,738
Capital Projects 671,627 3,333,076 3,278,940 - -
Non-Departmental 302,078 108,766 198,446 222,715 262,439
Education 11,580,259 11,198,335 12,335,205 13,334,623 12,370,800
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,874,780 1,922 382 1,956,821 1,382,410 1,448,607
Interest and Fees 784,577 697,451 609,929 524,290 472,703
Total expenditures 55,484,047 59,125,616 57,493,721 56,822,138 56,630,173
Revenues over (under} expenditures (1,445,488) (519,165) 222,645 1,638,598 3,018,384
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from the sale of assets 26,689 77,396 72,300 44,351 28,239
Proceeds from the issuance of debt - - - - -
Capital Contributions 1,460,672 - - - -
Transfers from other funds 3,290,436 3,187,616 2,931,158 2,879,439 3,028,700
Transfers to other funds (4,233,907) (3.887,618) (3,658,742) (3,499,417) (3,494,472
Total other financing sources (uses) 543,890 {622,604) (655,284) (575,627) (437,533)
Extraordinary ltems - - - 598,597 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 3 {901,598) 5 {1,141,769) § (432,639) $ 1,662,568 § 2,578,851
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
expenditures 5.02% 4.54% 4£.56% 3.41% 3.45%
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Years

Table 5
Year Ended Public Service Total Direct
June 30, Real Property FPersonal Property Companies Total Tax Rate
2006 2,417,596,225 313,281,735 74,235,157 2,805,113,117 0.770
2007 2,534,952,317 328,489,204 77,838,715 2,941,280,236 0.805
2008 2,629,840,815 347,211,192 86,418,360 3,063,478,367 0.790
2009 2,693,709,443 374,694,962 93,270,658 3,161,675,064 0.790
2010 3,215,847 558 398,132,051 113,709,230 3,727,688,840 0.690
2011 3,188,344 ,488 399,644 268 155,891,098 3,744,879,855 0.690
2012 3,300,755,828 379,385,704 117,845,792 3,798,087,324 0.710
2013 3,342,205,527 428,472 306 149,137,843 3,920,815,776 0.710
2014 3,617,298,204 451,627,352 120,450,555 4,089,376,111 0.720
2015 3,441,107,408 492,857,496 118,407,427 4,052,372,329 C.730
Source: Duplin County Tax Office
Notes: Property in Duplin County is reassessed every eight years, The most recent

revaluafion was performed as of January 1, 2009 and went into effect during
the year ended June 30, 2010. The County assesses properiy at apgroximataly
100 percent of actual value,
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governmentis
Last Ten Years

Table &
Year Ending June 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Duplin County 0.7700 0.8050 0.7900 0.7900 0.6900 0.6900 0.7100 0.7100 0.7200 0.7300
Municipality Rates:
Beulaville 0.4800 0.4900 0.5100 0.5100 0.4400 0.4400 0.4400 0.4400 0.4400 0.4400
Calypso 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700
Faison 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300
Greenevers 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000 0.3000
Kenansvilie 0.4850 0.4950 0.4950 0.4950 0.3950 0.3950 0.3900 0.4200 0.4500 0.4500
Magnolia 0.6200 0.6500 0.6500 0.6500 0.6500 0.6500 0.6500 0.6600 0.6600 0.6600
Rose Hill 0.6650 0.6650 0.6650 0.6650 0.6400 0.6400 0.6400 0.6400 0.6900 0.6800
Teachey 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500
Wallace 0.6600 0.6600 0.6800 0.6600 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600
Warsaw 0.5800 0.5200 0.5800 0.5800 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500
Fire Protection Districts:
Qak Wolfe 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500
Glisson 0.0650 0.0650 0.0650 0.0650 0.0650 0.0850 0.0850 0.0650 0.0650 0.0650
Sarecta 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550 0.0550
East Duplin 0.0525 0.0525 0.0525 0.0525 0.0525 0.0458 0.0458 0.0458 0.0458 0.0458
Albertson 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750
Stacy Britt 0.0600 0.0600 0.0650 0.0650 0.0850 0.0630 0.0630 0.0630 0.0630 0.0630
Franklin 0.0700 0.0700 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 0.0750 0.0750 0.0750
Northeast N/A 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400

Source: Duplin County Tax Office

Note: Tax rates are based on $100 per assessed valuation for Duplin County and all overlapping governments.
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Principal Taxpayers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Table 7
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Percentage of
Total Taxable

Fercentage of
Total Taxable

Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Assessed Valug Rank Value Assessed Value Rank Value

Butterball LLC Pouliry Processing 133,277,918 1 3.40% N/A  N/A N/A
Murphy-Brown LLC Livestock 93,735,070 2 2.39% N/A - N/A N/A
Duplin Land Development Real Estate 81,352,907 3 2.07% 32,017,580 6 1.21%
House of Raeford Livestock 57,457,607 4 1.47% N/A  N/A N/A
Guilford Mills Textiles 48,466,284 5 1.24% 51,278,361 2 1.93%
Duke Energy Progress Utility 40,060,644 6 1.02% 21,896,159 8 0.83%
Nash Johnson & Sons Livestock 39,908,395 7 1.02% 23,207,346 7 0.88%
Murphy Family Ventures Livestock 34,295,617 8 0.87% N/A N/A N/A
Coastal Carolina Green Power Utility 27,544 732 9 0.70% N/A N/A N/A
Four County EMC Utility 27,928,492 10 0.71% 18,121,531 9 0.68%

584,027 666 14.90% $ 146,520,977 5.53%

Source: Duplin County Tax Office
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Table 8
Collected within the Year of Levy Total Collections to Date
Year Ended June Collections in

30, Tax Levy Amount Percentage of Levy Subsequent Years Amount Percentage of Levy
2006 $ 21,718,183 $ 20,447,899 94.15% $ 1,195,950 21,643,849 99.66%
2007 23,752,080 22,383,189 94.24% 1,264,301 23,647,490 99.56%
2008 24,233,502 22,867,344 94.36% 1,255,527 24,122,871 99.54%
2009 25,128,446 23,741,088 94.48% 1,282,218 25,023,306 99.58%
2010 25,836,831 24,353,960 94.26% 1,375,015 25,728,975 99.58%
2011 25,952,188 24,537,688 94.55% 1,282,089 25,819,777 99.49%
2012 27,109,094 25,724,577 94.89% 1,208,810 26,933,387 99.35%
2013 28,023,946 26,579,982 94.85% 1,171,837 27,751,819 99.03%
2014 29,583,582 28,461,798 96.21% 697,520 29,159,318 98.57%
2015 29,749,210 28,972,293 97.39% - 28,972,293 97.39%

Source: Duplin County Tax Office
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Governmental Activities

Duplin County, North Carolina

Business-type Activilies

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Years

Tabie 8

General General Limited
Certificates of Obligation Obligation Water Capital Obligation Total Primary
June 30, Participation Bonds Notes Payable Bonds Notes Payable Leases Bonds Government
2005 $ 12,333,297 § 3,920,000 $ 13,076,638 18,808,800 § 1,470,621 141,458 - 48,750,812
2006 11,390,467 3,390,000 12,605,081 18,535,800 1,367,528 112,529 - 47,405,405
2007 10,452,637 2,870,000 12,684,882 18,250,100 1,263,750 81,780 - 45,603,149
2008 9,249,807 2,360,000 12,094,556 17,949,400 1,157,060 49,131 - 42,859,954
2009 8,016,977 1,865,000 11,455,539 17,635,200 1,050,143 14,465 - 40,037,324
2010 6,754,147 1,380,000 10,903,563 17,306,000 1,406,457 - - 37.750,167
2011 5,451,317 910,000 10,633,783 16,958,500 1,294,521 - - 35,248,121
2012 4,083,487 450,000 10,470,245 16,593,300 1,181,224 - - 32,778,256
2013 2,655,657 - 10,323,424 15,915,000 1,711,577 - 15,915,000 46,520,658
2014 1,357,827 - 10,171,014 - 1,359,427 - 15,843,587 28,731,855
2015 - - 10,012,316 - 3,883,629 - 15,314,495 28,210,440
Total Debt as a
Percentage of
June 30, Personal Per Capita
20056 3.81% 931 Notes: Details regarding the Couty's outstanding debt can be
2006 3.51% 867 found in the notes to the financial statements. Perceniage of
2007 3.10% 820 personal income and per capita numbers are based on the
2008 2.73% 754 figures in Table 11.
2008 2.52% 697
2010 2.22% 643 N/A - Not available
2011 2.06% 591
2012 1.77% 546
2013 N/A N/A
2014 N/A N/A
2015 N/A N/A
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Duplin County, North Carolina

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
and Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Years

Table 10
June 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
General Bonded Debi Qutstanding:
General Obligation Bonds $ 21925800 $ 21120100 $ 20,309,400 $ 19,500,200 § 18686000 $ 17,868,500
Percentage of Estimated Actual
Property Value 0.78% 0.72% 0.66% 0.62% 0.50% 0.48%
Per Capita 3 400.81 3 55610 % 3B7H0 0§ 33952 % 318.46 § 299.83
Assessed Value of Taxable Property $ 2,805,113,117 § 2,941,280,236 § 3,063,479,367 $ 3,161,675,064 § 3,727,688,840 § 3,744,879,855
X 8% X 8% X 8% X 8% X 8% X 8%
Debt Limit - 8 Percent of Assessed
Value (Statutory Limitation G.S. 159-55) 224,409,049 235,302,419 245,078,349 252,934,005 298,215,107 299,590,388
Gross Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 21,925,800 21,120,100 20,309,400 19,500,200 18,686,000 17,868,500
Limited Obligation Bonds - - - - - -
Certificates of Participation 10,780,000 9,910,000 8,775,000 8,016,977 6,415,000 5,180,000
Notes Payable 13,976,609 13,948,632 13,251,616 12,505,682 12,310,020 11,928,304
Capital Leases 112,529 81,780 49131 14,465 - -
Total gross debt 45,794,938 45,060,512 42,385,147 403,037,324 37,411,020 34,976,804
Less: Debt Incurred for Water Activities 20,015,857 19,595,630 19,155,591 18,699,808 18,712,457 18,253,021
Total Debt Applicable to Debt Limit (Net
Debt) 26,779,081 25,464,882 23,229,556 21,337,516 18,698,563 16,723,783
Legal Debt Margin $ 197629968 $ 209,837537 § 221848793 $ 231,5964B9 § 279,516,544 $ 282,866,605
Total Debt Applicable to the Limit as a
Percentage of the Debt Limit 11.83% 10.82% 9.48% 8.44% 6.27% 5.58%
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

and Legal Debt Margin information

June 30, 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Bonded Debt Ouistanding:

General Obligation Bonds $ 17,043,300 $ 15915000 § - -
Percentage of Estimated Actual
Property Value 0.45% 0.41% 0.00% 0.00%
Per Capita $ 283.90 N/A N/A N/A

Assessed Value of Taxable Property

$ 3,798,087,324 § 3,920,815,776 4,088,376,111

4,052,372,329

X 8% X 8% 8% 8%
Debt Limit - 8 Percent of Assessed
Value (Statutory Limitation G.S. 159-55) 303,846,986 313,665,262 327,150,088 324,189,786
Gross Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 17,043,300 15,915,000 - -
Limited Obligation Bonds - 15,915,000 15,410,000 14,900,000
Certificates of Participation 3,880,000 2,520,000 1,290,000 -
Notes Payable 11.651,467 12,035,001 11,530,441 13,895,945
Capital Leases - - - -
Total gross debt 32,574,767 46,385,001 28,230,441 28,795,945
Less: Debt Incurred for Water Activities 17,774,523 33,541,677 16,769,427 18,783,629
Total Debt Applicable to Debt Limit (Net
Debt) 14,800,244 12,843,424 11,461,014 10,012,316

Legal Debt Margin

$ 289,046,742 $ 300,821,838 § 315,689,075 § 314,177,470

Total Debt Applicable {o the Limit as a

Percentage of the Debt Limit 4.87%
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Duplin County, Nerth Carolina
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

(1)
Per Capita (3) (3) {2}
Year Ended {1 {1 Personal School High School  Unemployment
June 30, Pepulation  Personal Income Income Enroliment Graduates Rate
2006 54,704 1,350,591,000 24,689 8,806 467 5.2%
2007 55,610 1,473,384,000 26,495 8,833 453 4.8%
2008 58,810 1,568,481,000 27,609 8,865 431 5.5%
2009 57 434 1,590,950,000 27,700 8,815 468 9.3%
2010 58,676 1,703,301,000 29,029 8,837 450 9.4%
2011 59,596 1,705,665,000 28,688 8,945 422 9.7%
2012 60,033 1,84¢ 253,000 30,804 9,158 533 9.9%
2013 N/A N/A N/A 9.315 456 9.4%
2014 N/A N/A N/A 9,597 461 9.4%
2015 N/A N/A N/A 9,703 513 6.1%

Sources:

(1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
(2) North Carolina Employment Security Commission

(3) Duplin County Board of Education

N/A - Not available
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Tabie 12
2015 2005
Percentage of Percentage of
Approximate Total Approximate Total
Empioyer Empioyees Rank Employment Employer Employees Rank Employment

Butterball LLC 1,000 1 3.98% Carolina Turkeys 1,000 1 4.50%
Smithfield Foods, Inc. 1.000 2 3.98% Duplin County Schools 1,000 2 4.50%
Dupiin Caunty Schools 1,000 3 3.98% Murphy-Brown LLC 1,000 3 4.50%
House of Raeford Inc. 1,000 4 3.98% House of Raeford Inc. 750 4 3.37%
Guilford Mills Inc. 750 5 2.98% Guilford Mills Inc. 750 5 3.37%
Duplin County Government 750 8 2.98% Duplin County Government 750 6 3.37%
Murphy Family Ventures LLC 750 7 2.98% Murphy Family Ventures LLC 750 7 3.37%
Vidant Medical Center 400 8 1.59% Duplin General Hospital Inc 400 8 1.80%
Burch Equipment LLC 400 9 1.59% Dean Specialty Foods Group 400 9 1.80%
James Sprunt Community College 400 10 1.59% Jamse Sprunt Community College 400 10 1.80%
7.450 29.64% 7,200 32.38%

Balance of employment 17,689 70.36% 15,039 67.62%
Total employment 25,139 100.00% 22,239 100.00%

Source: North Carolina Empioyment Security Commission
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Function/Program

Duplin County, North Carolina
Fuli-time County Government Employees by Function/Program

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011

Last Ten Years
Table 13
Page 1 of 2

2012 2013 2014 2015

General Government:
Governing Board
Aftorney
Finance
Tax Administration
Elections
Register of Deeds
County Manager
Personnel
[nformation Technology
(Garage
Building Maintenance
Housekeeping

Public Safety:
Sheriff
Court Facilities
Communications
Faison Substation
School Resource Officers
Department of Justice Alien Grant
Calypso Substation
Federzlly Seized Assets
Jai
JSCC-School Resource Officer
Emergency Management
Fire Marshall
Building Inspections
Emergency Medical Services
E-911
E-911 Grant

Governer's Highway Commission Grant
Animai Services
Economic and Physical Development:
Planning
Economic Development
Westpark Business Tech
NC Arts Grant-Se Agri Tour
Tourism Development
Duplin Commons Project
JCPC-Duglin Parenting
JCPC-4-H Outreach
Environmental Protection:
Soil Conservation
Human Services:!
Health
Environmental Health

6 8 B 8 6 6
2 2 2 2 2 2
7 7 7 7 7 7
16 16 16 16 16 16
3 3 3 3 4 4
7 7 7 7 4] 6
3 3 3 3 3 3
1 2 2 2 2 2
] o 5 5 5 7
3 3 3 3 3 3
g8 8 8 8 8 9
6 8 B 8 8 3
47 48 50 50 51 51
2 2 2 2 P 2
17 21 21 22 22 22
3 3 3 3 3 3
g 9 9 9 9 8
0 1 0 0 0 0
Q 0 1 1 1 0
aJ ] 0 2 0 0
24 25 26 26 27 28
0 G 0 2 1 1
2 3 2 3 2 2
2 2 2 2 2 2
4 3 4 4 4 3
68 73 74 73 69 70
1 1 1 g 0 G
0 0 0 G 0 D

O
o
o
o
)
o

3 3 3 3 3 3
2 1 1 1 1 1
2 2 3 Z 2 2
0 0 0 0 0 0
1 1 1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2 2 2
0 G 0 0 0 0
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
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6 8 6 5
2 3 3 3
7 7 7 7
15 45 16 16
4 4 3 3
6 & 6 5
3 3 3 3
2 3 3 3
7 7 6 8
3 3 3 3
9 9 9 9
8 7 8 8
43 43 51 51
2 2 2 2
23 22 23 24
3 2 2 2
9 9 16 16
o 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
28 32 32 35
0 0 0 0
2 2 2 2
2 1 1 1
4 4 4 4
74 74 T4 74
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
3 3 3 4
1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2
D 0 0 0
1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2
0 0 0 0
1 1 1 0
1 1 1 1
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Full-time County Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Years

Table 13
Page 2 of 2
Function/Program 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Keen on Teen Vaccine 0 G 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Healthy Beginnings 0 ] G 0 0 0 1 1 1 o
Smart Start Child Care 1 1 i 1 3 1 0 0 0 0
Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention 0 0 0 a 0 0 Q 0 0 0
Dental Program 2 4] 2 0 2 3 4 4 5 2
Bioterrorism 1 it 9 0 0 G 0 o 0 0
Access East Grant 0 G G 0 0 0 0 G 0 0
County Wellness 0 0 o 0 1 0 1 2 0 2
Health and Weliness Grant 2 1 2 2 p 2 2 0 2 0
Cap Fear Chronic Disease Grant 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0
Community Health 0 0 0 i 1 1 1 0 ¢ 0
Pregnancy Care Management 0 0 0 G 0 0 0 1 1 1
Maternal Care Coordination 0 0 G 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
Maternal Health 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Famity Planning i 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0
WIC 0 0 0 0 0 10 10 10 10 10
Child Health 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 z 2 2
Interpretor Grant 1 1 1 1 1 1 o 0 0 0
Social Services Adminisiration 112 115 415 145 115 115 110 140 110 110
Social Services Security 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 6 0 0
Medicaid Transportation 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 it 0
Title IV-D Child Support 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 G 0
Social Services Building 2 2 2 2 2 1 i 1 1 1
County Aging 7 7 8 8 8 8 g 8 8 B
‘Aging In Home Aid Services 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 6 6 8
Adult Day Care/Adult Day Health 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senoir Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0
Family Caregiver 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Veteran's Service Oifficer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 3
JCPC-Restitution/Teen Court G 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nutrition Homebound Meals 1 1 % 1 1 i 1 1 1 1
Nutrition 6 8 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5
Cultural and Recreational:
Library 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 13 13
Parkes and Recreation 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 2 3 3
Events Center 2 0 2 0 0 3 3 3 3 2
Museum 1 i 1 1 1 1 i 0 1 1
Water:
Albertson Water C 0 4] 0 0 0 &
County Water 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Transportation 12 10 14 14 14 23 20 15 19 16
Airport 3 3 2 3 3 3 3
Solid Waste:
Solid Waste Collections 23 19 26 26 26 27 27 27 25 29
Solid Waste Disposal 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5
Solid Waste Recycling 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 3 3
Totals 520 527 551 554 548 hK71 562 559 585 582
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DPuplin County, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14
Function Program 2006 2607 2008 2009 2010
Alrport:
Gallons-Aviation Gas Sold (yearly) 36,740.23 28,731.67 21,456.23 9,235.79 28,183.24
Gallons-Jet Fuel Sold (yearly) 128,449.81 80,128.76 105,303.58 89,930.33 97,545.11
EMS:
Transports 4077 4480 4724 4800 5274
Environmental Health:
Well Permits Issued N/A N/A N/A 65 27
Food & Lodging Inspections N/A N/A N/A 348 218
On Site Evalutions N/A N/A N/A 222 109
Cther Permits/Inspections N/A N/A N/A 506 246
Inspections:
Building Inspections 4432 6599 2529 4818 4311
Mobile/Modular Homes 412 484 155 341 279
New Dwellings (Residential) 94 127 36 69 67
Multi-Family Dwellings 1 3 0 1 Q
Commercial 55 23 19 30 32
Other Inspections 1924 2733 1098 2240 2306
Health Department:
Primary Care Physicals N/A N/A MN/A 207 122
Primary Care Treatments N/A N/A N/A 2445 1335
Family Planning Physicals N/A N/A N/A 510 325
Maternal Health Patients N/A N/A N/A 1017 656
Maternal Health Patients
{non-english speaking} N/A N/A N/A 795 513
Maternal Health Visits N/A N/A N/A 1273 875
Child Health Physicals N/A N/A N/A 399 451
Medications Dispensed N/A N/A N/A 2175 1340
Immunizations Provided N/A N/A N/A 2204 2986
Dental Services Provided N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
WIC number seen N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TB Cases/Suspects N/A N/A N/A 25 12
TB Skin Test N/A N/A N/A 624 412
STD/CD N/A N/A N/A 166 88
HIV/AIDS N/A N/A N/A 18 14
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14
Funciion Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Airport:
Gallons-Aviation Gas Sold (yearly) 27,568.94 39,071.53 26.,674.61 21,962.31 19,206.19
Gallons-Jet Fuel Sold (yearly) 73,272.04 67,319.76 63,208.59 63,134.42 83,071.13
EMS:
Transparts 5510 5702 6097 9056 6875
Envirenmental Health:
Well Permits 1ssued 31 N/A 44 83 37
Food & Lodging Inspections 202 N/A 146 731 472
On Site Evalutions 70 N/A 117 316 210
Other Permits/Inspections 203 N/A 407 423 740
Inspections:
Building Inspections 6618 7589 7019 6511 6624
Mobiie/Modular Homes 231 303 269 232 248
New Dwellings (Residential) 59 42 64 43 42
Muiti-Family Dwellings 0 15 27 24 13
Commercial 33 N/A N/A NiA N/A
Other Inspections 2203 2565 2526 NiA N/A
Health Department:
Primary Care Physicals 71 N/A 95 474 6702
Primary Care Treatments 1021 N/A 1279 5212 8299
Family Planning Physicals 184 N/A 255 686 1703
Maternal Health Patients 3g2 N/A 679 313 1188
Maternal Health Patients
{non-english speaking) 281 N/A 479 219 0
Maternal Health Visits 486 N/A 700 1733 2166
Child Health Physicals 293 N/A 408 1035 1050
Medications Dispensed 1046 N/A 1262 2999 421
Immunizations Provided 1310 N/A 1965 3117 3211
Dental Services Provided 339 N/A 599 1258 572
WIC number seen 927 N/A 3913 20346 7987
TB Cases/Suspects 15 N/A 6 7 312
TB Skin Test 324 N/A 267 342 83
STD/CD 76 N/A 107 661 842
HIVIAIDS 2 N/A 10 N/A, 0
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14
Function Program 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010
(Continued)
Register of Deeds:
Marriage License Issued 326 376 343 310 3N
Death Certificates Issued 2527 2654 2936 2379 2418
Birth Certificates Issued 1483 1549 2208 1823 2245
Sheriff:
Number of Vehicles 80 72 65 72 71
Number of Officers/Jailers 69 71 78 az 80
Civit papers processed N/A 6880 6621 6394 6497
Social Services;
Child Support Collections $5,362,413 $5,524,976 $5,774,649 $5,954,184 $6,078,335
Solid Waste:
MSW 16,569.64 18,892.43 17,317.30 20,740.14 21,401.27
C&D 4,696.93 3,093.82 2,770.54 2,684.83 2,355.02
Tires 690.71 782.54 780.65 816.07 766.17
Qil 9,983.00 12,760.00 6,866.00 11,143.00 6,582.00
Mixed Recycle 82.50 121.01 75.99 99.14 114.14
Glass 127.74 127.11 119.89 133.32 144,61
Cardboard 1,236.17 1,368.90 749.71 655.02 468.35
Plastics 77.30 66.23 62.93 72.37 165.53
Mixed Paper 24983 264.97 207.14 220.29 222.88
Cans 34.14 33.31 27.65 34.22 35.96
Water:
Residental Customers 5,568 5,933 6,061 6,167 6,279
Commerical Customers 80 97 104 103 1060
Producticon 429,766,000 379,098,000 438,808,000 518,408,000 520,255,000
Residential Consumption 318,599,000 284,956,000 331,190,000 343,252,000 339,377,000
Commerical Consumption 100,827,000 99,726,000 150,314,000 139,930,000 150,791,000

Sources: Various County Departments
N/A - Not Available
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 14
Function Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
(Continued)
Register of Deeds:
Marriage License Issued 356 298 336 322 324
Death Certificates Issued 2404 2560 23086 2349 2200
Birth Certificates fssued 1980 2304 2183 2220 2097
Sheriff:
Number of Vehicles 76 73 73 83 95
Number of Officers/Jailers 80 75 83 92 98
Civil papers processed 6525 6332 6137 6220 5785
Social Services:
Chitd Support Collections $6,122,089 $6,005,674 $5,813,860 $5,310,732 $5,952,202
Solid Waste:
MsSW 22,234.40 22,828.02 21,256.50 20,774.99 24,114.38
C&D 1,751.70 2,087.54 1,787.94 1,927.24 1,950.82
Tires 738.58 595.00 579.23 613.27 746.50
Qil 9,088.00 10,489.00 8,531.00 16,913.00 6,046.00
Mixed Recycle 112.82 107.68 112.47 115.50 100.43
Glass 137.50 161.14 140.98 150.40 121.73
Cardboard 441.72 474.23 254.26 227.94 339.86
Plastics 87.89 73.04 60.95 55.52 51.57
Mixed Paper 202.70 184.85 174.97 173.11 157.12
Cans 34.48 29.06 26.14 25.50 22.56
Water:
Residental Customers 6,363 6,460 6,541 6,667 6,850
Commerical Customers 110 115 115 115 113
Production 526,945 000 541,992,000 551,092,000 555,715,000 585,100,000
Residential Consumption 341,565,000 334,186,000 333,657,000 342,482,000 344,629,000
Commerical Consumption 141,698,000 160,345,000 162,608,000 162,068,000 171,031,000
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 15
Function/Program 20086 2007 2008 2009 2010
General Government:
Number of Buildings 9 9 9 9 9

Value of Buildings/contents

Public Safety:
Number of patrol vehicles
Volunteer Fire Depts
Number of EMS stations
Number of ambulances
Number of jail beds

Cultural & Recreational:
Number of Parks
Number of libraries

Enterprise Funds:
Solid Waste convenience sites
Number of Water Tanks
Number of Water pumping sites
Number of Transportation vehicles

$ 4,731,062 § 4,893,242 § 4,971,045 § 5,021,833 § 5,024,773

79 69 61 69 68
24 24 24 24 24

8 8 8 8 8
13 14 15 13 13
&8 88 93 98 98

—_
—b
—
—
—

6 6 6
15 15 15 15 15
8 9 12 12 12
13 13 15 15 15
19 16 14 15 14
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Duplin County, North Carclina
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 15
Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Government:
Number of Buildings 9 9 9 9 8

Value of Buildings/contents

Public Safety:
Number of patrol vehicles
Volunteer Fire Depts
Number of EMS stations
Number of ambulances
Number of jail beds

Cultural & Recreationai:
Number of Parks
Number of libraries

Enterprise Funds:
Solid Wasle convenience sites
Number of Water Tanks
Number of Water pumping sites
Number of Transportation vehicles

$ 4,489,371 § 4,440,551 § 4,444,953 § 6,278,468 $ 8,905,194

73 69 69 74 77
24 24 24 24 24
8 8 8 8 8
13 13 13 14 14
98 o8 98 98 98
1 1 1 1 1
6 6
15 15 15 15 15
12 12 12 12 12
156 15 15 15 15
15 14 14 14 14
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Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

j}& glGAGE 2 7868 Highway 70 West
: m\?\ INGRAM La Grange, North Carolina 28551

CPAs and Adyvisors Mailing Address:
PD. Box 605
La Grange, North Carolina 28551-0605

'(252) 566-4135
(252) 566-4136 (fax)
WWW.CI’iC]JH.CDm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of County Commissioners
Duplin County, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Duplin County, North Carolina (the “County"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2015. The financial statements of Duplin County
Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the enfity's financial
statements will not be prevenied, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit atiention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. ‘

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Duplin County’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this repcrt is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliznce. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the enfity’s internal conirol and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

La Grange, North Carclina
December 17, 2015
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Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

, CARR iggs & Ingram, |
[ 7868 Highway 70 West
ééﬁ% c R I F;I%%SAI%I La Grange, North Carolina 28551

CPAs and Advisors Mailing Address:
P0.Box605
La Grange, North Carolina 28551-0605

(252) 566-4135
(252) 566-4136 {fax)
Www.cricpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Duplin County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Duplin County, North Carolina’s (the "County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the County's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and guestioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’'s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Staltes, Local Governments, and Non-Profi
Organizations; and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Duplin County, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred fc above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2015-1. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Duplin County, North Carolina’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs. The County's response was nol subjected fo the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Report ob Internal Controf over Compliance

Management of Duplin County, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requiremenis referred fo above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal conirol over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriaie in the circumstances for the purpcse of expressing an cpinion on
compliance for each major federal program and (o test and report on internal control over compiiance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion cn the effectiveness of

internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or empioyees, in the normat course of parforming their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control cver compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibiiity that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a federal program wili not be prevenied, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider {0 be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items
2015-1 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Dupiin County, North Carolina’s respense to the internal contro! over compliance findings identified in our audit
is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guesticned costs. The County's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is sclely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the resuits of that testing based on the requirements of OME Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose,

iaﬁw,{z‘

ka Grange, Nortiv Carolina
December 17, 2015
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Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

“{}lf' gléﬁg g 7868 Highway 70 West
L4\, La Grange, North Carolina 28551

CPAs and Advisors Mailing Address:
P.0. Box 605
La Grange, North Carolina 28551-0605

(252) 566-4135
(252) 566-4136 (fax)
www.cricpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Duplin County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited Duplin County, North Carolina’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local
- Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The County's major state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations; and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, Those standards, OMB Circular A-
133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, Duplin County, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Duplin County, North Caroling, is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining effective
internal control ever compliance with the types of compliance reguirements referred to above. in planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal contral over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the
effectiveness of internal conirol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal cantral over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control cver compliance, such that there is a reascnable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a siate program will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limiled purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed fo identify ali deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on iniernal controf over cempliance is sclely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Camy Riggos

La Grange, North Carolina
December 17, 2015
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section ! - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditer's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

- Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

- Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major federal programs:

- Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

- Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered {0 be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to federal awards noted? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required fo be
reporied in accordance with Section 510(z) of
Circutar A~1337 X  Yes No

identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
g3.778 Medical Assistance
93.575
93.596 . .
93.558 Subsidized Child Care Cluster
93.667
93.658 .
93.659 } Foster Care and Adoption Cluster
93.767 State Children’s Insurance Program
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | - Summary of Audifor's Resulis (continued)

Doliar thresheld used fo distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs, $ 1,950,102

Auditee qualified as & low-risk auditee? Yes X No

State Awards
Internal controt over major state programs:

- Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

- Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reporiad

Noncompliance material to state awards noted? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issusd on compliance for
major state programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Single Audit
Impiementation Act? Yes X  No

ldentification of major state programs:

Program Name

State/County Special Assistance for Adults
Pubtic School Building Capital Fund

Section b - Financial Stalement Findings

None reported.
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Puplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through the North Carclina Depariment of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Medical Assistance

CFDA Numbers: 83.778
Finding: 2015-1

Significant Deficiency

Immaterial io Noncompliance

Criteria;

Condition:

Question Cosis:

Context:

Effect:
Cause:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible Official
and Planned Corrective Action:

When clients do not come in or refurn infermation in a proper time frame, the
case should be closed.

Cne case was properly closed for failure to cooperate. When client came back
in, case was reopened for a year instead of remainder of application period.
Amount was unavailable at audit report date.

Sixty case files were axamined and one was improperly reopened for incorrect
period.

Individua! received benefits when they were ineligible to receive.
Human error.

Rewiew case files periodically.

The Counly agress with this finding. Case was corrected in July 2015 with
reapplication process.

Section 1V - State Award Findings and Questioned Cosis

None reporied.
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Puplin County, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section H - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Ili- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cosls

Finding: 20151
Name of contact person: Priscilia Bryant, income Maintenance Administrator i
Corrective action: The case was carrected in July 2015 with reapplication process.
Propesed Compietion Date: July 2015

Section IV - State Award Findings and Qusstioned Costs

None reported.
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section ii - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Saction il - Federat Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 2014-1 - Corrected

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 2014-2 - Cerrected
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
Page 10of 8

State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough (Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures

Federal Awards:

U.S, Department of Agriculture:
Food and Nutrition Service
Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services Division
of Social Services;
Administration:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program 10.561 $ 562,266 § - $ 562,266

Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health:
Administration:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and
Children 10.557 467,786 - -
Direct Benefit Payments:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, infants, and
Children 10.557 1,599,309

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 2,629,361 - 562,260

U.S. Institute of Museum and Library Services:
Passed through the NC Department of Cultural Resources:
LSTA Planning Grant 45,310 11,482 - -

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:
Passed through the NC Department of Environment and Natural
Resources:
Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 410,949 119,116 -

-215 -



Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 2 of 8
State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough {Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through NC Department of Commerce:
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 11-C-2292 3 42515 § - -
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 12-C-2414 7,061 - -
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 12-C-2494 9,764 - -
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 59,340 - -
U.S. Departiment of Homeland Security:
Passed through NC Department of Public Safety:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2014-35-00067-501 519 - -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 T2-2015-31 1,104 - -
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2014-37061 38,220 - -
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 39,843 - -
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through the NC Department of Transportation:
Formuia Granis For Rural Areas 20.509 177,422 11,088 -
Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons with Disabilities 20.513 27,5089 - -
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 106,526 - -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 311,547 . 11,088 -
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 30of 8
State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough (Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures  Expendiiures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Aging and Adult Services:
Passed through the Eastern Carolina Council:
Aging Cluster:
Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ili B Grants for Supportive
Services and Senior Centers 93.044 $ 60,426 % 3554 % 7,110
Special Programs for the Aging - Title lll C Nutrition Services 93.045 190,201 14,230 22,458
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 41,503 - -
HCCRBG - State N/A - 185,421 20,613
Total Aging Cluster 292,830 200,205 50,181
Social Service Block Grant (SSBG) - In Home Services 93.667 24,068 588 2,750
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health:
Office of Population Affairs:
Family Planning Services Title X 93.217 69,696 - -
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Social Services:
Administration for Children and Families:
Family Preservation 93.556 1.868 - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)YWork First 93.558 901,864 - 259,368
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 7,349 - -
TANFMWork First - Direct Benefit Payments 93.558 342,846 - 2,326
AFDC Payments - Direct Benefit Payments 93.560 (141) (39) (39)
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 456,040 - 234,930
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 4 0of8
State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough (Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures  Expenditures
LS. Depariment of Health and Human Services {continued):
Low income Home Energy Assistance:
Crisis Intervention 93.568 $ 235177 % - -
Administration 93.568 44 818 - -
Energy Assistance Paymenis 93.568 338,067 - -
Permanency Planning - Families for Kids 93.645 15,734 - 5,245
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster:
Title IV-E CPS 93.658 86,820 85,847 58,551
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 71,962 - 71,962
Title IV-E Adoption 93.659 463 - 463
Foster Care N/A 34,904 - -
Adoption Assistance - Direct Benefit Payments 93.658 44 131 12,564 12,563
Foster Care - Direct Benefit Payments 93.659 162,559 42,144 42 144
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster 400,839 140,655 185,683
Adult Protective Services 93.667 20,332 - 6,777
Social Services Block Grant (SSBG) 93.667 215,331 23,518 79,616
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Puplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 5of 8
Statef Federal
Federal Passthrough {Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures  Expenditures  Expenditures
1.8, Departiment of Health and Human Services {continued):
Subsidized Child Care Cluster:
Division of Social Services:
Child Care Development Fund - Administration 93.506 $ 108,609 $ - -
Division of Child Development:
Child Care and Development Fund - Discretionary 93.575 1,211,529 - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Mandatory 93.596 442 644 - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Match 93.506 134,885 1,135 -
Total Child Care Cluster 1,897,667 1,135 -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 340,790 - -
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 26,842 13,802 -
State Appropriations NIA - 482,757 -
TANF-MOE NIA - 11,136 -
Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster 2,265,209 488,930 -
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Medical Assistance:
Medical Assistance Program - Direct Benefit Payments 93.778 53,433,096 29,471,405 {(25,023)
State Children's Insurance Program - Direct Benefit Paymenis 93.767 806,794 256,566 -
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Social Services:
Links 93.674 1,541 385 -
Medical Assistance Program Administration 93.778 1,725,592 7,412 661,911
State Children's Insurance Program - NC Health Choice 93.767 40,4583 2,662 10,048
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 6 of 8
State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough {Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services {continued):
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health:
Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Alligned Cooperative Agreement 93.074 5 36,648 $ - $ -
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Tuberculosis Control
Programs 93.116 30,615 - -
immunization Grants 93.268 15,688 - -
Prevenitve Health & Human Services Block Grant funded solely with
Prevention & Public Health Funds (PPHF) 93.758 20,018 - -
Prevenitve Health Services - Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control
Grants 93.977 192 - -
Statewide Health Promotion Program 893.991 528 - -
Health Resources and Services Administration:
Passed through the NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Heaith:
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994 97,672 73,262 -
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 61,840,884 30,665,649 1,473,773
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 7 of 8
Statef Federal
Federal Passthrough {Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantor's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures FExpenditures
State Awards:
NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
County Funded Programs $ - $ - $ 307,542
Energy Assistance Private GRA - 5,576 -
Non-Alfocating County COS - - 45,397
AFDC Incentive/Program Integrity - 1,973 -
Child Welfare/CPS/CS LD - 51,697 -
Direct Benefit Payments:
Chitd Welfare Services Adoption Subsidy - 72,602 10,257
State/County Special Assistance Domiciliary Care - 474,262 474 262
SFHF Maximization - 14,050 14,050
State Foster Home - 32,457 32,457
Other local expenditures - 3,806,687

Total Division of Social Services

- 652,617 4,690,652

Division of Public Health:

Food and Lodging Fees - 10,059 -
HMHC - Pamily Planning - 3,151 -
General Aid to Counties - 80,554 -
General Communicable Disease Control - 4,440 -
Risk Reduction/Health Promotion - 8,285 -
Maternal Health (HMHC) - 12,751 -
Wormen's Health Service Fund - 8,661 -
Tuberculosis - 31,604 -
Child Health - 1,898 -
Total Division of Public Health - 159,503 -
Total NC Department of Health and Human Services - 812,120 4,690,652
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Duplin County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Page 8 of 8
State/ Federal
Federal Passthrough (Direct &
Grantor/Passthrough CFDA Grantot's Passthrough) State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures  Expenditures  Expenditures
NC Department of Transportation:
Rural Operating Assistance Program - Work First DOT-16CL $ - $ 68,690 & -
Rural Operating Assistance Program - Rural General Pubiic DOT-16CL - 16,820 -
Total NC Department of Transportation = 85,510 -
NC Department of Environmental and Natural Resources:
Division of Waste Management:
Scrap Tire Fund - 49 388 -
NC Department of Public Safety:
Office of Juvenile Justice:
4-H Outreach - 48,744 -
Parenting - 38,543 -
Administration - 1,103 -
Juvenile Court - 6,000 -
(Gang Awareness - 9,754 -
Restitution/Teen Court - 67,006 -
Total NC Department of Public Safety - 169,150 -
NC Department of Public Instruction:
Public School Building Capital Fund - 702,310 -
NC Department of Commerce:
Rural Center Grants G40431004115MUS - 58,000 -
NC Department of Cultural Resources:
Aid to Public Libraries - 120,229 -

Total Awards

$ 65,303,406 $ 32792560 § 6,726,691
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Duplin County, North Cargling

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state
grant activity of Duplin County, North Carolina and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The informaticn in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single
Audif Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presenied in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial siatements. Benefit payments are paid
directly to recipients and are ncot included in the basic financial statements. However, due to the County’s
invoivement in determining eligibility, they are considered federal awards to the County and are included
in this scheduie.

NOTE 2 - LOANS QUTSTANDING

Duplin County, North Carclina had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2015:

Description Balance Outstanding
USDA Loan for Duplin
Commons Facility $ 10,012,318

ARRA — Drinking Water

Revolving  Loan  for

Water District D 347,548

USDA Loan for Sewer

Project 646,000
NOTE 3 —~ SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal and state expenditures presented in the schedule, Duplin County, North Caroling provided
state awards to subrecipients as follows:

State Program Title Subrecipient State Expenditures

Public School Building Capital Fund Duplin County Board of Education  § 702,310

NOTE 4 — PROGRAM CLUSTERS

The following are clustered by the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services and are
treated separately for state audit requirement purposes:

- Subsidized Child Care
- Foster Care and Adoption
- Aging
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